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NOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the SIXTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of CHENNAI METRO 
RAIL LIMITED will be held on Friday, the 22nd day of September 2023 at 11:30 AM to transact the 
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
ended 31st March, 2023, the reports of the Directors and the Statutory Auditors together with 
the Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143 (6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and pass the following resolution as on Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023, the Statement of Profit & 
Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023 together with 
the Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143 (6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon be and are hereby 
received, considered and adopted”.

2.	 To fix remuneration of Auditors for the Financial Year 2023-24 and if thought fit, to pass with 
or without modifications, the following resolution as an ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to 
fix the remuneration, out of pocket expenses, statutory taxes and other ancillary expenses 
of Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the 
Financial Year 2023-24”.

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Chennai Metro Rail Limited

						                  

	 Andal P 
	 Company Secretary

Place	:	Chennai  
Date	 :	20.09.2023 

Notes:

1.	 In view of the outbreak of COVID -19 pandemic, Social distancing measures are a pre-requisite 
and in terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) Circular No.20/2020 dt.05-05-2020 
read with Circular No.14/2020 dt 08-04-2020, Circular No.17/2020 dt.13-04-2020, Circular 
No.02/2021 dt 13-01-2021, Circular No19/2021 dt 08-12-2021, Circular No 21/2021 dt 
14-12-2021, Circular No 02/2022 dt 05-05-2022 and Circular No. 10/2022 dt. 28-12-2022 
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(MCA circulars), the Annual General Meeting is being conducted through video conference 
(“VC”) / other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM”). The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the 
Registered office of the Company.

2.	 Pursuant to the provision of the Act, a member entitles to attend and vote at the AGM is 
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his / her behalf and the proxy need not be a 
member of the Company. Since the AGM is held through VC /OAVM, physical attendance of 
members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the Facility for appointment of proxies by the 
members will not be able available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance 
slip are not annexed to this notice.

3.	 Members participating in the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.
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CHAIRMAN’s MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

It is my privilege to welcome you all to the 16th Annual General Meeting of the Company and I 
am pleased to place the 16th Annual Report of Chennai Metro Rail Limited for the Financial Year  
2022-23. The audited financial statements, the report of the Board of Directors and Statutory 
Auditors, along with the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon are 
placed before the Members. 

The entire 54 kms of the Chennai Metro Phase I network (including extension) has been in operation 
since February 2021. The Phase II of Chennai Metro Rail Project is being implemented with a 
network length of 118.9 km spanning over three corridors at an estimated cost of ` 63,246 Cr. The 
approval of Government of India for implementing the Chennai Metro Phase II Project under 50:50 
Centre and State equity model is awaited. The project is being funded by way of financial assistance 
from bilateral/multilateral banks viz. JICA, ADB, AIIB and NDB. The Loan Agreements with JICA, 
ADB, NDB and AIIB have been signed. 

The CMRL Head Quarters called “Metros” is constructed on a sprawling 8.96 acres of land allotted 
by the State Government adjacent to Nandanam Metro Station on Anna Salai, an important arterial 
road, which is now the registered office of the company. 

The total ridership during the financial year 2022-23 has improved to 7.07 crores from 2.93 
crores in the financial year 2021-22. The average ridership per day has increased to 2.50 lakhs 
passengers during 2023-24 (till Aug. 2023) from 1.93 lakhs Passengers per day during previous year  
(2022-23). The ridership has witnessed an increase by 109% in year ending March 2023 when 
compared with pre-covid (2019-20) ridership. The average passenger journey per day is 3.80 lakhs 
for the month of August 2023.

There is also a constant improvement in the parking earnings during 2022-23 and approx.83% 
increase is achieved during the year under review when compared to the previous year. The last 
mile connectivity measures which include providing additional MTC Mini buses, EV buggy services, 
Metro Connect LMC services etc. and publicity activities have contributed for the continuous 
increase in the ridership.

The business development wing of the Company has taken various efforts to improve the Non 
Farebox revenue by licensing of retail/kiosk/ATM spaces at all stations, inside and outside station 
advertisements, on and in train advertisements, semi-naming rights of stations, etc. The business 
development contracts for around ` 30 crores have been finalised for the financial year 2022-23 
and the revenue flow is expected to commence after completion of fitout and provision of basic 
facilities.  The company has also empanelled Transaction Advisory firms for property development 
to augment the Property Development revenue.
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The company is encouraging the use of renewable energy sources like solar energy in all its activities. 
Energy is being purchased in the open market through Indian Energy Exchange (IEX) to optimises 
the energy cost. 

I profoundly thank the various Ministries and Departments of the Government of India and 
Government of Tamil Nadu and the Bilateral/Multilateral funding agencies for their constant support 
for the project.

I place on record the generous support of my colleague Board members for exercising skill and 
diligence in carrying out the functions of the company and appreciate the entire CMRL team for 
the dedication, commitment and striving towards meeting the needs of the commuters of Chennai 
Metro. 

Finally, I thank the residents of Chennai for their persistent and continuous support and seek their 
whole-hearted cooperation and patronage in the coming times.

 

MANOJ JOSHI 
Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

I.	 The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 16th Annual Report of the Company together 
with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and 
comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, under Section 143(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The entire Phase – I consisting of 54 km of Metro network is operational 
now covering high dense areas and serving the commuters’ demands. 

II.	 Profile and Loss account (P&L):

Key financial numbers for the Financial Year (FY) 22_23, in comparison with FY 21_22 are 
presented below:

(` in Crore)

Details 2022-23 2021-22 * 
(Restated)

% Increase 
(Decrease)

2021-22 
(Before- 

Restatement)
Passenger Flow-No in Million 70.7 29.4 141% 29.4
Fare Box Revenue 214.40 94.24 127% 94.24
Non-Fare Box Revenue 57.86 34.98 65% 34.98
Other Income 214.30 683.93 (69%) 81.63
Total Revenue 486.55 813.15 (40%) 210.85
Operational Income 272.26 129.22 111% 129.22
Operational Expenses 306.29 215.91 42% 215.01
Operational Profit/ Loss (34.03) (86.68) 155% (85.79)
General & Admin Exp 43.26 30.93 40% 29.42
Finance Cost 178.83 184.23 (3%) 184.23
Depreciation & Amortization 524.92 505.17 4% 505.17

Total Expenses 1053.30 936.24 13% 933.83

Profit Before Tax (PBT) (566.74) (123.09) (360%) (722.98)

*In the financial year 2022-23 the Company has accounted for exchange rate fluctuation first time 
since inception, after the necessary communication from GoI in May’23, for repayment of principal 
instalments and interest payments including the foreign exchange fluctuation realized thereon. 
Accordingly, the company has re-opened previous year financials as per the requirement under Ind 
AS 1 & Ind AS 8 and factored the impact in respective years.  

I.	 Share Capital:

The authorised share capital of the company is Rs. 20,000 crore. The issued, subscribed 
and paid-up capital of the company as on 31 March 2022 is ` 7,267.56 crore with equal 
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contribution from Government of India (GoI) and Government of Tamil Nadu (GoTN). As 
on 31-03-2023, Rs.2000 crore of share application money received from GoTN is pending 
for allotment as the GoI participation is pending for approval from Cabinet Committee for 
Economic Approval (CCEA) 

II.	 Subordinate Debt: 

The total Subordinate Debt amounts to ` 3,482.36 crore for Phase –I, ` 804.27 crore for  
Phase – I Extension and ̀  4,600 crore for Phase – II as of 31 March 2023. The debt contribution 
from GoI & GoTN are provided below: 

 (` in Crore)

Description GoI GoTN Total
Phase-I 730.00 2,752.36 3,482.36

Phase-I Extension 205.00 599.27 804.27
Phase-II Approval Awaited 4,600.00 4,600.00

The company has sent claims and had reimbursement of `11,265.21 crore (` 8,646 cr. for 
Phase I, `1651.13 cr. for Phase - I extension and ` 968.08 cr. for Phase - II) from bilateral/
multilateral agencies. As at the end of the FY 22-23, the commitment towards cumulative 
principal repayment and Interest, front end fees and commitment fees of Japan International 
Cooperation Agency (JICA) loan are ̀  1,050.63 crore and ̀  1,118.66 crore respectively against 
which the company has made principal repayment of ` 33.64 crore and interest payment of 
` 252.83 to Government of India (GoI). During June’2023, the entire repayment of principal 
and interest has been made by the Company to MoHUA based on demand raised by MoHUA 
for the same. The company has also submitted the reimbursement of the same from GoTN in 
line with MoU signed between GoI, GoTN and the Company.   

III.	 Funds Received: 

Up to 31 March, 2023, the company has received ` 18,379.92 crore, ` 3,961.27 crore and  
` 8,600 crore for the Phase – I, Phase – I extension and Phase – II projects respectively.

IV.	 Capitalisation:

Until March’23, the company has capitalized ̀  26,547.37 crore in Property Plant & Equipment 
(PPE) including `6773.42 crore towards land and incurred ` 4,735.83 crore towards capital 
work- in-progress.

V.	 Grant Received: 

The Company has received cumulative grant of `482.07 crore from GoTN both for Phase-I 
and Phase-I Ext.
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Chennai Metro Rail Projects - Phase – I, Phase I Extension & Phase II

Details of Corridors 

Commissioned Length / Station Details
Phase Underground Elevated Total

Phase I & Extension -Cor-
ridor 1

17.1 Km 14.7 Km 31.8 Km

13 nos 13 nos 26 nos

Phase I  -Corridor 2
10.2 Km 11. 4 Km 21.5 Km

08 nos 07 nos 15 nos

Total Length/ stations
27.265 Km 26.1 Km 53.4 Km

21 nos 20 nos 41 nos

In Progress Length / Station Details

Underground Elevated Total

Phase II –Corridor 3
26.7 Km 19.1 Km 45.8 Km

28 nos 19 nos 47 nos

Phase II –Corridor 4
10.1 Km 16.0 Km 26.1 Km

09 nos 18 nos 27 nos

Phase II –Corridor 5
5.8 Km 41.2 Km 47.0 Km

06 nos 39 nos 45 nos

Total 
42.6 Km 73.5 Km 118.9 Km

43 nos 76 nos 119 nos

Depot:

Phase I – Koyambedu

Phase I Extension – Wimco Nagar

Phase II – Poonamallee, Madhavaram
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PROJECT STAGING – PHASE I & PHASE I EXTENSION
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CHENNAI METRO PHASE I 

The Phase – I of Chennai Metro Rail project covers a length of 44.46 Km network and consists of two 
Corridors i.e. Corridor-I – From Washermenpet to Airport (23.1 Km), Corridor -2 – From Chennai 
Central to St. Thomas Mount (22.0 km). About 55% of the Corridors in Phase –I is Underground and 
the remaining are Elevated. The Phase I consists of 13 nos. of Elevated Stations and the remaining 
19 nos. are Underground Stations. Inter Corridor Interchange Stations are available in Alandur 
(Elevated) and Chennai Central (Underground).

The Phase I project was commissioned stage wise beginning from 29th June, 2015 to  
10th February,2019. On commissioning the Underground stretch from AG-DMS to Washermenpet 
of blue line the entire 45 km network under the Phase I of the Metro Rail Project was operational.

Project Cost:

Description Phase-I Phase-I Extension

Sanctioned Cost 
` Crore

Percentage
Sanctioned Cost 

` Crore
Percentage

Equity 
    -  GoI 3,125.78 18.57% 508.00 13.47%
    -  GoTN 3,125.78 18.57% 508.00 13.47%
Subordinate Debt    

    -  GoI 730.00 3.97% 205.00 
(Central Taxes) 5.44%

    -  GoTN 2,752.36 11.85% 203.00 
(Land) 5.38%

    -  GoTN - - 205.00 
(Central Taxes) 5.44%

GoI PTA (*) 8,646.00 47.07% 2,141.00 56.79%
Total 18,380.00 100.00% 3,770.00 100.00%

(*) PTA – Pass Through Assistance of the Foreign Loan received through CAAA, Govt. of India. 
Entire loan of Phase- I Project was tied up with JICA.

CHENNAI METRO PHASE I – EXTENSION

Phase I Extension covers a length of 8.880 Km from Washermenpet to Wimco Nagar. The corridor 
consists of 9 nos. of Stations and one Elevated depot, of which 7 nos. are Elevated Stations and the 
remaining 2 nos. are Underground Stations. 

The Phase I Extension project from Washermenpet to Wimco Nagar was commissioned and opened 
for Public on 14th February, 2021 except Thiruvottriyur Theradi Station, Wimco Nagar Depot station. 
The remaining 2 nos of station was commissioned & opened for Public on 13th March 2022.

(*) PTA – Pass Through Assistance of the Foreign Loan received through CAAA, Govt. of India. 
Entire loan of Phase- I Extension Project was tied up with JICA.
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PROJECT MAP – PHASE II
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CHENNAI METRO PHASE II

Considering the demand for fast, safe, efficient and sustainable public transport system and to 
enhance the share of Public Transport system, GoTN decided to expand the Metro Rail Project 
by implementing 118.9 Km under Phase II of Chennai metro project. The total estimated project 
completion cost of ̀  63,246 Cr. (Inc. IDC and Front-end Fee) / ̀  61,843 Cr. (without IDC and Front-
end fee). 

	� Corridor-3: Madhavaram to SIPCOT (45.8 Km) 

	� Corridor-4: Lighthouse to Poonamallee Bypass (26.1 Km) 

	� Corridor-5: Madhavaram to Sholinganallur (47.0 Km) 

Line Length :

Corridors Elevated (Km) UG (Km) Total (Km)

C-3 Madhavaram to SIPCOT 19.1 26.7 45.8

C-4 Lighthouse to Poonamallee Bypass 16.0 10.1 26.1

C-5 Madhavaram to Sholinganallur 41.2 5.8 47.0

Total Length 118.9

Stations :

Corridors Elevated (Nos) UG (Nos) Total (Nos)

C-3 Madhavaram to SIPCOT 20 30 50

C-4 Lighthouse to Poonamallee Bypass 18 12 30

C-5 Madhavaram to Sholinganallur 41 + 1  
(At-Grade) 6 48

Total Stations 128 Nos

Status of Phase II Project approval 

The Government of Tamil Nadu (GoTN) has accorded approval for implementation of three 
Metro Rail corridors for a length of 118.9 Km under Phase II of Chennai Metro Rail Project. GoTN 
recommended the same to Government of India for Central Government funding under 50:50 
equity share and also loan assistance from Bilateral /Multilateral agencies. Public Investment Board 
has recommended the project to Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs (CCEA) for approval & 
implementing the Chennai Metro Rail Phase II project under 50:50 equity model. Approval from 
CCEA is awaited. 
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Status of External Finance Assistance: 

The external financial assistance for Chennai Metro Phase II Project is provided by Bi/Multilateral 
banks viz. JICA, ADB, AIIB and NDB. The status of funding follows. 

i.	 Loan agreement signed on 21/12/2018 with Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA).
The total loan amount is 3,57,476 million Japan Yen. Tranche 1 Loan Agreement has already 
been signed and the loan has been effectuated from 04/04/2019 onwards. Further, the second 
tranche of the loan was also signed on 31/03/2022. 

ii.	 Loan assistance from Asian Development Bank (ADB) - 780.31 US Millon Dollar - The loan 
agreement was signed on 29/12/2022 and the loan effectuated from 21/03/2023 onwards. 

iii.	 Loan assistance from Asian Infrastructure Investment Bank (AIIB) – 795.42 US Millon Dollar - 
Corridor 4 funding loan agreement was signed on 26/10/2021 and the loan effectuated from 
23/11/2022. Balance Corridor 5 funding loan agreement was signed on 07/06/2023 and the 
loan effectuated from 10/07/2023 onwards. 

iv.	 Loan assistance from New Development Bank (NDB) – 346.72 US Millon Dollar - Loan 
negotiation meeting was held on 04/11/2022 and the loan agreement signed on 14/07/2023.

Funding Pattern of CMRL Phase – II (As recommended by PIB)

Sources
Amount             

(` in Crore)
Percentage (%)

GoI – Equity 5,407.4 11.2
GoI – Subordinate Debt 2,017.5 4.2
GoI Share sub total 7,424.9 15.4
GoTN – Equity 5,407.4 11.2
GoTN – Subordinate Debt 2,017.5 4.2
GoTN Share sub total 7,424.9 15.4
Loan Assistance from Multilateral / Bilateral agencies 33,593.5 69.2
Sub Total 48,443.3 100
Subordinate Debt of GoTN for land, R&R, State Taxes and 
Others 13,339.4

IDC for loan and Front End Fee by GoTN 1,403.7

Total 63,246.4

PROJECT PROGRESS:

All the preliminary activities for the project has been completed, general consultant and design 
consultants are in place and the construction work for all the three corridors is progressing as per 
plan. 
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Tender Status

The entire Civil works for the Phase – II project are split into 24 packages which includes the track 
works and the System works are divided into 36 packages. The details of the packages and the 
award status are given below:

Civil Package – Total number of Package: 19 Nos. Awarded: 18 Nos (including Depot)

PHASE-II CIVIL PACKAGE

Sl.no Description Total number 
of Package Awarded Remarks

1 Corridor 3 9 Nos 9 Nos Work is in progress
2 Corridor 4 5 Nos 5 Nos Work is in progress

3 Corridor 5 5 Nos 4 Nos Work is in progress for 4 packages and 
Evaluation in progress for Balance 1 package. 

	� Track Package – Total number of Package: 5 nos. Awarded: 5 nos.

PHASE II - TRACK PACKAGE
Sl. 
No.

CORRIDOR DESCRIPTION AWARDED TO LOA

1 C4

Supply, installation, testing and 
commissioning of track works between 
light house and poonamallee byepass 
and poonamallee depot

M/s. Ircon 
International 
Limited

10-01-2022

2 C3&C5

Supply, installation, testing and 
commissioning of track works between 
CMBT (excluding) and ELCOT(including) 
in corridor 5 -upto circular connection 
to corridor-3 and (b) elevated section 
between Sholinganallur (excluding) to 
Sipcot(including) in corridor 3

M/s. L&T Limited 25-07-2022

3 C3&C5 Supply of Rails JICA corridor
M/s. Mitsui & 
Co.Ltd

05-09-2022

4 C5
Supply installation, testing & 
commissioning of track works between 
CMBT to Madhavaram Milk colony

M/s. KEC-VNC 
(JV)

01-11-2022

5 C3

Supply, Installation testing & 
commissioning of track of from 
Madhavaram Milk colony to 
Sholinganallur

M/s. L&T Limited 22-12-2022
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PHASE II - CIVIL PACKAGE
Sl. 
No.

CORRIDOR DESCRIPTION AWARDED TO LOA

1 C3
Construction of approximate nine (09) km Twin Bored 
Tunnels from Venugopal Nagar station to Kellys station

M/s. TATA Projects 
Limited

12-05-2021

2 C3
Construction of approximate twelve (12) km Twin 
Bored Tunnels from Kellys 
station to Taramani Road in station 

M/s. L&T Limited 12-05-2021

3 C3
Construction of Underground station from 
Madhvaram Milk Colony to Perambur Metro

M/s. Dineshchandra - 
SOMA JV

02-06-2023

4 C3
Construction of Underground station from 
Ayanavaram to Kellys

M/s. TATA Projects 
Limited

02-06-2023

5 C3
Construction of Underground station from KMC to 
Royapettah Govt.Hospital

M/s. Rail Vikas Nigam 
Limited

20-06-2023

6 C3
Construction of Underground station from 
Radhkrishnan Salai to Adyar Junction 

M/s. Rail Vikas Nigam 
Limited

20-06-2023

7 C3
 Construction of Underground station from Adyar 
Depot to Taramani

M/s. Rail Vikas Nigam 
Limited

20-06-2023

8 C3
Construction of Elevated Metro Stations from Nehru 
Nagar to Sholinganallur

M/s. L&T Limited 23-05-2022

9 C3
Construction of Elevated Metro Station from 
Sholinganallur to Siruseri SI PCOT

M/s. Rail Vikas Nigam 
Limited 

10-01-2023

10 C4
Construction of Elevated Metro Stations from Power 
House to Porur Junction

M/s. L&T Limited 12-05-2021

11 C4
Construction of Elevated Metro Stations from Chennai 
Byepass Crossing to Poonamallee Bypass 

M/s. HCC-KEC JV 
Consortium

12-05-2021

12 C4 Construction of Depot at Poonamalle  M/s. ALT IS-VCL JV 20-10-2021

13 C4
Consrtuction of Undergrond Metro stations from 
Light House to Bharathidasan Road

M/s. ITD Cementation 
India Limited

12-01-2022

14 C4
Construction of Undergrond Metro stations from 
Boar Club to Kodambakkam metro

M/s. ITD Cementation 
India Limited

12-01-2022

15 C5
Constructuion of Elevated Metro station from Assissi 
Nagar to Koyambedu

 M/s. L&T Limited 01-11-2021

16 C5
Construction of Elevated Metro Stations from Grain 
Market to Puzhuthivakkam

M/s. L&T Limited 01-11-2021

17 C5
Construction of Elevated Metro Stations from 
Madipakkam to Elcot

M/s. HCC-KEC JV 
Consortium

12-11-2021

18 C5 Construction of De of at Madhavaram M/s URC Limited 03-12-2021
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System Package – Total number of Package: 36 Nos. Awarded: 12 Nos. The awarded contract 
packages include 

1.	 Signalling for all corridors, Telecom, Rolling stock, traction and E&M, Lift, Radio, PSD for 
Corridor – 4

2.	 Traction – Balance Corridor 3 & 5

3.	 Poonamallee Depot Equipment

4.	  JICA - traction packages

	� Corridor 3- Madhavaram Milk Colony to SIPCOT Siruseri

Corridor 3 comprising a total alignment length of 45.8km from Madhavaram Milk Colony to Siruseri 
Sipcot will be spanning across the north-to-south direction of Chennai city and has a total of 30 
underground stations and 20 elevated stations. 

Progress of Underground including station from Madhavaram Milk Colony to Taramani

Two Tunnel contracts for 21 km long between Madhavaram Milk Colony to Taramani were awarded 
and construction works are in full swing for these contracts. There will be a total of 15 TBMs 
working in corridor 3 for building the extensive network of underground tunnels and these TBMs 
shall be launched and retrieved multiple times till completion from the shafts at various locations. 

The Tunnel Boring Machines utilized in Chennai Metro Rail Project Phase II 
Corridor 3 is named after Mountains and rivers. The names of Tunnel Boring 
Machines utilized on this route are as follows :

SL.
NO PACKAGE TBM NO TBM NAME FROM TO UL/DL

1

C3-TU01

S96 Nilgiri Madhavaram Milk 
Colony 

Madhavaram 
High Road UL

2 S97 Podhigai Madhavaram Milk 
Colony 

Madhavaram 
High Road DL

3 S98 Anaimalai Madhavaram Milk 
Colony Venugopal Nagar UL

4 S1331A Kalvarayan Aynavaram Perambur UL

5 S99 Servarayan Madhavaram Milk 
Colony Venugopal Nagar DL

6 S81B Kolli Aynavaram Otteri UL

7 S1330A Melagiri Aynavaram Perambur DL
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SL.
NO PACKAGE TBM NO TBM NAME FROM TO UL/DL

8

C3-TU02

HK-S-1327 Kaveri Greenways South Adyar Junction DL

9 HK-S-1328 Adyar Greenways South Adyar Junction UL

10 HK-S-1326 Noyyal Greenways North Mandaveli DL

11 CRCHI-DZ 
1040 Siruvani Chetpet South Sterling DL

12 HK-S-1329 Vaigai Greenways North Mandaveli UL

13 Robbins 
-XRE 408 Bhavani Chetpet North KMC DL

14 CRCHI-
DZ1041 Palar Chetpet South Sterling UL

15 Robbins 
-XRE 409 Thamirabharani Chetpet North KMC UL

Out of 15 TBMs, 7 TBMs are launched, and segment erection is in progress. The balance 8 TBMs 
will progressively start tunneling operations in the next 8 months’ time. Currently, both Upline and 
Downline together 2.85 km segment erection works completed. TBM S9– “Anaimalai” achieved 
First Breakthrough after completing tunneling between Madhavaram Milk Colony to Venugopal 
Nagar on 07.06.2023

 TBM Breakthrough  Tunnel Ring Between MMC to Venugopal Nagar

For Underground stations (30 nos), Diaphragm Wall (D’wall) works are in progress. LOA was 
awarded for the balance work in the underground station and mobilization work is in progress.

Progress of Elevated Corridor – from Nehru Nagar to SIPCOT Siruseri Metro

Two contracts for a 19 km long elevated viaduct comprising 19 stations between Nehru Nagar to 
SIPCOT Siruseri were awarded, and construction works are in full swing. 
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Okkiyam Maduvu Piling work 

	� Corridor 4: Lighthouse to Poonamallee Bypass 

Corridor 4 is an east-west alignment for a length of 26.1 km connecting the beachfront from Light 
House station to the Depot at Poonamallee has 12 underground stations and 18 elevated stations.  

Progress of Underground Corridor – from Lighthouse to Kodambakkam Powerhouse.

Two contracts for 10 km long tunneling including the construction of 9 underground stations 
between Lighthouse to Kodambakkam metro were awarded and D’wall construction work is in 
progress.  There will be a total of 4 TBMs in corridor 4 and all of them have arrived at the site and 
the launch of the same is in progress.  The first TBM is expected to be launched during the first 
week of Sep’23.

The names of Tunnel Boring Machines utilized on this route are as follows.

SL.NO PACKAGE TBM NO TBM NAME FROM TO UL/DL

1
C4-UG01

S1352A Flamingo Light House Kutchery Road DL

2 S1073B Eagle Light House Kutchery Road UL

3
C4-UG02

S1074B Peacock Pangal Park Boat club DL

4 S1075B Pelican Pangal Park Boat club UL
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Lighthouse Launching Shaft

Progress of Elevated Corridor – from Kodambakkam Powerhouse to Poonamallee Bypass 

Two contracts for a 16 km long elevated viaduct comprising 18 stations between Kodambakkam 
Powerhouse to Poonamallee Bypass were awarded, and construction works are in full swing. 

Porur Bypass Station

Construction of Poonamallee Depot: Contract awarded, and work is in progress. Test track work 
completed. Piling and administrative building construction work is in progress.
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	� Corridor 5 – Madhavaram Milk Colony to Sholinganallur

Corridor 5 also begins at Madhavaram Milk Colony and connects through Koyambedu, Porur, 
Alandur, and other residential/commercial development of the city to Shollinganallur for a total 
length of 47 km with 6 underground stations and 42 elevated stations.  

Progress of Elevated Corridor – from Madhavaram Milk Colony to Sholinganallur

Three contracts for a 41 km long elevated viaduct comprising 40 stations between Madhavaram 
Milk Colony to Sholinganallur were awarded and construction works are in progress.

    
Vanuvampet Pier Kovilambakkam Viaduct 
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Progress of Underground Corridor from Retteri to Villivakkam

The tender called for the construction of Underground Station – 6 nos including tunneling and is 
expected to be awarded shortly. 4 nos of TBMs will be working on this package and the name of 
the TBMs are Kurinji, Mullai, Marudham, and Neidhal respectively.

Construction of Madhavaram Depot: Contract awarded, and mobilization works completed. 
Depot central store & Stabling shed1 is completed and shed 2 constructions are in progress. Test 
Track preparation work is in progress.

SPECIAL PROJECT WORKS:

1.	 Underground Commuter Amenities Centre at Shenoy Nagar Station: 

The Commuter amenity centre is to give its neighbourhoods their vertebrates back by recreating 
the Park.  Basement 1 serves as the Parking level. Two wheelers parking zones and four wheelers 
zones separately. 893 two-wheelers and 404 four-wheelers are proposed.  Basement 2 serves 
commuters’ amenity area, which includes retail areas and a food court. The services for the 
basement floors are provided on the respective levels. 

Space planning is done in such a way  that the street level is divided into various zones addressing 
all age groups as kids, teens, office goers, and elderly people, by providing different types of 
activities such as Tot Lot, Children’s playground, public gathering space, open-air theatre, play 
courts such as basketball & badminton court, yoga & meditation areas, jogging tracks, etc. 
Wall art, murals/landscape elements at various zones are proposed. Also, Miyawaki Concept 
Forest is planned at four corners of the park, by grouping various indigenous species of plants 
together. The park shall serve as a breathing space amidst the concrete jungle. The park would 
be designed as a Thematic Park with the creation of an eco-friendly environment, climatic 
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responsiveness, use of innovative technologies, and making it suitable for the differently-
abled. The park will serve as an identity and add value to the residents. 

As Multi-Modal Integration and Transit Oriented Development go hand in hand, the 
development of a Commuter Amenity Centre, as a part of the Shenoy Nagar Metro Station, 
aids in the creation of non-motorized traffic and easy accessibility between them. 

The restoration of Shenoy nagar park was completed and Inaugurated by the Honourable 
Chief Minister of Tamil Nadu on 04.04.2023. Underground commuter amenities are nearing 
completion. The park and underground facilities has been developed with the initial financial 
support of Rs.189 crore from CMDA. 

2.	 Central Square, Chennai Multi-Modal Integration Development: 

A Multi-Modal integration hub around Central Metro Station including underground parking, 
passenger facilities, MRTS stations, sub-urban stations, Chennai Central Station, Bus bays 
with private modes of transport, and development of commuter amenities in the premises of 
Madras Medical College, Rajiv Gandhi Hospital, Ripon building and Victoria Hall. Segregation 
of vehicular and pedestrian traffic, reduction in traffic conflict points, seamless connectivity 
through various modes of transport, abundant parking for passengers and public transport, 
and separate pickup and drop-offs are some of the key objectives, thus creating last-mile 
connectivity.  

Multi-modal integration at Central Metro Station and the formation of Central Square in the 
Chennai Central area would integrate various modes of public transport such as railways, 
sub-urban lines, MRTS, metro rail, Pedestrians, and MTC thus creating a seamless passage of 
passengers, thus becoming the first of its kind and “AN ICONIC LANDMARK PROJECT 
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2.1	 Horticulture and Landscaping work: The landscaping work is fully Completed and 
Inaugurated by the Honourable Chief Minister of Tamil Nadu on 30-03-2022. 

2.2	 Construction of Two Subways on the Poonamallee High Road: 

2.2.1	 Subway-1 (in front of Central Railway Station) was completed and 
Inaugurated by the Honourable Chief Minister of Tamil Nadu on 
30-03-2022. 

2.2.2	 Subway-2 (Evening Bazaar Road junction) The works are completed and expected 
to be operational shortly.

2.3	 Phase I- Underground Car /Two Wheeler parking (1st, 2nd level – Two Wheeler 
parking; 3rd, 4th level – Four Wheeler parking) 

Transit-oriented Development - Multi-Modal integration hub with the Transit Oriented 
Development would increase the accessibility of Central Metro Station by creating 
pedestrian and Non-Motorised Transport friendly infrastructure that benefits a large 
number of people, thereby increasing the ridership and improving the economic and 
financial viability.  

The construction of 3 basements + Ground Floor is under process, and at present 90% 
of the work is completed. Civil - Structural & finishing work is in progress and expected 
to be completed by the end of Nov’23. (Without rack parking system). The underground 
parking and beutification and auxiliary facilities above the ground has been developed 
with financial support of Rs.389 crore from CMDA.  
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3.	 Metro Head Quarters at Nandanam:  

CMRL Head Quarters called “Metros” has been constructed on a sprawling 8.96 acres of 
land allotted by the State Government adjacent to Nandanam Metro Station on Anna Salai an 
important arterial road. The iconic 12 storied building is unique in its shape and architecture, 
incorporating several green building elements in line with the platinum standards of Indian 
Green Building Council (IGBC). 

Some of the key Architectural and Design features of the said development are detailed below: 

	� The admin building is provided with an Operational Control Centre (OCC) for Phase-I &  
Phase-II to monitor operational activities from Head Quarters. This would act as backup OCC 
in the event of failure in the main OCC at Koyambedu Depot and also for disaster management 
services.

	� The Curvilinear forms of architecture of the building has a vital influence on environment-
behaviour in terms of promoting better communication, encouraging movement, enhancing 
social experience, increasing pleasure and relieving sense of distance and dissolving social 
boundaries. 

	� The building has an elliptical atrium with a tensile roof at central core which allows for ample 
natural lighting within the building. The oval shaped atrium with Skylight also helps to achieve the 
maximum daylighting throughout the building thereby reducing the artificial lighting load and 
energy consumption.

	� The shape of the Atrium helps to achieve the free-flowing lines without any corners thereby 
making the space and wall surfaces more contiguous. The sides of Atrium is cladded with glass 
which allows natural light and aluminium composite panel (ACP) in such a way that concrete 
surfaces are not visible from outside. 

	� Atrium cladding is designed in a unique shape helps in achieving optimal internal movement.

	� Curvilinear shape provides better aerodynamic & free forms for high rise structural system, 
energy efficiency, reduction in structural weight and reduces the effects of wind & seismic loads.

	� This building is an Energy Efficient which conforms Platinum Green rating as per Indian Green 
Building Council.  

	� Also, the construction materials used in the building consists of high-performance unitised glass 
system and Autoclaved Aerated Concrete block (AAC blocks) helps in reducing the heat gain 
within the building thereby reducing the AC load. VRF System used for the AC helps further 
reducing the power consumption.

	� Electrical Vehicle Charging facility for 2 Wheelers and 4 Wheelers provided in Parking.

“MetroS” was inaugurated by the Honorable Union Minister of Housing and Urban affairs,  
Mr. Hardeep Singh Puri and the Honorable Chief Minister of Tamil Nadu Mr.  M.K. Stalin on 
27.10.2022. Few floors of the MetroS will be leased out to various Govt. departments / corporations 
for possible monetisation of the developed asset. 
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4.	 Integrated Development at Kathipara (URBAN SQUARE)

The Kathipara Urban Square, under the clover leaf shaped flyover spread over 5.9 lakh sq.ft., 
the Urban Square is divided into four zones. The parking lot has space for 128 cars, 340 two-
wheelers and eight bus bays. The Urban Square provides the option to relax, dine and shop in 
the interval between changing trains or buses in Alandur to the passengers. The Urban Square 
was inaugurated by the Hon’ble Chief Minister of Tamil Nadu on 16-12-2021 

The Salient & Unique Features of Phase II

Elevated Section

	� CMRL will have a Double-decker line & station standing in a single pillar for a stretch of about  
5 km. The double-decker stretch will have four stations developed at two levels, Alwarthirunagar, 
Valasaravakkam, Karambakkam and Alapakkam, and there will be a common concourse (ticketing 
level) with two different platforms. To execute the same, a special Launching Girder is fabricated 
and ready for use. 

	� Many Balanced Cantilever method spans are adopted as special spans to suit the site conditions. 
Out of all, the most challenging location is Kathipara Junction. 5 spans continuous BCM 
(1 x 58m + 2 x 100m + 1 x 95m + 1 x 60m) with a 125m radius curve.

	� Integrating with State Highway flyover at Thoraipakkam, Sholinganallur, Kattupakkam, 
Majambakkam & MIOT flyover location. 
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Underground Section

	� Stacked station: CMRL has planned to go with underground stations with a stacked-up platform 
design at locations where the width of the roads is as narrow as 10m. Pattalam, Thirumayilai, 
Kutchery, Alwarpet, Bhardhidhasan road stations are with staked tunnels.

	� Intersection of Tunnel:  At Kilpauk, Thousand light, and Nandanam, Phase II tunnels are passing 
below the Phase I running tunnels. More challenging to execute the same.

	� Crossing of Adyar River:  Corridor 3 crosses Adyar River near Adyar Junction (UG). The Crown 
of the Tunnel is 17 m below the bed level.

	� Station beneath the flyover at RK Salai, due to the curved orientation of the restricted road and 
the densely built-up neighborhood.

	� As a part of Multi-Modal Integration, the Phase-II Network will be integrated with other public 
transport modes namely Suburban Rail, MRTS, City Bus service, etc. at 21 different locations to 
ensure hassle-free and seamless connectivity.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS 

﻿

Ridership and earnings before lockdown & Post lockdown

Parameter March 2021 
(Post lockdown) March 2022 March 2023

Operational Network length 54 km 54 km 54.6 Km

Avg. Ridership per day 90,804 Passengers
1,44,155 

Passengers
2,26,319 

Passengers
Avg. Fare box earnings per day `26.25 Lakhs `42.67 Lakhs `63.36 Lakhs

Avg. earnings per Passenger `29/- `29.60/- `28/-
Avg. Parking earnings per day `3.07 Lakhs `4.07 Lakhs `5.84 Lakhs
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Ridership (2021-22) (in Lakhs)

Ridership (2022-23) (in Lakhs)
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Passenger boarding - (2021-22) (in Lakhs)

Passenger boarding - (2022-23) (in Lakhs)

Non-Fare Box Revenue: 

As part of Non-Fare box revenue initiatives, which is used to subsidize Operational Expenses, CMRL 
Business development wing has already initiated various schemes such as licensing of retail/kiosk/
ATM spaces at all stations, Inside and Outside Station Advertisements, Advertisement on and in 
trains, leasing of Spare OFC Cables, Space for Telecom Services (BTS, Towers etc.) semi naming 
Rights of stations, etc. It is brought out that the revenue earned from the Non Fare Box for the 
financial year 2022-2023 is `52.2 Cr. During last financial year i.e., 2022-23 around ` 30 Cr value 
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of Business Development contracts have been awarded and revenue flow will start after completion 
of fitout and providing basic facilities like power and water connection. Further, in order to augment 
the Non Fare box revenue through detailed Marketing cum strategic Business plans for future and 
also understand the future market conditions including completion of transactions, CMRL has 
recently empanelled Transaction advisory consultancy firms for property development. During last 
financial year, online Rolling Tendering process and Forward Auction has been introduced to achieve 
transparency in the tendering process, equal opportunity to various vendors and augmenting 
additional revenue for CMRL. During the year CMRL has also carried out vendors meet at its 
Corporate Office i.e., METROS to interact with various vendors and addressing their issues and 
challenges to make them feel as a partner in the transformation process of CMRL. The feedback 
was quite encouraging. 

Commuters Survey for better service: 

In order to improvise Metro Operations and for gathering statistical information related to suggestions 
or feedback from Metro passengers, a commuter survey was conducted in all 40 stations. Totally 
9701 samples were collected based on various questions. Commuters’ requirements were identified 
from this survey for better service to metro passengers. Accordingly, an action plan has been 
prepared and the requirements identified in the survey is being implemented in a phased manner. 

 

General: 

1.	 First time in Indian metro implemented differential parking tariff at major parking lots which 
enables discounted parking fee for metro commuters and normal tariff for non-metro users.

2.	 By analysing the peak demand section (PHPDT) in the operating line, short loops train services 
are introduced to meet the demand.

3.	 As per growing passenger demand the train services on weekend (Sunday) has been advanced 
from 5:00 hrs.

4.	 To encourage regular commuters and to attract new commuters, promotional schemes with 
attractive prizes for TOP 10 regular commuters and lucky draw winners’ scheme has been 
announced and prizes were distributed every month during 2022-23.
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5.	 Metro hunt program has been organized jointly with Rotary Club in Alandur Metro Station.  

6.	 The following tender related to operation department has been evaluated and finalized: 

A.	 Tender for Housekeeping Services at Central Square. 

B.	 Tender for Station Management Services. New procedure to monitor the housekeeping 
services has been introduced in this tender. KPI are fixed in the tender document to maintain 
cleanliness in international lever. 

C.	 Tender for Station In-Charge.

D.	 Tender for Train Operation. 

By above efforts, parking earnings at Metro stations has also been significantly improved by 30%, 
ridership increased by 22% and Farebox earnings increased by approx. 18% when compared with 
previous financial year. 

Last mile connectivity initiatives:

In an endeavour to provide the Last Mile Connectivity to passengers travelling in Metro Trains. 
CMRL in association with Uber, Taxi Service Platform and Rapido Bike Taxi Service Platform, have 
launched last mile connectivity solutions at the Metro Stations.

A. Additional MTC – Minibus Service Inaugurated

As part of providing several last mile connectivity facilities to public, CMRL in association with 
MTC has been providing Mini-bus service across Metro Rail Corridor for the benefit of passengers. 
Presently, the Minibus services is operating from 10 Metro Stations in 11 routes and so far, 23 lakh 
passengers have benefitted from this service.
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B. Launch of Additional Passenger M-Auto Pride/LEGGO LMC Services:

Electric Three-Wheeler services launched at 
St. Thomas Mount Metro Station. In addition 
to the above, 10 nos. of EV three wheelers 
have been dedicated to public.

C. Fasttrack

Implemented exclusive Metro connect feeder 
service from Alandur Metro to DLF Cybercity 
through tri party arrangement with DLF 
cybercity & Fasttrack. 

D. Uber Autos at Five Metro Stations:

The last mile connectivity measures will provide 
pick up and drop off zones for Uber Autos at five 
Metro Stations in Chennai. During the first phase 
of this initiative, the exclusive designated zones are 
set up at Guindy, Alandur, Egmore, Koyambedu, 
and Thirumangalam Metro Stations, enabling 
users to have an enhanced and seamless commute 
experience. Uber will also provide ground support 
at these designated zones to ensure riders have 
access to Uber Autos round the clock.

E. CMRL EV Buggy Free LMC Service:

In order to cater for the needs of CMRL customers to multi model integration, CMRL has procured 
10 nos. of battery-operated Golf cart.  
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The free buggy service provided in the above metro stations and locations utilized by Metro 
passengers /public and approximately more than 4,80,000 passengers/Public utilized the free 
Service. 

These vehicles have been deployed in 4 CMRL metro station from the fitness issued dates and 
operated by the trained drivers. The stations and destinations offering free buggy services are listed 
below:

1.	 Airport Metro and Domestic - International Airport terminals.

2.	 St. Thomas Mount Metro Station – From Station Entrance to MKN Road to facilitate needy 
passengers and passengers with luggage.

3.	 Dr.MGR Chennai Central Metro -From Central Square to Suburban railway station and Southern 
Railway central station to facilitate needy passengers and passengers with luggage.

4.	 Wimco Nagar Metro – From SWN to Wimco Nagar Suburban station.

F. Metro Connect LMC service for Special Events:

Metro Connect free feeder service provided for  
Arjith singh Music concert from Nandanam Metro to YMCA Ground
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Metro Connect free feeder service provided for AR Rahman Music concert 
from Central Metro to Nehru Indoor Stadium

 

Metro Connect free feeder service provided for the event of  
3rd ODI at Govt Estate Metro to MAC Stadium, Chepauk

  

On the occasion of IPL matches at Chennai CMRL has signed MoU with CSK for providing metro 
transport facility to Cricket fans on the date of matches. The IPL tickets have been mapped with 
Metro AFC system to recognize that as metro travel ticket. It was a good success and CMRL is 
intending to do similar arrangements for such big events across Chennai to augment metro ridership. 
Apart from that, during the entire IPL season 14 CMRL in association with Mark Metro installed 
big screen at important metro stations for screening of IPL matches and it was also attracted huge 
crowd during the IPL season. 
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To promote ridership in Metros, CMRL in association with M/s Mark 
Metro (Advertising agency) is recognizing the highest monthly ridership 
through lucky draw coupon.     

OTHER INITIATIVES

To improve the fiscal systems and to focus on digitization CMRL has 
taken following major initiatives.

a)	  Zero cash balance

b) 	 Swift Accounts with Bank for automatic deposit of daily balance in FD account

c) 	 Waiver of fees for collection of Cash from stations

d) 	 Rolling tender for all BD spaces

e) 	 Forward auction for all BD revenue generating contracts   

f) 	 In the process of implementing software-based Compliance Management System and 
automation of Board Meetings and records. 

g) 	 CMRL started procuring power using open access from Q1 2023-24 and in this regard MoU has 
been signed with M/S NLC India Ltd who has CAT-I Licensee for procurement of Power through 
Open Access. 

ROLL OUT OF OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTER AT MetroS  

CMRL in collaboration with M/s Apollo Hospitals established Occupational Health Center at MetroS 
with 24x7 ambulance facility to take care of routine and emergency requirement of employees and 
associates. 

Passenger Benefits:

A) 	Many new parking lots have been opened to fulfill passengers parking demand. Vehicle parking 
capacity for 250 four-wheeler and 3000 two wheelers have been increased due to this newly 
created parking space.	
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Nanganallur Metro St. Thomas Mount Metro Arumbakkam Metro

Thirumangalam Metro Mannadi Metro Alandur Metro

B)  Existing parking areas have been developed with  
paver blocks which created smooth parking 
experience to passengers.  

C)  Feeding rooms have been opened in the following  
8 metro stations for benefits of women passengers:

D) 	Additional escalators have been opened in few metro stations:

Airport Metro Chennai Central Metro
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E) 	 Non-operational entries in Metro Station has been opened for passenger service. 

Teynampet Metro AG DMS Metro

   

LIC Metro Govt. Estate Metro

   

F) 	 Air-O-Water facility has been provided in the following  
3 Metro Stations for passenger benefit.

1.	 Airport Metro

2.	 Alandur Metro

3.	 Koyambedu Metro

RESERVATION POLICY 

Rules of reservation are being followed for recruitment of candidates for permanent posts. 
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MANPOWER

CMRL is recruiting manpower on the rolls of the Company as well as on contractual basis considering 
the project requirement. The total Executive and Non- Executive manpower as on 31-03-2023 is 
as under.

Executives Non-Executives Total
Permanent 57 292 349
Contractual 174 14 188
On Deputation 27 - 27
TOTAL 258 306 564

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has 13 Directors on the Board of which 5 Directors are 
nominated by Government of India including the Chairman, 5 Directors nominated by Government 
of Tamil Nadu including the Managing Director and 3 Whole Time Directors 

BOARD SUB-COMMITTEES

The constitution of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee as on 31st March, 2023 is covered in the Corporate Governance 
Report.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

In accordance with Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year 2022-23, the 
Board of Directors had 3 Meetings and 10 Sub-Committee Meetings. The details of these meetings 
are as follows:

Description No. of 
Meetings Dates of Meetings

Board 3 04-07-2022, 17-08-2022 & 14-12-2022
Audit Committee 3 11-04-2022, 12-08-2022 & 08-12-2022
Nomination & Remuneration Committee 1 13-02-2023

Project Management Review Committee 6 11-04-2022, 16-05-2022, 11-07-2022, 
12-08-2022, 08-11-2022, 08-12-2022

Changes among the Directors during the FY 2022-23:

	� Shri M A Siddique, IAS (DIN 07955771) is appointed as the Managing Director of CMRL with 
effect from 12-06-2022 vice Shri Pradeep Yadav, IAS (DIN 06565423)
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	� Shri Pradeep Yadav, IAS (DIN 06565423), Principal Secretary to Government, Highway and 
Minor Ports Department, Government of Tamil Nadu is appointed as a Nominee Director with 
effect from 12-06-2022 vice Shri Dheeraj Kumar, IAS (DIN 00936284) 

	� Smt Sujatha Jayaraj (DIN 07531722) ceased to be Director (Finance) on 16-05-2022 on 
completion on the tenure of the contract. 

	� Dr Prasanna Kumar Acharya (DIN 09625170) is appointed as the Director (Finance) of CMRL 
with effect from 01-06-2022 

	� Selvi Apoorva, IAS (DIN  03006238) Principal Secretary to Government, Housing and Urban 
Development Department is appointed as a Nominee Director with effect from 02-12-2022 vice 
Shri Hitesh Kumar S Makwana, IAS (DIN 03290629)

Changes in Directorship during the Current Year 2023-24:

	� Shri T Udayachandran, IAS, (DIN 02357295) Principal Secretary to Government, Finance 
Department is appointed as a Nominee Director with effect from 13-05-2023 vice Shri N 
Muruganandam, IAS (DIN 00540135)

	� Dr J Radhakrishnan, IAS, (DIN 00679734) Additional Chief Secretary to Government / 
Commissioner, Greater Chennai Corporation is appointed as a Nominee Director with effect 
from 13-05-2023 vice Shri Gagandeep Singh Bedi, IAS (DIN 01354652)

	� Shri Ramesh Chand Meena, IAS, (DIN 08009394) Additional Chief Secretary to Government, 
Special Initiatives Department, Government of Tamil Nadu is appointed as a Nominee Director 
with effect from 01-08-2023 vice Dr J Radhakrishnan, IAS, (DIN 00679734)         

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Your Company has the following Key Managerial Personnel as on the date of the report.

Name Designation
Shri M A Siddique, IAS Managing Director
Shri Prasanna Kumar Acharya Director (Finance) / Chief Financial Officer
Shri T Archunan Director (Projects)
Shri Rajesh Chaturvedi Director (Systems & Operations)
Smt Andal P Company Secretary

HIGH POWER COMMITTEE (HPC)

The HPC under the Chairmanship of Chief Secretary, Government of Tamil Nadu, has met in periodic 
intervals and 25 meetings have been held so far. The HPC met on 9th November, 2022 during the 
FY 2022-23. 
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STATUTORY AUDITORS	

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India, New Delhi, has appointed M/s P K K G Balasubramaniam 
& Associates, Chartered Accountants, Chennai, as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the 
Financial Year 2022-23. The report of the Statutory Auditors is annexed herewith.  

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s SVJS & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries, are appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 
2022-23. The report of the Secretarial Auditors is annexed herewith. 

INTERNAL AUDITOR 

M/s VRKSJP & Co., Chartered Accountants are the internal auditors, for Financial Years 2022-23 
& 2023-24 to conduct internal audit of the Company. The functioning of internal auditors of the 
Company and their reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES:

 Details regarding technology absorption and conservation of energy required under Section 
134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8, of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014     

1. Renewable Energy- Solar Power 

CMRL has so far commissioned 6.4 MWp Solar Power at its Koyambedu Depot roof top and Ground 
level, Elevated Metro Stations Roofs, Under Ground Metro Stations, Ancillary Buildings etc. with 
average per day generation of 23,000 units. So far 358 lakhs units have been generated. Total 
carbon emission so far avoided is 28,610 Tonnes of CO2. These solar plants have been installed on 
RESCO model with no capital investment by CMRL. 

2. Energy Conservation and Technology absorption 

a) Regenerative Braking in train 

	� CMRL trains are capable of regenerative braking up to the speed of 5kmph. During regenerative 
braking, the energy is regenerated and fed back to the system, which is consumed by other 
trains and equipment. 

	� 32% (average) of the energy is regenerated, which is one of the highest among the world 
metros 
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b) Energy efficient equipment and methods 

	� CMRL is using energy efficient equipment and fixtures in stations – LED lights, energy efficient 
compressors, motors, 3 speed escalators (stop, creep and run) with auto operation, usage of 
only star rated equipment. 

	� Air Cooled Chiller in HVAC, which is more energy efficient has been adopted for HVAC 
system. 

	� Vertical Fan for Tunnel Ventilation System: Vertical fan design has been adopted, which is one 
of the unique system in metro, resulting in huge space saving and energy saving. 

	� In depot, mini portable compressor are used on need basis, instead of centralized large 
compressor air system. This system gives considerable energy saving. 

c)  Provision of PSD 

	� Reduces the penetration of dust from the tunnel. 

	� Increase in comfort for Passenger. 

	� Reduction in noise level generated by train. 

	� It saves 33 %of the air conditioning load, thus reducing the carbon footprint of the underground 
station. 

Saving / optimization of Energy cost. 

Electrical Energy is purchased on open market through Indian Energy Exchange (IEX) on bidding 
basis, whenever the cost of energy and landed cost is cheaper than TANGEDCO energy cost. This 
scheme will result in huge saving in the overall energy cost. 

Proposed work for green energy initiatives in future 

It is proposed to install solar panels and roof top system in the upcoming Phase 2 project of CMRL 
like what has been done in Phase-I project. 

Energy efficient equipment specification are being incorporated in the tendering stage itself to 
achieve energy efficiency. 

CMRL Phase-II Trains will be with regenerative braking and with the minimum benchmark energy 
efficiency of 48 kwh per 1000 GTKM

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO					            
 								        ` in Crores

1.	 Total Foreign Exchange Earned			   Nil        (Prev. Year - Nil)

2.	 Total Foreign Exchange used				   49.50   (Prev. Year- 159.72) 
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SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate Companies as at the end of the financial 
year under review as also on the date of this report. 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not invited deposits from Public under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS AND GUARANTEE 

During the year under review, the company has not 

a.	 given any loan to any person or other body corporate

b.	 given any guarantee or provided security in connection with any loan to any other body 
corporate or person; and

c.	 acquired by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body 
corporate, as prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state 

1.	 In the preparation of accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along 
with proper explanation relating to material departures.

2.	 Such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statement are selected and 
applied consistently and judgments and estimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year 
and of the profit/loss of the company for that period.

3.	 The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safe guarding the 
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

4.	 The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

5.	 The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliances with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and the systems were adequate and operating effectively.

6.	 The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 
such controls are operating effectively and reviewed periodically.

7.	 Necessary declaration with respect of independence is received from the Independent Directors 
of the Company. 

8.	 Independent Directors have complied with the code for Independent Directors prescribed in 
Schedule IV to the Act. 
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ANNUAL RETURN

The annual return as on 31-03-2023 in Form MGT-7 is placed on the company’s website  
www.chennaimetrorail.org

COMMENTS OF THE BOARD ON THE SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ OBSERVATION:

The Company has conducted only three meetings of its Board of Directors during the financial year 
2022-2023. However as per Article 148 of Articles of Association, the company is required to hold 
its Board Meeting in every quarter.

RESPONSE:

Due to administrative reasons, the Board meeting could not be convened before end of the 
quarter ended 31st March, 2023 and could be conducted only on 05-04-2023. However, 
the compliance to convening Board meeting every quarter will be ensured from the current 
FY 2023-24.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Your Company has complied with the requirements of various Corporate Laws. Though the Company 
is not a listed Company, as a measure of best practice and keeping in view the underlying principles 
of Corporate Governance, your Directors place a “Corporate Governance Report” as annexure to 
the Members of the Company. 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI

The Company is complying with the ‘SS-1’ Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors 
and ‘SS-2’ Secretarial Standard on General Meetings.  

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY, VIGIL MECHANISM AND WHISTLE BOWLER POLICY

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to 
key business objectives. The Risk Management Committee is constituted with the three Functional 
Directors. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through 
mitigating actions on a continuing basis and are discussed at the meetings of the Risk Management 
Committee constituted by the Managing Director. The company has a policy for Risk Management 
and the Risk Management framework is being implemented by the Risk Officer.

The Company has a Fraud Prevention Policy and Whistle Blower Policy published in the website of 
the Company.

SAFETY & WELL BEING OF WOMEN

The Company has set up Internal Complaints Committee, (Under Section 4 of the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 comprising a chairperson, 
who is a senior women employee, one External nominee and two others as members. During the 
year under review, no complaints have been received by the committee.
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SOCIAL MEDIA 

The Company has presence on the various social network platforms i.e. Twitter, Facebook and 
Instagram. The Company has used social media as an effective communication platform. 

RIGHT TO INFORMATION (RTI) 

The Company has implemented the provisions of the Right to Information Act, 2005. There is 
1 Central Public Information Officer (CPIO) looking after applications related to various departments 
of the organisation. During the year, 195 RTI applications and 12 Nos. of appeals have been 
processed.

AWARD AND ACCOLADES 

1.	 HR Excellence Award - 2023 from 
People First organisation. The awards 
recognise Leading practices in impactful 
HR strategy adopted by CMRL in Human 
Resource forum.

2.	 Green World Awards 2023 - Silver 
from Green Organisation – London 
United Kingdom. The awards recognize 
environmental initiatives and their 
positive impact to reinforce healthy 
environmental practices.

3.	 TTDC Fair 2023 Award: Chennai Metro 
Rail Pavilion was awarded third place 
in the state Government undertaking 
pavilion at the 47th TTDC Fair 2023

4.	 MOST PREFERRED METRO OF SOUTH 
INDIA UNDER THE RAIL & METRO 
CATEGORY: Received from Urban Infra 
Communication for winning the award 
title “Most Preferred Metro of South 
India” under Rail & Metro Category at 
the 2nd Urban Infra Business Summit & 
Awards 2022 held on 7.11.22 at New 
Delhi 

5.	 CMRL received the award under the category of ‘Leading Practices in Impactful HR Strategy’ 
organised by People first HR Excellence Awards in May 2023
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As the company has not entered into any contracts or arrangements with the related parties referred 
to in section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the form AOC-2 as required in the Rule 8(2) of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is not placed in the Board’s Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance denotes the system of rules, practices and procedures by which a company is 
governed. The Company has adopted the best corporate governance practices and its adherence to 
integrity, governance, transparency and best business practices are extremely high. In the execution 
of its roles, the Company is guided by various statutory enactments applicable to it, especially, 
Companies Act, 2013, CVC Guidelines, Accounting and Secretarial Standards, procurement 
guidelines of funding agencies, regulations prescribed by different regulatory authorities. In addition, 
all the applicable statutes governing the functioning of the Company in respect of Safety, Health, 
Environment, Welfare of the employees as well as those engaged through contractors are also being 
complied with.

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As per the Articles of Association of the Company, strength of the Board shall not be less than 3 
Directors and not more than 16 Directors and they may be either Nominee Directors, or whole-time 
functional Directors or Part-time Directors. 

Constitution of the Board

CMRL is a Government Company within the meaning of Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Presently, 50% of the total issued share capital is held by Government of India and the other 50% 
by Government of Tamil Nadu. Both the Governments have the right to nominate five Directors 
each on the Board. The Directors so appointed either ex-officio in nature or by name. 

Composition of the Board

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has 13 Directors on the Board of which 5 directors are 
nominated by Government of India including the Chairman, 5 Directors Nominated by Government 
of Tamil Nadu including the Managing Director and 3 Whole-Time Directors.

Composition of the Board as on 31-03-2023

S.No Name of the Director Designation

1 Shri Manoj Joshi, IAS Chairman / Nominee Director

2 Shri Jaideep Nominee Director 

3 Shri Radhakrishna Reddy Nominee Director 

4 Shri Sunil Mathur Nominee Director 

5 Shri Bhupender Singh Bodh Nominee Director

6 Shri M A Siddique, IAS Managing Director / Nominee Director  

7 Shri N Muruganandam, IAS Nominee Director 
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S.No Name of the Director Designation

8 Shri Pradeep Yadav, IAS Nominee Director 

9 Shri Gagandeep Singh Bedi, IAS Nominee Director 

10 Selvi Apoorva, IAS Nominee Director 

11 Shri Rajesh Chaturvedi Director (Systems & Operations)

12 Shri T Archunan Director (Projects)

13 Dr Prasanna Kumar Acharya Director (Finance)

1.1	 Responsibilities

The company’s Board of Directors are responsible for and are committed to setting standards of 
conduct at all levels. They are also committed to update these standards, as appropriate, to ensure 
their continuing relevance, effectiveness and responsiveness to the needs of the stakeholders with 
social objectives as also to reflect corporate, legal and regulatory developments. The Board ensures 
that the Company has clear goals and policies for achieving these goals. The Board approved a 
set of guiding principles for the company in the form of Vision, Mission and Core Values. The 
Board oversees the Company’s strategic directions, reviews corporate performance, authorizes and 
monitors strategic decisions, ensures regulatory compliance, safeguards interests of shareholders 
and Social commitments.

1.2	 BOARD/ COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

	 a)   Institutionalized decision making process:

With a view for better corporate governance, setting up systems and procedures for 
advance planning for matters requiring discussion and decision by the Board in an 
informed and efficient manner, the Company has well defined procedures for meetings 
of the Board of Directors and Committees thereof.

	 b)   Scheduling and selection of Agenda items for Board / Committee Meetings:

i)	 The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss, review and decide on the project 
/ other matters of the Company. The Board / Committee meetings are convened 
by giving appropriate notice after obtaining approval of the Chairman of the 
Board / Committee. Detailed agenda, management information reports and other 
explanatory statements are circulated in advance to ensure and facilitate meaningful 
participation in the meetings. However, in case of special and urgent business 
needs, approval is taken by passing resolutions by circulation, as permitted by law, 
which is confirmed in the next meeting. To address specific urgent needs, meetings 
at times, are also being called at shorter notice. 
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ii)	 The detailed notes on the items to be discussed at the Board / Committee meeting 
are prepared by Head of the Departments and submitted to concerned Functional 
Directors for obtaining approval by the Managing Director. Agenda notes normally 
classified as follows-

A) 	 Regular agenda items

i)	 Grant of Leave of Absence

ii)	 Confirmation of the Minutes of the previous Board meeting

iii)	 Action taken report on the Minutes of the previous/earlier meetings

B)	 Agenda Items for approval of the Board

C)	 Agenda items for information of the Board including status on legal cases, land 
acquisition, compliance reports and report on accidents, if any.

iii.	 Duly approved Agenda notes are circulated in advance to enable Directors to 
take an informed decision.

iv.	 Where it is not desirable to attach any document or if the agenda is of a 
sensitive nature, the same is placed on the table at the meeting with the 
approval of the Managing Director. In special and exceptional circumstances, 
additional or supplementary item(s) on the agenda are taken up for discussion 
with permission of the Chairman.

v.	 The meetings are usually held either at the Company’s Registered Office or 
at the Conference Hall at Secretariat, Fort. St George, Chennai 600 009 or 
at the Office of the Chairman and Secretary (HUA), Ministry of Housing and 
Urban Affairs, New Delhi. During the financial year ended 31st March 2023, 3 
Board meetings and 10 Committee Meetings were held. Due to the prevailing 
Covid-19 pandemic meetings are conducted through video conferencing, as 
permitted by the Companies Act, 2013.

vi.	 The Members of the Board have complete access to all information of the 
Company.

vii.	 The Board meetings are conducted in line with the applicable Secretarial 
Standards. 

c)	 Briefing by the Managing Director / Director

At every meeting of the Board, the progress report of the project, key developments 
including status of the project and other important achievements / developments 
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relating to the Company in various areas are placed as one of the regular Agenda and 
Managing Director / Directors makes presentation thereon to the Board Members. The 
Heads of the Departments are also called in to brief the Board and make presentation 
wherever required.

d)	 Recording of minutes of proceedings at the Board Meeting

	 Minutes of the proceedings of each Board Meeting are recorded. The minutes of the 
proceedings are entered in the Minutes Book. The minutes of each Board Meeting 
are submitted for confirmation at its next meeting after these are approved by the 
Chairman. The minutes of committees of the Board are also placed before the Board of 
Directors for information.

e)	 Post Meeting follow-up mechanism

	 The Guidelines for Board and Committee meetings facilitate an effective post meeting 
follow-up, review and reporting process for the decisions taken by the Board and 
committees thereof. Action taken report on the decision / minutes of the previous 
meeting (s) is placed at the immediately succeeding meeting of the Board / Committee 
for noting by the Board / Committee.

f)	 Compliance

	 Every Functional Director/Head of the Department while preparing agenda notes 
ensures adherence to all the applicable provisions of law, rules, guidelines, etc. The 
Compliance Certificate based on the reports received from the departments are placed 
before the Board in each meeting.

During the financial year 2022-23, Three (3) Board Meetings were held on 04-07-2022,  
17-08-2022 and 14-12-2022

Details of designation, number of Board meetings attended, attendance at last AGM are given here 
under.

Sl 
No. Directors

Director 
Identification 
Number (DIN)

Board 
Meetings 

held during 
respective 
tenures of 
Directors

No. of 
Board 

Meeting 
attended

Attendance at 
the last AGM 

held on  
28-09-2022

i. Shri Manoj Joshi, IAS 02103601 3 3 Present
ii. Shri M A Siddique, IAS 07955771 3 3 Present
iii. Shri Jaideep 08558063 3 3 Present
iv. Shri Sunil Mathur 07434150 3 3 Present 
v. Shri Radhakrishna Reddy 08436314 3 2 -
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Sl 
No. Directors

Director 
Identification 
Number (DIN)

Board 
Meetings 

held during 
respective 
tenures of 
Directors

No. of 
Board 

Meeting 
attended

Attendance at 
the last AGM 

held on  
28-09-2022

vi. Shri Bhupender Singh Bodh 09040352 3 2 Present
vii. Shri Pradeep Yadav, IAS 06565423 3 1 -
viii. Shri N Muruganandam, IAS 00540135 3 2 -

ix. Shri Gagendeep Singh Bedi, 
IAS 01354652 3 1 -

x. Shri Hitesh Kumar S 
Makwana, IAS  03290629 2 2 Present

xi. Selvi Apoorva, IAS 03003268 1 - -
xii. Shri T Archunan 07610556 3 3 Present
xiii. Shri Rajesh Chaturvedi 08920648 3 3 Present
xiv. Dr Prasanna Kumar Acharya 09625170 3 3 Present

1.3. 	 Information placed before the Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors delegated the powers to the Managing Director on all routine mat-
ters to manage the day-to-day affairs of the company and certain financial powers with a 
ceiling. In order to enable speedy decision making, the day to day operation of the company 
and also to delegate the responsibility to the senior management team, Schedule of Powers 
(SOP) are followed. Matters, which are beyond the delegated powers of the Managing Di-
rector, are being brought before the Board / respective Sub-Committee as per the existing 
Delegation of Powers and the same inter alia includes the following:

	 Annual budget/s and cash flow statement/s

	 Annual accounts, Directors’ Report etc.
	 Minutes of meetings of all Committees of the Board
	 All proposals which involve change in technology / technology parameters other 

than contemplated in DPR
	 Progress report on Project Implementation
	 Award of large contracts
	 Status of pending legal cases 
	 Status of Arbitration and Adjudication cases
	 Compliance Certificate of Statutory provisions
	 Other materially important information
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2.	 COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board has established the following Committees

i.	 Audit Committee

ii.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

iii.	 O & M Committee

iv.	 Project Management Review Committee

v.	 Property Development Committee

vi.	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

2.1	 AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The constitution, quorum, scope etc. of the Audit Committee is in line with the provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013. All the members of Audit Committee are qualified who have insight to 
interpret and understand financial statements.

A.	 Constitution

The Board, in its 3rd meeting held on 30th June 2008, constituted an Audit Committee in compliance 
with provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 which was re constituted on 28th January 2014 in the 
28th Board Meeting.

As per section 177(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audit Committee shall consist of minimum 
of three directors with independent directors forming majority. It is also specified in the third 
proviso to this section, that every audit committee of a company existing immediately before the 
commencement of the act, shall within one year of such commencement, shall be reconstituted in 
accordance with sub-section (2). The Audit Committee in accordance with the above provisions of 
Companies Act 2013, was reconstituted in the 48th Board Meeting held on 31-10-2016. 

As on 31-03-2023, the Audit Committee consisted of the following members:

1.	 Shri N Muruganandam, IAS	 -	 Chairman of the Committee

2.	 Shri Pradeep Yadav, IAS	 -	 Member

3.	 Shri Jaideep	 -	 Member

Managing Director, Whole-Time Directors, Statutory Auditors, Secretarial Auditors and the Internal 
Auditors are also invited to the Audit Committee Meetings, but they have no right to vote. 

Quorum for the Audit Committee is 1/3rd of the total members (three members) or 2 whichever is 
higher. The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Audit Committee.
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B.	 Scope of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee to have discussions with the auditors periodically about internal control systems, 
the scope of audit including the observations of the auditors and review of financial statements 
before submission to the Board and also to ensure compliance of internal control systems.

The Audit Committee shall have authority to investigate into any matter in relation to the items 
specified under the Companies Act or as may be referred to it by the Board and for this purpose, shall 
have full access to information contained in the records of the Company and external professional 
advice, if necessary.

C.	 The Terms of Reference (TOR) of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1)	 To review the quarterly/annual financial statements before submission to the Board to 
ensure compliance of Internal Control Systems

2)	 To have periodical discussions with auditors about internal control systems, the scope of 
audit including the observations of the auditors

3)	 Recommendation to the Board the fixation of audit fees

4)	 Reviewing performance of internal auditors 

5)	 Reviewing adequacy of the internal control systems

6)	 Discussion with internal auditors and/or auditors any significant findings, management 
response on findings and follow up.

7)	 To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the C&AG audit

8)	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 
auditors

9)	 Any other matter as may be referred by the Board or any other function as mandated 
under Company Law.

D.	 Meetings and attendance

	 Three (3) Meetings of the Audit Committee was held during the Financial Year.

Directors Meetings held during respective 
tenures of Directors

No. of Meeting 
attended

Shri N Muruganandam, IAS 3 3
Shri Pradeep Yadav, IAS 2 2
Shri Jaideep 3 3
Shri Dheeraj Kumar, IAS 1 1
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2.2  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The constitution, quorum, scope etc. of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in line 
with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 

A.	 Constitution: 

As on 31-03-2023, the Nomination and Remuneration consists of the following members:

1.	 Shri Pradeep Yadav, IAS	 -	 Chairman

2.	 Selvi Apoorva, IAS	 -	 Member

3.	 Shri Sunil Mathur	 -	 Member

4.	 Shri RadhaKrishna Reddy	 -	 Member

Quorum for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is 1/3rd of the total members. The 
Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

B.	 The Terms of Reference (TOR) of the Nomination And Remuneration Committee are as 
follows:

1)	 To review the manpower requirement for the company

2)	 To review and recommend the Remuneration policy for the company 

3)	 To review the HR Policy and proposing any amendments

4)	 Training & Development Policy

5)	 Disciplinary matters as per the HR Manual 

6)	 Any other matter as may be referred by the Board

C.	 Meetings and attendance:

One (1) Meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration was held during the Financial Year.

Directors Meeting held during 
respective tenures of Directors

No .of Meeting 
attended

Shri Pradeep Yadav, IAS 1 1
Selvi Apoorva, IAS        1 -
Shri Sunil Mathur	 1 1
Shri RadhaKrishna Reddy                        1 1
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2.3	 OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE COMMITTEE

The constitution, quorum, scope etc. of the Operations and Maintenance Committee is in line with 
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 

A.	 Constitution

As on 31-03-2023, the Operations and Maintenance consists of the following members:

1)	 Shri M A Siddique, IAS	 -	 Chairman

2)	 Shri Radhakrishnan Reddy	 -	 Member

3)	 Shri Bhupender Singh Bodh	 -	 Member

4)	 Shri Gagendeep Singh Bedi, IAS	 -	 Member

5)	 Shri T Archunan	 -	 Member

6)	 Shri Rajesh Chaturvedi	 -	 Member

7)	 Dr Prasanna Kumar Acharya	 -	 Member

Quorum for the Operations and Maintenance Committee is 1/3rd of the total members. The 
Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Operations and Maintenance Committee 

B.	 The Terms of Reference (TOR) of the Operation and Maintenance  Committee are as 
follows:

1)	 Review preparatory study for O&M 

2)	 Review clearances from CMRS and other Statutory Bodies

3)	 Review documentation to be submitted to CMRS

4)	 Review of manpower requirement for O&M activities

5)	 Review income & expenditure due to revenue operations and recommend ways to 
improve profitability.

6)	 Any other matter as may be referred by the Board.

C.	 Meetings and attendance:

The Operations and Maintenance committee meeting was not held during the Financial Year.

2.4  PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The constitution, quorum, scope etc. of the Property Development Committee is in line with the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 
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A.	 Constitution:

As on 31-03-2023, the Property Development Committee consists of the following members:

1)	 Shri M A Siddique, IAS	 -	 Chairman

2)	 Shri Pradeep Yadav, IAS	 -	 Member

3)	 Shri Radhakrishnan Reddy	 -	 Member

4)	 Shri T Archunan	 -	 Member

5)	 Shri Rajesh Chaturvedi	 -	 Member

6)	 Dr Prasanna Kumar Acharya	 -	 Member

Quorum for the Property Development Committee is 1/3rd of the total members. The Company 
Secretary is the Secretary to the Property Development Committee.

B.	 The Terms of Reference (TOR) of the Operation and Maintenance  Committee are as 
follows:

1)	 To identify the property development (PD) projects

2)	 To identify the impediments responsible for delaying the PD projects

3)	 To suggest measure for increasing revenue from PD projects

4)	 Any other matter as may be referred by the Board

C.	  Meeting and attendance:

The Property Development Committee meeting was not held during the Financial Year.

2.5  PROJECT MANAGEMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING:

The constitution, quorum, scope etc. of the Project Management Review Committee is in line with 
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 

A.	 Constitution:

As on 31-03-2023, the Project Management Review Committee consists of the following members:

1)	 Shri M A Siddique, IAS	 -	 Chairman
2)	 Shri N Muruganandam, IAS	 -	 Member
3)	 Shri Sunil Mathur	 -	 Member
4)	 Shri T Archunan	 -	 Member
5)	 Shri Rajesh Chaturvedi	 -	 Member
6)	 Dr Prasanna Kumar Acharya	 -	 Member
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Quorum for the Project Management Review Committee is 1/3rd of the total members. The Com-
pany Secretary is the Secretary to the Project Management Review Committee 

B.	 The Terms of Reference (TOR) of the Project Management Review Committee are as 
follows:

1)	 Review the Project Cost periodically and determine the cost escalation and make suitable 
recommendations to Board

2)	 Review Risk Management strategy for the Company 

3)	 Review any procurement cases referred to it by the Board

4)	 Review Extension of Time for contract Packages, if referred by the Board, and  
recommendations to the Board for approval

5)	 Review/referring of issues to Arbitration

6)	 Any other matter as may be referred by the Board

C.	 Meetings and attendance:

Six (6) Meetings of the Project Management Review Committee were held during the Financial 
Year.

Directors
Meeting held during 
respective tenures of 

Directors

No. of Meeting 
attended

Shri M A Siddique, IAS 5 5
Shri Pradeep Yadav, IAS 1 1
Shri N Muruganandam, IAS 6 6
Shri Sunil Mathur 6 5
Shri T Archunan 6 6
Shri Rajesh Chaturvedi 6 6
Dr Prasanna Kumar Acharya 6 6

2.5	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY COMMITTEE

A.	 Constitution:

The Board constituted a CSR Committee in its meeting held on 20-03-2015 pursuant to section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013. As on 31-03-2023, the CSR Committee consists of the following 
members:
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1.	 Shri M A Siddique, IAS	 -	 Chairman of the Committee

2.	 Shri Rajesh Chaturvedi Director	 -	 Member

3.	 Shri T Archunan	 -	 Member

4.	 Dr Prasanna Kumar Acharya	 -	 Member

The CSR policy as approved by the CSR committee is placed in the website of the company. Since 
the company is not earning profits, no amount is spent towards Corporate Social Responsibility. 

A.	 The Terms of Reference (TOR) of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are as 
follows:

1)	 The committee shall formulate and recommend to the board, a Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in 
schedule VII.

2)	 The committee shall recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities 
referred to in the CSR Policy of the company.

3)	 The committee shall monitor the CSR policy of the company from time to time.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Date, time and location where the 15th Annual General Meeting was held, is as under:

Date and time 28th September, 2022 at 10 AM

Venue Registered office of the Company at Koyambedu, Chennai
Specified Resolution (s) 
passed

Ordinary Resolution:

	 Approval of Accounts, Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report 

	 Fixing the remuneration of the Auditors of the company for the 
financial year 2021-22

	 Appointment of Dr Prasanna Kumar Acharya as Director (Finance)

Special Resolution :

	 Alteration of Memorandum and Articles of Association for 
increasing the Authorised Share Capital of the Company to  
`20,000 crore.
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COMPANY’S WEBSITE

The company’s website is www.chennaimetrorail.org  all major information pertaining to Company 
including project, contracts, job, recruitment process and results etc. are given on the website. The 
Company has also created a Facebook page www.facebook.com/chennaimetrorail to update public 
on a daily basis on progress achieved.

Registered Office: 

Chennai Metro Rail Limited 
CIN U60100TN2007SGC065596 
MetroS, Anna Salai, 
Nandanam, 
Chennai – 600 035
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

S. 
No. Particulars Remarks

A brief Outline of the company’s CSR Policy, 
including overview of the projects or programs 
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to 
the website link to the CSR Policy and projects or 
programs:

The CSR Policy of the company was 
formulated on May 2017

The Composition of the CSR committee:

Shri M A Siddique, IAS  -Chairman 
Members:  
Shri Rajesh Chaturvedi – Director (S&O) 
Shri Archunan T – Director (Projects)
Dr Prasanna Kumar Acharya – Director 
(Finance)   

Average net profit of the company for the last 
three financial Years- Operational profits -

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount as 
in item 3 above) -

Details of the CSR spent during the Financial Year:

a.	 Total amount to be spent for the financial Year
b.	 Amount unspent (if any)
c.	 Manner in which amount spent during the 

financial year is detailed below:

NIL

S. 
No

CSR 
Project or 
activities 
identified 

Sector 
in which 

the 
project is 
covered

Projects or 
programs

Amount 
Outlay 

(budget) 
program 

or 
project- 

wise

Amount spent 
on the projects 
or programs sub 

heads: 

 

Cumulative 
expenditure 

up to the 
reporting 

period

Amount 
spent Direct 
or through 

implementing 
agency*

1.

2. NIL

3.

Total

*Give Details of the implementing Agency

CHAIRMAN OF THE CSR COMMITTEE
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www.svjs.in  	  rohini@svjs.in / chennai@svjs.in	 +91 8129689691

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023

[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members 
The Chennai Metro Rail Limited 
Metros, Anna Salai, Nandanam 
Chennai 600035 

We, SVJS & Associates, Company Secretaries, have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by THE CHENNAI 
METRO RAIL LIMITED [CIN: U60100TN2007SGC065596] (hereinafter called the Company). The 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations 
and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management, we hereby report 
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 
on 31.03.2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 according to the 
provisions of: 

(i)	 	The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;
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(ii)	 	The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder; 

	 (The clause is not applicable as the company is an Unlisted Public Company).
(iii)	 	The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
	 (The clause is not applicable as the company is an Unlisted Public Company).
(iv)	 	Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
borrowings;  

	 (The clause is not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)
(v)	 	The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 

(a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

(b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015

(c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009

(d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme Guidelines, 1999

(e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008

(f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client 

(g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 
and

(h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998.
(The company being an Unlisted Public Company, Clause (v) and its sub clauses (a) to (h) 
are not applicable)

(vi)	 	 As informed to us, the following other laws are specifically applicable to the Company:
1.	 The Metro Railways (Operation and Maintenance) Act, 2002
2.	 The Metro Railway General Rules, 2013
3.	 The Opening of Metro Railway for Public Carriage of Passengers Rules, 2013
4.	 The Metro Railways (Construction of Works) Act, 1978
5.	 The Metro Railways (Carriage and Ticket) Rules, 2014
6.	 The Metro Railways (Notices of Accidents and Inquiries) Rules, 2014
7.	 Metro Railways (Procedure for Investigation of Misbehavior or Incapacity of the Claims 

Commissioner) Rules, 2017



250

8.	 The Metro Railways (Procedure of Claims) Rules, 2017
9.	 Chennai Metro Railway (Carriage and Ticket) Rules, 2014
10.	 The Chennai Metro Railway (Notices of Accidents and Inquiries thereto) Rules, 2014
11.	 The Chennai Metro Railway (Procedure for Investigation of Misbehavior or Incapacity of 

the Claims Commissioner) Rules, 2014
12.	 The Chennai Metro Railway (Procedure of Claims) Rules, 2014
13.	 The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act 1974 and the Regulations and Bye-

laws framed there under
14.	 The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and the Regulations and Bye-

laws framed there under
15.	 The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there 

under
16.	 Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2008
17.	 Batteries (Management and Handling) Rules, 2001
18.	 The Biodiversity Act, 2002
19.	 Plastic Waste Management Rules, 2016
20.	 The Construction and Demolition Waste Management Rules, 2016

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)	 Secretarial Standards relating to Board (SS 1) and General Meetings (SS 2) issued by The 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India and as per our observation the Company has 
generally observed these Secretarial Standards.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observation:

1.	 The Company has conducted only three meetings of its Board of Directors during the financial 
year 2022-2023. However as per Article 148 of Articles of Association, the Company is 
required to hold its Board Meeting in every quarter.

In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company, we have relied on information / 
records produced by the Company during the course of our audit and the reporting is limited to 
that extent.

We report that:

The Board of directors of the Company is duly constituted with Executive and Nominee (Non-
Executive) Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place 
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and in 
compliance with orders issued by the Central Government.
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Adequate notices were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings.  Agenda and detailed 
Notes on Agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the Agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions of the Board were unanimous and the same was captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes.

We further report that to the extent of our verification, there are adequate systems and processes 
in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no instances of:

(i)	 Public / Right / Preferential issue of shares / debentures / sweat equity

(ii)	 Redemption / buy-back of securities 

(iii)	Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction etc. and

(iv)	Foreign technical collaborations

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure A’ and forms 
an integral part of this Report.

For SVJS & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Rohini Varma. K 
Partner  
FCS. 8161  
CP. No. 8594 
Peer Review Certificate No.: 646/2019

Chennai 
02.08.2023

UDIN: F008161E000728531
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‘Annexure A’

To

The Members 
The Chennai Metro Rail Limited 
Metros, Anna Salai, Nandanam  
Chennai 600035

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1.	 Maintenance of the Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility as Secretarial Auditors is to express an opinion on these records, 
based on our audit. 

2.	 During the audit, we have followed the practices and process as were appropriate, to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. We 
believe that the process and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our report. 

3.	 The correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company have not been verified. 

4.	 Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance 
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards etc. is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the 
verification of the procedures and compliances on test basis. 

6.	 While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing the Secretarial Audit Report, we have 
also taken into consideration the compliance related actions taken by the Company after  
31st March 2023 but before issue of the Report.

7.	 We have considered actions carried out by the Company based on independent legal / 
professional opinion as being in compliance with law, wherever there was scope for multiple 
interpretations.

For SVJS & Associates  
Company Secretaries 

Rohini Varma. K 
Partner  
FCS. 8161  
CP. No. 8594 
Peer Review Certificate No.: 646/2019

Chennai 
02.08.2023 
UDIN: F008161E000728531
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 	 ^maVr` boImnarjm Ed� boIm {d^mJ
	 H m`m©b` _hm[ZXoeH  dm[U[Á`H  boImnarjm, MoÝZ¡

	 Indian Audit and Accounts Department
Office of the Director General of Commercial Audit, Chennai.

No.PDCA/CA-II/4-55/2023-24/2391							       Dt.13-09-2023 	

To 

The Chairman-cum-Managing Director, 
Chennai Metro Rail limited, 
Anna Salai, Nandanam, 
Chennai - 600 035

Sir,

Sub : -	 Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6)(b) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements of Chennai Metro Rail Limited  
for the year ended 31 March 2023.

---------

	 I forward herewith comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 143(6)
(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements of Chennai Metro Rail Limited for the year ended  
31 March 2023. The date of holding of Annual General Meeting may be intimated. Further five (5) copies of the 
Printed Annual Report (2022-23) may kindly be furnished to this office.

	 Receipt of this letter may kindly be acknowledged.				  

	 Yours faithfully,

	 Sd/- 
	 (S. Velliangiri) 
	 Principal Director of Commercial Audit

Encl : As stated

B§[S`Z AmB©b ^dZ, ñVa$- 2, 139, _hmË_m Jm°§Yr _mJ©, MoÝZ¡ - 600 034
Indian Oil Bhavan, Level-2, 139, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Chennai - 600 034 

Tel : 044-28330147  Fax: 044-28330142/145 e-mail : pdcachennai@cag.gov.in



254

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA 
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2022.

	 The preparation of financial statements of Chennai Metro Rail Limited for the year ended 
31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies 
Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed 
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for 
expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit 
in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to 
have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 02 August 2023.

	 I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary 
audit of the financial statements of Chennai Metro Rail Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 under 
section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access 
to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors 
and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

	 On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which 
would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report under section 143(6)(b) 
of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/- 
(S. Velliangiri) 

Principal Director of Commercial Audit

Place : Chennai 
Date : 13.09.2023
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P K K G Balasubramaniam 
& Associates 
Chartered Accountants

Telephones: 04175-226557 & 224557  
No. 10/2, 8th Street, Gandhi Nagar, 

Tiruvannamalai-606 601. 
e-mail:sureshfca_tvm@rediffmail.com

									            

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
(“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on 
that date and notes to the financial statements including a summary of the significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements  give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, 
as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs  of the Company as at 31st 
March, 2023, its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flow and its changes  in  equity  
for  the   year  ended  on   that   date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs)  specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent  o       f               the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India   together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions  of the Companies Act, 2013, 
and the Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in  accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is   
sufficient and appropriate to provide  a  basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial  statements.

Emphasis of Matter 

1.	 Attention is invited to Note 16.1.2 (a) & Note 27.1 of the Ind AS financial statements. As per Ind 
AS 21, “The Effects of changes in Foreign exchange Rates”, the entity shall give effect to the 
changes in foreign exchange rates. Monetary assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange 
fluctuations, are to be valued on the reporting date by translating using the closing rate. During 
the current year, the company has restated its books of accounts including loan liability and forex 
fluctuations as on 31st march’2023 in order to comply with the above-mentioned provision. 
Consequently, balance sheet of preceding two financial years i.e., March’ 2021and March 
‘2022 have been re-adjusted in line with Ind AS requirement. The Cumulative impact of Foreign 
Exchange fluctuation up to 31st March 2023 is `56,613.95 Lakhs.  
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2.	 Attention is invited to Note 17.1.f of the Ind AS financial statement wherein the management 
has declared that as per the stipulation of the clause 6A of Ind AS 23, the differential interest 
amount between the foreign currency loans taken at concessional rate and the local functional 
currency loan, has to be taken for capitalisation duly adjusted from the forex fluctuation. The 
key factor for arriving at the Interest amount for adjustment from forex fluctuation as per Ind 
AS 23 is the availability of comparable loan in the functional currency i.e., Indian Rupee, with 
the interest rates. However, non-availability of any comparable loan product to that of the 
foreign currency loans that CMRL has availed from bilateral/multilateral loans, the entire foreign 
currency fluctuation have been accounted for in this financial year 2022-23, under Profit & Loss 
account and the reserves. The impact of the same is Gain of `7834.60 lakhs in 22-23, Gain of 
`60,229.82 lakhs for the financial year 21-22 and Loss of `1,26,114.19 lakhs adjusted in the 
opening reserves of 01.04.2021.

3.	 Attention is invited to Note 17.1.3.g of the Ind AS financial statement, with regard to awaiting 
approval for Phase- II Project from Cabinet Committee on economic affairs.

4.	 Attention is invited to Note 43 of the Ind AS financial statements, with regard to the accounting 
of cash losses. As per the MOU signed between CMRL and Government of Tamil Nadu (GoTN),  
GoTN has agreed to finance the cash losses of CMRL. Similarly, the Company has incurred 
cumulative cash losses of `1,44,712.96 lakhs up to 31.03.2023 out of which the company has 
submitted claims until 2022 for `69,619.74 Lakh.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the abovementioned matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance 
in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For 
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated 
in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for 
the audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these 
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. The results of 
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the 
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Ind AS financial statements.
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The following have been considered as Key Audit Matters:

Sl 
No. Particulars Comments

1 Assessment of provisions and contingent liability 
in respect of compliance with various laws and 
regulations as applicable Key Audit Matter

This sum represents claims of third parties 
including the compensation for land acquisition and 
contractors. The Company has not accepted the said 
claims which are contested in legal proceedings and 
are pending for disposal by the appellate authorities.

The Company has ongoing arbitration and litigations 
with various authorities and third parties which 
could have a significant impact on the results, if 
the potential exposures were to materialize. The 
amounts involved are significant, and the application 
of accounting standards to determine the amount, if 
any, to be provided as a liability or disclosed as a 
contingent liability, is inherently subjective. 

The Company has also deposited substantial amounts 
with regulatory authorities against the demands in 
dispute, which has been classified as deposit. The 
outcome of such litigation is uncertain and the 
position taken by management involves significant 
judgment and estimation to determine the likelihood 
and/or timing of cash outflows and the interpretation 
of preliminary and pending court rulings. Refer Note 
no 35.a.i to the Ind AS Financial Statements. Due to 
complexity of cases, timescales for resolution and 
need to negotiate with various authorities, there is 
significant judgement required by management in 
assessing the exposure of each case and thus a risk 
that such cases may not be adequately provided for 
or disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements. This 
area is significant to our audit, since the accounting 
and disclosure for (contingent) legal liabilities is 
complex and judgmental (due to the difficulty in 
predicting the outcome of the matter and estimating 
the potential impact if the outcome is unfavorable), 
and the amounts Involved are, or can be, material 
to the Financial Statements as a whole. Accordingly, 
claims, litigations, arbitrations and contingent 
liabilities was determined to be a key audit matter 
Further reference is made to note no 35, Contingent 
liabilities

Our audit approach was a combination 
of test of internal controls and 
substantive procedures including 
effectiveness of these controls Assessing 
the appropriateness of the design and 
implementation of the Company’s 
controls over the assessment of 
litigations and completeness of 
disclosures. Supporting documentation 
are tested for the positions taken 
by the management, meetings are 
conducted with in-house legal counsel 
and / or legal team and minutes of 
Board and sub-committees, Principal 
Audit Procedures. Obtained the list 
of litigations from the management 
and reviewed their assessment of 
the likelihood of outfow of economic 
resources being probable, possible or 
remote in respect of the litigations. 
This involved assessing the probability 
of an unfavorable outcome of a given 
proceeding and the reliability of 
estimates of related amounts. 

Assessed and validated the adequacy 
and appropriateness of the disclosures 
made by the management in the Ind AS 
Financial statements
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Sl 
No. Particulars Comments

2 As disclosed in Note 35.a.ii contingent liability note 
to the Ind AS financial statements, the Company 
is involved in direct and indirect tax litigations 
amounting to ` 385,373.84 lakhs (Rs. 38.50lakhs) 
and ` 9263.35 lakhs(` 9183.08 lakhs) respectively 
that are pending with various tax authorities. 
Whether a liability is recognized or disclosed as a 
contingent liability in the financial statements is 
inherently judgmental and dependent on a number 
of significant assumptions and assessments. [These 
As disclosed in Note 35.a.ii [contingent liability note]

Our procedures included, but were not 
limited to, the following: 

Review of documents / communications 
from the tax authorities. 

Assessed management’s conclusions 
through discussions held with the 
inhouse legal counsel and understanding 
precedents in similar cases; 

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprise the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures 
to the Board’s Report and Corporate Governance Report but does not include the Ind AS  financial  
statements  and our  auditor’s  report  thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form    of  assurance / conclusion  thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other  
information and,  in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 
is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the Ind AS Financial 
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013,  (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the  state of affairs, financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the                                           Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)  
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance   with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal    financial controls, that were operating 
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effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting  records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view   and   are   
free   from  material   misstatement,  whether  due  to  fraud  or  error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to            continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern                                basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
company or to cease operations, or has no realistic  alternative  but  to  do  so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from  material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion.    Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic  decisions  of  users  
taken  on  the  basis  of  these  financial   statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional  skepticism  throughout  the  audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud   or error,  design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or  the  
override  of  internal   control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are  appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for    expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the  operating   effectiveness   of  such  
controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related  disclosures  made  by  management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the  audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast  significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the                                           financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the  audit evidence obtained up 
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to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the  Company  
to  cease  to  continue  as  a    going  concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and                              whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of  our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect  of  any  identified  misstatements   in  the  Ind  AS  financial  statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and  timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we  identify during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance 
with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the 
Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a 
statement on the matters specified in                   paragraphs  3  and  4  of  the  Order.

2.	 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and  belief  were  necessary  for  the  purpose  of  our  audit.

(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it  appears  from  our  examination  of    those  books.

(c)	 The Balance  Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of 
changes in   Equity  dealt  with  by  this  report  are in  agreement  with  the  books  of  account.

(d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2023 
comply with the     Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act 
read with relevant rules issued thereunder except for the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion paragraph above.

(e)	 In terms of notification issued in G.S.R. 463(E) dated 05.06.2015 under clauses (a) and (b) 
of sub-section (1)  of Section 462 and in pursuance of sub-section (2) of the said Section of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013), the provisions of sub-section (2) of section 164 of 
the Act, do not apply to a Government company and accordingly the question of reporting 
on the disqualification of appointment of Directors does not arise;
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(f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the     Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according  to the explanations given to us:

(i)	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position 
in its Ind AS                                                   financial statements - Refer Note No 35 to the Ind AS financial statements;

(ii)	 The company did not have any long term contracts, including derivative contracts, for 
which there were  material  foreseeable losses;

(iii)	There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by  the  Company.

3.	 In compliance to the directions under section 143(5) and according to the information and 
explanations given to  us, refer  to  our separate Report in “Annexure C” 

                                                                                                                                                                                        
For P K K G BALASUBRAMANIAM & ASSOCIATES

 Chartered Accountants, 
 ( Firm Regn. No. 0001547S)                          

Place	: Chennai   	 R H S Ramakrishnan 
Date:  02-08-2023	 Partner 

M. No. 021651

UDIN: 23021651BGYUNM8125
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE COMPANY 
(AUDITOR’S REPORT) ORDER, 2020, UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB SECTION 11 OF SECTION 

143  OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (the Act)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, we state that:

(i)	 (a)  (A)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including      quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

               (B) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible    assets. 

	 (b) 	The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the management 
in   accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for 
physical verification of all the property, plant and equipment at reasonable intervals. According 
to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 

	 (c) 	According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of all 
the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company except 
to an extent of 11,49,940.46 square meters amounting to Rs.3,31,318.01 lakhs. Details of the 
properties not held in the name of the company is annexed in Notes to Financial Statements.

	 (d)	 The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during the 
year ended March 31, 2023. 

	 (e) 	There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(ii)    (a) 	The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the 
frequency of  such verification is reasonable.  The coverage and procedures of physical verification 
of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size 
of the company and the nature of its business. The discrepancies noticed on verification between 
physical stocks and book  records have been appropriately dealt  with in the accounts.

	 (b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 5 Crores in aggregate from 
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during the year under audit.

(iii) 	 (a) 	During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood 
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other 
parties. Accordingly, there is no requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order.

	 (b)	 During the year the investments made by the Company is not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. 
The Company has not provided guarantees or security and has not granted loans and advances in 
the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties and hence 
not commented upon. 

	 (c)	 The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, there is no requirement to report on 
clause 3(iii)(c) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order and hence not commented upon.
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(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not given any loans, 
guarantees or                                                              security or made any investments during the year attracting the provisions of Sec. 185 
or Sec. 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly, reporting in clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the 
Order is not applicable to the               Company.

(v)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted any deposits 
and accordingly, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi)  According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Central Government has not prescribed 
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act.

(vii) (a) 	 According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
books of account and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues  including Provident Fund, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess, Goods and  Service 
Tax and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to information and 
explanations given to us, Sales tax, Service Tax, Employee State Insurance, Duty of Excise and Value 
added           Tax do not apply to the company for the year.

	 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from 
the date they become  payable.

	  (c) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, 
service  tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, labour cess value added tax and Goods and Service Tax 
outstanding on account of  any dispute except as given below:

Particulars Nature of Dues
Amount 
Disputed  

(` In Lakhs)

Period to 
which the 
dispute 
relates

Forum where the 
dispute is pending

Pre-Deposit in 
` In Lakhs 

(if any)

Income Tax 
Act, 1961

Interest on Tax 
Deducted at 

Source

                                
0.07

Apr 07 -  
Mar 08

ACIT, Chennai  

                                
0.19

Apr 09 -  
Mar 10

                                
0.07

Apr 10 -  
Mar 11

0.02 Apr 11 -  
Mar 12

Income Tax 48,262.25 Apr 20 -  
Mar 21

Deputy Commissioner 
of Income Tax, Chennai  

Income Tax 3,37,111.24 Apr 19 -  
Mar 20

Deputy Commissioner 
of Income Tax, Chennai  

Income Tax                               
26.38

Apr 17 -  
Mar 18 CIT, Chennai  
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Particulars Nature of Dues
Amount 
Disputed  

(` In Lakhs)

Period to 
which the 
dispute 
relates

Forum where the 
dispute is pending

Pre-Deposit in 
` In Lakhs 

(if any)

Finance Act, 
1994 Service Tax

4,162.50 Apr 13 to 
June 17 CESTAT, Chennai Bench                 

156.09

620.40 Apr 14 to 
Mar 17 CESTAT, Chennai Bench                    

15.25

CGST ACT, 
2017

GST
 5.00 Dec 17 to 

Dec 18

Commissioner of GST 
and Central Excise, 
Chennai

 

1,363.77 Apr 15 to 
June 17 Madras High Court                 

136.37

Interest 43.68 Apr-18 to 
Mar-20

Commissioner of GST 
and Central Excise, 
Chennai

 

Tamilnadu 
Construction 

Workers  
Welfare Board

Labour Cess 3,068.00 Apr 11 to 
Feb 21

Reply submitted to  
Labour Cess  
department

 

(viii)  No transactions which are not recorded in the accounts in the previous years have been disclosed or 
surrendered before the tax authorities as income by the company during the year. Accordingly, there 
is no requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order.

(ix)	 (a)	 The  company has availed loans from Government of India [under pass through assistance of loan] 
from Japan International Corporation Agency (JICA), Asian Infrastructure Investment Bank (AIIB) 
and sub-ordinate debt from Government of India and Government of Tamil Nadu. As explained 
to us, the interest accrued and due on such loan and current maturities of long term debt to the 
extent of Rs.85,391.45 lakhs and Rs.1,40,978.11 lakhs respectively, remaining unpaid, has been 
met by Government of India on the respective due dates.

	 (b)  The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority.

	 (c)  	 The Term loans are being used by the company for the objects for which they have been obtained.

	 (d)  The Company did not raise any short term funds during the year and hence the question of 
application of such funds for long term purposes does not arise.

	 (e)	 On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken 
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, there is no requirement to report on clause (ix)(e) of the 
Order.
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	 (f)	 The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, 
joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, there is no requirement to report on clause 
(ix)(f) of the Order.

(x)  (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not 
raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/further public offer (including debt 
instruments) hence, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) is not applicable to the Company and hence 
not commented upon.

	 (b)  The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or 
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and Accordingly, there 
is no requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order.

(xi)  (a)  	 No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year. 

	  (b)  	During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has 
been filed by cost auditor/secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT – 4 as prescribed under Rule 
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

	 (c) 	 No whistle blower complaints have been received by the Company during the year while 
determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

(xii)   In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) (a) to (c) 
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related 
parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and 
the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable 
accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) 	 The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

      	(b) 	 The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period 
under audit have been considered by us.

(xv) 	 According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in 
Section 192 of Companies Act, 2013. 

(xvi)  (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company. 

(b) 	 The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. 
Accordingly, there is no requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order. 

(c) 	 The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve 
Bank of India. Accordingly, there is no requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order.
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(d) 	 The Group does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group, Accordingly, there is no 
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order.

(xvii) The company has incurred cash losses Rs.8,967.87 lakhs in the current year. Moreover, CMRL has 
incurred cumulative cash losses up to 31.03.2023 Rs.1,44,712.96 lakh and submitted claims until 2022 
for Rs.69,619.74 Lakh. The cash losses will be reimbursed by the Government of Tamil Nadu as per 
terms of MOU.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, there is no 
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order.

(xix) On the basis of the analysis of financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the 
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within 
a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when 
they fall due.

(xx)   There are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII 
of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub-section 5 of Section 135 of 
the Act. Accordingly, there is no requirement to report on Clause 3(xx) of the Order.

(xxi) The company neither has any group company nor does it prepare consolidated financial statements. 
Accordingly, there is no requirement to report on Clause 3(xxi) of the Order.

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
For P K K G BALASUBRAMANIAM & ASSOCIATES 

 Chartered Accountants, 
 ( Firm Regn. No. 0001547S)                          

Place : Chennai      	 R H S Ramakrishnan 
Date :  02-08-2023	 Partner 

M. No. 021651

UDIN: 23021651BGYUNM8125
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal  

and Regulatory  Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of CHENNAI METRO 
RAIL  LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements  
of  the  Company  for  the  year  ended  on  that  date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on “the  internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of  internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and    maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and                                                    efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Ind 
AS financial  statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing as specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both   applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of  India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and  perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls with reference  to financial statements was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material  respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial  controls  system over  financial  reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether  due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements:

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

1)	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and  dispositions of the assets of the company;

2)	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the                                                                    company; and

3)	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use 
or   disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the   possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to  financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting  may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or  procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements , were operating effectively as at 
March 31,2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For P K K G BALASUBRAMANIAM & ASSOCIATES 
 Chartered Accountants, 

 ( Firm Regn. No. 0001547S)                          

Place : Chennai      	 R H S Ramakrishnan 
Date :  02-08-2023	 Partner 

M. No. 021651

UDIN: 23021651BGYUNM8125
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ANNEXURE “C” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’  

of our report of even date)

In compliance to the directions under section 143(5) and according to the information and explanations given to us, we 
report as     here under:

S.No Areas Examined Replies

(i)

Whether the company has system in place to process 
all the accounting transactions through IT system? If 
yes, the implications of processing of accounting 
transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the 
accounts along with the financial implications, if any, 
may be stated.

The Company has implemented Odoo Accounting Software (open 
source) for recording of its financial transactions. The software 
processes all the accounting transactions except:
a.	 Payroll and HR - Processed through a standalone software 

called SARAL
b.	 Project capitalization / IPC - Contract Payment / Land 

Register / Inventory - Processed separately manually/ Excel 
Spreadsheet Workings.

c.	 Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation thereon 
- Processed through Fixed Asset Management Software 
(FAMS) and Excel Spreadsheet Workings.
The transactions processed outside the IT systems are 
verified by the authorized personnel and accounted for in 
the IT systems with maker-checker controls for ensuring 
data accuracy and data integrity. Further, our test checks 
did not indicate any lacunae resulting in adverse financial 
implications on the transactions processed outside the IT 
systems.

(ii)

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan 
or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. 
made by a lender to the company due to the company’s 
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial 
impact may be stated. Whether such cases are properly 
accounted for? (In case, lender is a Government company, 
then this direction is also applicable for statutory auditor 
of lender company).

During the year, there were no restructuring of loans or cases of 
waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender 
to the company.

(iii)

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/receivable 
for specific schemes from Central/State Government or 
its agencies were properly accounted for/utilized as 
per its                     term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Funds received/receivable for specific schemes from Central/
State Government or its agencies during the year have been 
properly accounted for and utilized as per their terms and 
conditions.

For P K K G BALASUBRAMANIAM & ASSOCIATES 
 Chartered Accountants, 

 ( Firm Regn. No. 0001547S)                          

Place : Chennai      	 R H S Ramakrishnan 
Date :  02-08-2023	 Partner 

M. No. 021651

UDIN: 23021651BGYUNM8125
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CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
 BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at 31st March, 
2023

Restated As at 31st 
March, 2022

Restated As at 1st 
April, 2021

ASSETS        
(1) Non-Current Assets        

Property, Plant & Equipment 2 23,99,498.27 21,87,184.49 20,36,466.74 
Capital Work-in-progress 3 4,73,583.17 1,56,567.82 92,667.85 
Intangible Assets 4 42,366.77 37,375.76 40,426.50 
Intangible Assets under development 5 451.37 422.01 150.42 
Financial Assets        

(i) Other Financial Assets 6 1,965.61 1,607.27 1,649.39 
Other Non-Current Assets 7 2,30,811.67 1,10,053.02 20,689.12 
Total Non- Current Assets   31,48,676.86 24,93,210.37 21,92,050.02 

(2) Current Assets        
Inventories 8 491.17 744.38 903.11 
Financial Assets        

(i) Trade Receivables 9 1,525.87 1,013.34 731.72 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,48,995.87 2,77,215.99 1,21,940.69 
(iii) Other Bank balances 11 5,407.50 172.83 39,505.32 
(iv) Other Financial Assets 12 60,156.95 49,519.82 28,137.43 

Current Tax Assets (Net) 13 1,205.67 1,022.87 940.95 
Other Current Assets 14 1,918.61 3,244.51 822.74 
Total Current Assets   2,19,701.64 3,32,933.74 1,92,981.96 

Total Assets   33,68,378.50 28,26,144.11 23,85,031.98 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES        
EQUITY        

Equity Share capital 15 7,26,756.00 7,26,756.00 5,39,600.00 
Other Equity 16 (1,53,596.92) (1,96,860.42) (2,17,729.75)
Total Equity   5,73,159.08 5,29,895.58 3,21,870.25 

LIABILITIES        
(1) Non-Current Liabilities        

Financial Liabilities        
(i) Borrowings 17 14,11,942.94 13,31,020.30 13,96,968.77 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 18 5,612.24 2,371.69 1,507.61 

Provisions 19 1,252.52 999.18 865.50 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 20 -   -                                -   
Other Non-Current Liabilities 21 7,16,308.77 4,33,045.98 3,37,334.30 
Total Non-Current Liabilities   21,35,116.47 17,67,437.15 17,36,676.18 

(2) Current liabilities        
Financial Liabilities        
(i) Trade Payables 22      

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises   48.07 49.79 86.10 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
& small enterprises   2,099.51 1,272.68 2,271.96 

(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 23 5,55,025.98 4,68,326.50 2,83,103.44 
Other Current Liabilities 24 1,02,500.84 58,900.37 40,825.82 
Provisions 25 428.55 262.04 198.23 
Total Current Liabilities   6,60,102.95 5,28,811.38 3,26,485.55 

Total Equity and Liabilities   33,68,378.50 28,26,144.11 23,85,031.98 
Significant Accounting Policies & Estimates 1      
Other Notes to the Financial Statements 2 to 44      

As per our report of even date attached 
PKKG Balasubramaniam & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

R H S Ramakrishnan 
Partner                                                                                                                
M. No: 021651 
FRN: 0001547S

M.A. Siddique,  IAS 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 07955771)

T. Archunan 
Director 

  (DIN: 07610556) 

 Dr. Prasanna Kumar Acharya 
Director - Finance & Chief Financial Officer 

(DIN: 09625170)

P Andal 
Company Secretary 

(M. No. A28465)
Place: Chennai 
Date: 02-08-2023

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 02-08-2023 
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CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF  PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

      (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Note 
No.

For the year ended 
31st Mar 2023

Restated For the year 
ended 31st Mar 2022

Income:      
Revenue from operations 26 27,226.19 12,922.17 
Other income 27 21,430.14 68,392.95 
I. Total Income   48,656.33 81,315.12 
Expenses:      
Operating expenses 28 26,155.86 17,217.93 
Employee benefits expense 29 4,472.96 4,372.75 
Finance costs 30 17,883.37 18,423.23 
Depreciation & Amortization Expense 2, 4 & 

32
52,491.85 50,517.25 

Other expenses 31 4,325.57 3,092.65 
II. Total expenses   1,05,329.61 93,623.81 
III. (Loss) before  tax (I - II)   (56,673.28) (12,308.69)
IV. Tax expense:      
(1) Current tax   -   -   
(2) Deferred tax 20 -   -   
V. (Loss) for the Year (III - IV)   (56,673.28) (12,308.69)
VI. Other Comprehensive Income      
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss      

a)  Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined benefit obligations -  
Gratuity

  (63.22) (21.98)

    (63.22) (21.98)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (V+ VI)(Comprising 
Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the period)

 
(56,736.50) (12,330.67)

Earnings per equity share: 33    
Equity Shares of par value Rs. 1,000/- each      

 - Basic (`)   (77.98) (22.55)
 - Diluted (`)   (65.55) (18.72)

Significant Accounting Policies & Estimates 1    
Other Notes to the Financial Statements 2 to 44    

As per our report of even date attached 
PKKG Balasubramaniam & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

R H S Ramakrishnan 
Partner                                                                                                                
M. No: 021651 
FRN: 0001547S

M.A. Siddique,  IAS 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 07955771)

T. Archunan 
Director 

  (DIN: 07610556) 

 Dr. Prasanna Kumar Acharya 
Director - Finance & Chief Financial Officer 

(DIN: 09625170)

P Andal 
Company Secretary 

(M. No. A28465)

Place: Chennai 
Date: 02-08-2023

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 02-08-2023 
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CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED  
 CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023 

  (` in Lakhs) 

 Particulars  For the year ended 31 Mar 2023  For the year ended 31 Mar 2022 

 A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES      
 Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax   (56,736.50) (12,330.67)
 Adjustment for:-      

 Depreciation 52,491.85   50,517.25  
 Interest -Multilateral agencies 13,931.75   12,719.55  
 Interest on Unwinding of deposit 92.68   58.94  
 Interest on Subordinate debt 3,775.96   5,605.26  
 Deferred Government Grant recognised in P&L (8,585.10 )   (4,985.87)  
 Deferred Security Deposit recognised in P&L (69.96 )   (62.09)  
 Exchange Fluctuation on Borrowings (7,834.60)   (60,229.82)  
 Interest earned on Deposits (3,021.10)   (2,327.68)  

    Proceeds from Sale of Property , Plant & Equipment (1,752.37)   (288.68)  
    49,029.11 1,006.86 

 Changes in Assets & Liabilities      
 Inventories 253.21   158.73  
 Trade receivables & unbilled revenue (512.52)   (281.62)  
 Other Financial Assets (358.33)   73.54  
 Other Assets 1,325.90   (827.61)  
 Provisions 419.84   197.49  
 Trade payables 825.11   (1,035.58)  
 Other Financial Liabilities (4,671.33)   (3,255.06)  
 Other Liabilities 1,145.66   452.21  

    (1,572.46) (4,517.90)
 Net Cash from Operating Activities before tax   (9,279.85)   (15,841.71)

 Adjustment for Income Tax (net)   (182.80)   (81.92)
 Net Cash from Operating Activities after tax   (9,462.65) (15,923.63)
 B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES      

 Expenditure on Property, Plant & Equipment (2,65,853.09)   (90,712.03)  
 Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 1,752.37   288.68  
 Expenditure on Intangible Assets (5,645.72)   2,416.50  
 Expenditure on Capital Work in Progress (3,45,608.60)   (1,25,928.88)  
 Interest earned on Deposits 3,320.63   2,093.73  
 Deposits ( Net) (6,723.05)   3,970.95  
 Receipt of Government Grant -     16,900.00  

 Net Cash From Investing Activities   (6,18,757.46) (1,90,971.06)
 C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES      

 Share Capital & Share Application Money 1,00,000.00   2,12,170.00  
 Pass Through Assistance- Bilateral-Multilateral Agencies 1,00,000.00   50,000.00  
 Subordinate Debt received during the year 3,00,000.00   1,00,000.00  

 Net Cash From Financing Activities   5,00,000.00 3,62,170.00 
 D. Net changes in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C)   (1,28,220.11)   1,55,275.31 
 E. Cash & Cash equivalents (Opening Balance)   2,77,215.98   1,21,940.68 
 F. Cash & Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance)   1,48,995.87 2,77,215.99 
 G. Cash & Cash Equivalents consists of:   1,48,995.87   2,77,215.99 

 Cash on Hand   15.42   7.38 
 Balance With banks -  Current Account   1,18,980.45   1,81,208.61 
 Balance With banks -  Deposit Account   30,000.00   96,000.00 

 Total   1,48,995.87   2,77,215.99 

As per our report of even date attached 
PKKG Balasubramaniam & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

R H S Ramakrishnan 
Partner                                                                                                                
M. No: 021651 
FRN: 0001547S

M.A. Siddique,  IAS 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 07955771)

T. Archunan 
Director 

  (DIN: 07610556) 

 Dr. Prasanna Kumar Acharya 
Director - Finance & Chief Financial Officer 

(DIN: 09625170)

P Andal 
Company Secretary 

(M. No. A28465)

Place: Chennai 
Date: 02-08-2023

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 02-08-2023 
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CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

A. Equity Share Capital  (` in Lakhs)  

 Particulars  Note  
No. 

 For the year ended 
31-Mar-23 

 For the year ended 
 31-Mar-22  

 Equity Share Capital as at the beginning of the Year 

15

7,26,756.00              5,39,600.00  

 Add: Share Capital issued during the year -                  1,87,156.00  

 Equity Share Capital as at the Year End   7,26,756.00              7,26,756.00  

B. Other Equity  (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

 Total Capital 
 Reserve

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Share 
Application 

Money 

Balance as of 31st March, 2021 670.64 (1,58,400.13 ) 66,800.27 35.99 (90,893.23)
Additions during the year         -   
Adjustment to Opening Reserves   (1,26,836.52)     (1,26,836.52)
Recognized during the year         -   
Transferred from Subordinate debt     8,186.00   8,186.00 
Share Application Money Received During the Year     2,12,170.00   2,12,170.00 
Shares alloted during the year     (1,87,156.00)   (1,87,156.00)
Profit/(Loss) for the Year   (12,308.69)     (12,308.69)
Items of Other Comprehensive Income         -   
Remeasurement Gain/(Loss)  of Defined Benefit Plan       (21.98) (21.98)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year   (1,39,145.21) 33,200.00 (21.98) (1,05,967.19)
Balance as of 31st March, 2022 670.64 (2,97,545.34) 1,00,000.27 14.01 (1,96,860.42)
Additions during the year         -   
Recognized during the year         -   
Transferred from Subordinate debt         -   
Share Application Money Received During the Year     1,00,000.00   1,00,000.00 
Shares alloted during the year     -     -   
Profit/(Loss) for the Year   (56,673.28)     (56,673.28)

Items of Other Comprehensive Income       -   

Remeasurement Gain/(Loss)  of Defined Benefit Plan       (63.22) (63.22)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year   (56,673.28) 1,00,000.00 (63.22) 43,263.50 

Balance as of 31st March, 2023 670.64 (3,54,218.62) 2,00,000.27 (49.21) (1,53,596.92)

As per our report of even date attached 
PKKG Balasubramaniam & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

R H S Ramakrishnan 
Partner                                                                                                                
M. No: 021651 
FRN: 0001547S

M.A. Siddique,  IAS 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 07955771)

T. Archunan 
Director 

  (DIN: 07610556) 

 Dr. Prasanna Kumar Acharya 
Director - Finance & Chief Financial Officer 

(DIN: 09625170)
P Andal 

Company Secretary 
(M. No. A28465)

Place: Chennai 
Date: 02-08-2023

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 02-08-2023 
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CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended  
31st March, 2023

Company Information

Chennai Metro Rail Limited (referred to as “the Company”) is incorporated in India (CIN 
U60100TN2007SGC065596) under the Companies Act, 1956 on 3rd December 2007 and is a 
Government Company within the meaning of Section 2(45) of the Companies Act 2013 (Section 
617 of the Companies Act, 1956). It is a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) and Joint Venture between 
Government of India (GoI) and Government of Tamil Nadu (GoTN) for the implementation of 
Chennai Metro Rail Project in Chennai, Tamil Nadu.

NOTE NO. 1 - KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS & SIGINIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1	 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act read with Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 & subsequent/relevant amendments 
issued thereafter. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly 
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard 
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

1.2.	 Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to 
make estimates, judgments, and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions 
influence the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the period. 

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware 
of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in 
the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects 
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Significant areas of estimation, uncertainty, and critical judgments in applying accounting 
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial 
statements are as given below –
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a)	 Tenure of Interest Free Subordinate Debt from Government

	 As per the MoU among CMRL, GoTN and GoI, subordinate debt is to be repaid after repayment 
of Senior Term Debt availed for the metro project. For the purpose of determining the fair value 
of subordinate debt from GoI and GoTN, it has been assumed that the loans would be repaid in 
full in the year in which the last repayment instalment date of the latest Loan tranche falls due, 
in the absence of information regarding any specific loan repayment schedule at present.

b)	 Fair Value of Interest Free Loans/Deposits

	 For the purpose of determination of fair value of interest free subordinate debt and other 
interest free long-term deposits, interest rate has been considered based on G-sec rate for 
comparable tenor. 

c)	 Useful lives of Property, Plant & Equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the 
Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate 
of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful 
lives and residual values of company’s assets are determined by management at the time the 
asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are 
based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which 
may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

d)	 Defined Benefit Plans and Compensated Absences

	 The cost of the defined benefit plans, compensated absences and the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit 
method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual 
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary 
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All 
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

e)	 Provisions, Contingent liabilities/Assets: 

Provisions are determined based on management estimate at the balance sheet date based on 
the value of work done and services rendered. Contingent liabilities/assets are disclosed on the 
basis of judgment of management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.
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1.3	 Significant Accounting Policies

A.	 Property, Plant & Equipment

i.	 Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation, and 
impairment, if any. Costs directly attributable to the acquisition are capitalized until 
the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by management. 
Borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets are also included to the extent they relate 
to the period until such assets are ready to be put to use.

ii.	 Expenditure incurred on enabling assets viz. utility diversion, environmental protection, 
road diversion / restoration / signage, renovation work of drainage system and 
rehabilitation and resettlement which is compulsorily required to be incurred and 
directly attributable to the construction of the project is capitalized with the respective 
identifiable assets.

iii.	 Indirect expenses like Employee expenses of common manpower are allocated 
to projects and operation based on the estimated time spent for the project and 
operation department on the estimated time spent on the individual project. Common 
administrative expenses are allocated in the ratio of manpower expenses. 

iv.	 In the case of assets put to use, where final settlement of bills with contractors is 
yet to be effected, capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary 
adjustments in the year of final settlement.

v.	 Assets & systems common to more than one section of the project are capitalized on 
the basis of technical estimates/assessments.

vi.	 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognized 
in accordance with Ind AS 16 when they meet the definition of Property, Plant & 
Equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory.

vii.	 Capitalization of assets for a new section to be opened for public carriage of passengers 
is done after ensuring its completeness in all respects after administrative formalities 
and compliance of the requirements stipulated by Commissioner of Metro Rail Safety 
which is imperative for the opening of the section.

viii.	 Subsequent Cost of Capitalization:- Subsequent expenditure incurred on the existing 
assets are recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is 
probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the 
enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

ix.	 Stores and spares, purchased along with Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized 
and depreciated along with the main asset.
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x.	 Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss when 
incurred.

xi.	 The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial 
statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed-off are reported 
at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell. 

xii.	 Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding 
at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current 
assets.

xiii.	 De-recognition :- Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized when no future 
economic benefits are expected from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and Losses 
on de-recognition of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment are determined by 
comparing the proceeds from disposal, if any, with the carrying amount of Property, 
Plant and Equipment, and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

xiv.	 Freehold Land from Government and Government Departments

•	 Freehold lands received from Government of Tamil Nadu (GoTN) by means of 
interest free subordinate debt are capitalized at the relevant Guideline value on 
actual possession.

•	 Lands acquired from public bodies, under an arrangement of swap with GoTN, are 
capitalized at the values stipulated by the appropriate authorities. 

•	 Lands acquired by the company from various Government agencies for payment 
consideration are capitalized on possession of the land at the value of the 
consideration paid.

xv. Freehold land acquired from Private Land Owners

Amount paid for acquisition of private land is capitalized upon receiving original sale 
deed after registration or upon issuance of award by the competent authority, as the 
case may be. Any enhanced compensation demanded by the land owners shall only 
be accounted based on actual decision of the courts or the decision of the Private 
Negotiation Committee accepted by the management.

xvi. Gift land received from Government/Government agencies shall be treated as 
Government Grant as per Ind AS on the guideline value at the time of possession of 
land.

xvii. Land received as gift from private landowners shall be accounted on the guideline 
value at the time of registration of gift deed by treating it as capital reserve.
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B.	Capital Work-in-Progress

i.	 Assets under installation or construction as on the balance sheet date are shown 
as Capital Work in Progress. In case of lump-sum/BOQ contracts, the company 
accounts for liabilities towards its project related contractual obligations on receipt 
of claims. Pending receipt of claims, liability towards such claims receivable for the 
period up-to the close of the accounting year has been estimated and accounted for. 
Administrative and general overheads (net of income) directly/indirectly attributable 
to project are classified as expenses pending capitalization and grouped under capital 
work in progress. 

ii.	 Liquidated damages and penalties are accounted for on settlement of final bills or on 
award of arbitration proceedings with arbitration tribunal or with judicial authorities. 
Liquidated damages levied to mitigate the extra cost of construction are adjusted 
against the cost of related property, plant & equipment. Other LD’s are recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss.  

 C)	 Depreciation & Amortization

Depreciation is charged on straight line basis over the estimated useful life of property, plant 
and equipment as prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. However, 
in case of the following assets, depreciation is based on the useful life as determined by 
the management based on technical evaluation, which is different from the useful life 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Asset Type Asset Group Useful life 
Track Works Track works 30 years 
Rolling Stock Rolling Stock 30 years 
Escalators & Elevators Escalators & Elevators 30 years 

Rolling Stock Asset Management Software Software 30 Years 

Tunnel Ventilation System Tunnel Ventilation System 20 Years 

Dewatering Pump and Accessories Plant & Machinery 15 years 

Oscillation Monitoring System Plant & Machinery 5 Years 
Mobile Phones, Tablets etc. Office Equipment 3 Years 

All assets  Assets costing Rs. 5,000 or less Year of purchase

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial 
year.
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D)	 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets including permissions are stated at cost less accumulated amortization 
and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated 
useful life on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use.

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

 E)	 Government Grants

i.	 Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a 
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and the company will comply 
with all attached conditions. 

ii.	 Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognized in the profit or 
loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to 
compensate and presented within other income. 

iii.	 Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are 
included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or 
loss on a systematic basis over the expected life of the related depreciable assets and 
presented within other income.

iv.	 When the company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant 
are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected 
useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset. 

v.	 When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, 
with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this 
favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially 
recognized and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the 
difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. 
The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial 
liabilities.

 F)	 Foreign Currency Transactions

i.	 Functional Currency

The functional currency of the company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements 
are presented in Indian rupees (rounded off to Lakhs).
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ii.	 Transactions & Translations

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities, including Bi-lateral and 
multilateral borrowings, are translated into the relevant functional currency at the 
exchange rates effective at the balance sheet date. The gains or losses resulting from 
such translations are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency 
and measured at fair value/historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent 
at the date when the fair value was determined/at the date of transaction.
 
Revenue, expense, and cash-flow items denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated into the relevant functional currency using the exchange rate in effect on 
the date of the transaction. 

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions 
are included in determining net profit for the period in which the transaction is settled.

G)	 Inventories

Inventory is valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Cost includes cost 
of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location 
and condition. 

H)	 Non - Moving Stores and Spares

The diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable, surplus and non-moving items 
of stores and spares (excluding Insurance/Mandatory/Critical spares) is ascertained on 
review and provided for.

I)	 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash, cheques 
in hand, bank balances and demand deposits with banks that are repayable on demand.

J)	 Employee Benefits

i.	 Short Term Obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected 
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services 
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up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to 
be paid when the liabilities are settled.

ii.	 Other Long Term Employee Benefit Obligations

The liability for encashable leave/leave travel concession that are not expected to be 
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees 
render the related service, are measured at the present value of expected future 
payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end 
of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method, determined based 
on actuarial valuation. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the 
end of the reporting period on Government Bonds that have terms approximating 
to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

iii.	 Post-Employment Obligations

a.	 Defined Benefit Plan – Gratuity

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit 
gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end 
of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit 
obligation is calculated annually using the projected unit credit method based on 
actuarial valuation. 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting 
the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of 
the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the 
terms of the related obligation. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance 
of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is 
included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss. Re-
measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes 
in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly 
in other comprehensive income. 

They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in Equity and in 
the Balance Sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in 
profit or loss as past service cost.
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Defined benefit Obligation (Gratuity) is considered both for employees on the 
permanent role of the Company & employees working under contractual role 
assuming they will serve for the minimum eligibility period for claiming gratuity.  

b.	 Defined Contribution Plan – Provident Fund

The company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident 
funds as per local regulations. The company has no further payment obligations 
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as 
employee benefit expense when they are due.

c.	 Employment Benefits to Deputationists

Employee benefits due to employees on deputation from other GoI/GoTN 
departments/PSU’s are paid to their respective parent organization/employer 
based on their direction. Necessary provision for such benefits payable at the close 
of the Financial Year are estimated and provided for.

Contribution towards Provident Fund and the Gratuity liability as per the valuation 
made by an Independent Actuary are generally funded to the respective Trust/
Institutions where the funds are parked.

K)	Prepaid Items

Individual Items of Prepaid Expenses over ` 1,00,000/- each are only recognized in the 
balance sheet. Others are charged off to the P&L a/c of the same financial year.

 L)	 Preliminary Project Development Expenditure 

Preliminary project development expenditure includes expenditure on feasibility and other 
studies, development expenditure, expenditure on exploration works, technical knowhow 
etc. The cost of the project is transferred to capital as and when implemented. In case such 
projects are identified for transfer of business by Govt. the expenditure incurred will be 
recovered from the prospective developer. If the projects are abandoned with reference to 
Government orders or otherwise, such expenditure are charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the respective years.

M)	Prior-Period Items

Prior period items, effects of changes in Accounting estimates and Accounting Policy 
and prior period errors of material nature are corrected retrospectively by restating the 
comparative amounts for the prior period (s) presented in which the error occurred. Other 
prior period items are accounted in the year of financials. 
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N)	Events after the reporting period

  Material adjusting events (that provides evidence of condition that existed at the balance 
sheet date) occurring after the balance sheet date are recognised in the financial statements. 
Non adjusting events (that are indicative of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance 
sheet date) occurring after the balance sheet date that represent material change and 
commitment affecting the financial position are disclosed.

O)	Revenue Recognition

The company derives revenue from traffic operations, business development & interest 
on bank deposits. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, 
GST and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The company recognizes revenue 
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, and it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to the entity.

i.	 Fare Revenue

Income from fare collection is recognized on the basis of use of tokens, money value 
of the actual usage in case of Smart Cards and other direct fare collection. Single 
tickets are recognized as revenue on the day of purchase.

ii.	 Income from Business Development

Rental income arising from operating leases of spaces along rails is recognized in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the contract with the licensee/lessee 
and is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Such rental income 
is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss.

iii.	 Impairment 

Financial Assets (including receivables) Impairment of financial assets in accordance 
with Ind AS 109- ‘Financial instruments’, the company applies internal assessment 
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the credit risk exposure of 
trade receivables.

iv.	 Interest Income

a.	 Interest on short term deposits with banks is recognized as income in the statement 
of profit and loss, using the effective interest method. 

b.	 Interest on mobilization & other advances to vendors on Capital Works is adjusted 
against the Expenses Pending Capitalization.
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v.	 Other Incidental Income

Income from sale of tender documents is recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. Rental Income receivable from the contractors in connection with the 
construction works are reduced from the expenses pending capitalization. Interest 
income, insurance claims, and income from sale of scrap are also mapped under Other 
Income

vi.	Insurance Claim

	 Insurance claims are recognized in the period in which there is acceptance of the 
claim.

P)	 Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time 
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying 
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending 
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalization.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

Q)	 Taxation

The income tax expense or credit for the period consist of the tax payable on the current 
period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction and 
the changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and 
to unused tax losses. The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax 
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences only if it is 
probable that future taxable profits will be available to utilize those temporary differences. 

Deferred tax asset arising from unused tax losses or tax credits are recognized only to the 
extent that the entity has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing 
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax 
losses or unused tax credits can be utilized by the entity.
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Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates 
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the 
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

R)	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made on 
the amount of the obligation. 

A contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent asset is disclosed when the inflow 
of economic resource is probable and is material.

S)	 Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 7 ‘Statement 
of Cash Flows, wherein the cash & bank transactions are categorized into the cash flows 
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company.

        T)	 Financial Instruments

i)	 Initial Recognition

The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. All financial assets and liabilities 
are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, that 
are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial 
recognition.  

ii)	 Subsequent Measurement

a.	Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.
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b.	Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

A financial asset which is not classified in the above category is subsequently fair 
valued through profit or loss.

c.	 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the 
Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts are the historical value, due to the short 
maturity of these instruments.

iii)	De-recognition of Financial Instruments

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the 
transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part 
of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company’s Balance Sheet when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

iv)	Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the company uses a variety 
of methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing 
at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted 
cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes, etc. All methods 
of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may 
never actually be realized.

U)	 Fair Value

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the 
accounting policies mentioned above. Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

•	 In the Principal market for the asset or liability, or 

•	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset 
or liability.
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All assets and liability for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as 
follows, the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure value. The fair value hierarchy 
gives the highest priority to quoted price in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
(Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs)

Level 1 – quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 – inputs other than the quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable 
for the assets or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 – inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability

For assets or liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a 
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels 
in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period and 
discloses the same.

V)	 Leases

Company as Lessee

The company classifies a contract as lease if the contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. At the 
commencement of lease, a right-of-use asset and a lease liability is recognized. Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost less the accumulated depreciation and lease liability are 
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid on that date. The 
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or the incremental 
borrowing rate. The interest expense is recognized by the Company in the Profit & Loss 
account separately from the depreciation charge for the right-of-use asset. The company 
depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the end of useful life 
of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term whichever is earlier. 

Lease payments associated with short term leases are recognized by the company as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term or on the basis of benefit pattern.

The company has adopted Ind AS 116, Leases, effective from April 1, 2019 & elects to 
apply it retrospectively to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard 
as an adjustment to the opening balance of an appropriate equity component, at the date 
of initial application. CMRL has chosen not to apply this Standard to contracts that were 
not previously identified as containing a lease as per the transitional option given in the 
Standard.
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Company as Lessor

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Leases, 
in which the Company does not transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership of an asset are classified as an operating lease. Assets held under operating 
lease is capitalised in the books of accounts. Initial direct costs incurred in connection with 
obtaining the lease is added to the carrying amount of the asset. The lease payments from 
operating leases is recognised as income on a straight-line basis. The expenses associated 
with earning of lease income, like depreciation, is recognised as expense.

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. Company shall recognise finance income 
over the lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the 
company’s net investment in the lease. Derecognise the underlying asset and Present lease 
receivables at an amount equal to the net investment in lease.

W)	 Impairment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not 
be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the 
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual 
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of 
those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU 
to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of 
the asset exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is 
reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used 
to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its 
revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) 
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

X)	 Earnings Per Share

i.	 Basic Earnings Per Share		

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing

•	 The net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company

•	 By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period
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i.	 Diluted Earnings Per Share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing

The net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company

•	 by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 	
earnings per equity share and

•	 also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the 
equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the 
outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of 
the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date.

1.4 	 Changes to Significant Accounting Policies and other matters in relation thereto:	

a)	 Accounting of Foreign Exchange Fluctuations on Borrowings- Point F (ii) of  
Note 1.3

CMRL is funded by Bi-lateral and multi-lateral loans, in foreign currency, in addition 
to equity and subordinate debt as a pattern of funding. These loans are given to 
the company by GoI and GoTN as Pass Through Assistance (PTA) and receive these 
from these agencies on submission of claims by the company after spending. Until 
last financial year, in line with many of the metros, the company has not accounted 
the impact of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation on external Borrowings, by reinstating the 
foreign currency loans to its equivalent, at the reporting date as per Ind AS21, since the 
same was received in INR as PTA from Governments. 

In May’2023, based on communication received from Govt. of India the company has 
made payment of interest payments and the instalments principal dues along with foreign 
exchange fluctuations to Govt. of India. As the amount pertains to previous financial 
years are material in nature, the company has restated its books of accounts including 
loan liability and forex fluctuations as on 31st March’2023 by opening previous year 
financials i.e., 1st April’2021 & 31st  March’2022 in line with Ind AS requirement.  

The cumulative impact of Forex up to 31 March 2023 is a loss of ` 56,613.95 Lakh.

b)	 Cash flows are reported in indirect method in the current year– Point S of Note 1.3

The company has moved from direct cash flow method to indirect cashflow in this 
financial year to speed up the process of preparing the cashflow statement as the 
numbers are directly relatable to the P& L account and Balance Sheet already audited. 

However, the impact is NIL as it is only the alternate mode of presentation as prescribed in the 
Ind AS 7.
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2.5 	 The Title deeds for the land to an extent of 11,49,940.46 sq. mtrs. (P. Y. 11,17,174.60 sq. mtrs.) 
amounting to ` 3,31,318.01 lakhs (P. Y. ` 3,08,685.34 lakhs) are yet to be received and follow up 
action is being taken.

Relevant 
line item 

in 
the 

Balance 
sheet

Description of property Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether 
title deed 
holder is a 
promoter, 
director or 

relative 
of 

promoter/
director 

or 
employee 

of 
promoter/
director*

Property 
held 
since

Reason 
for not 

being held 
in name of 
company

PPE Land at Block No. 3, T.S.No. 21, 
Guindy

        
5,69,05,056 

Hindu Religious 
& Charitable 
Endowments 
Department 
(HR & CE) - A/m 
Chennamalleeswarar 
and Chennakesava 
Perumal Temple

  2014-15 Report awaited from 
HR&CE Dept.

PPE
Land at Block No. 2, T.S.No. 
28, Near Nehru Park, 
Purasaiwakkam Village/ Taluk

      
41,96,03,625 

Hindu Religious 
& Charitable 
Endowments 
Department (HR & 
CE) - A/m Srinivasa 
Perumal Temple

  2014-15 Report awaited from 
HR&CE Dept.

PPE

Land at T.S.No. 29 & 31, 
Koyambedu Village, Aminjikarai 
Taluk, Thiruvaleeswara Kovil 
Thopu & Well

      
41,08,18,824 

Hindu Religious 
& Charitable 
Endowments 
Department 
(HR & CE) - A/m 
Thiruvaleeswara 
Kovil

  2014-15

As per direction of 
Hon’ble High Court of 
Madras, District Collector, 
Thiruvallur, has fixed GLV 
of Rs. 1,500 per sq. ft. & 
it should be approved by 
the Government. Proposal 
details called for from 
HR & CE department & 
report awaited. Case is 
still pending in Sub Court, 
Poonamallee (O.S.No. 
157/2010)

PPE

Land at Block No. 55, T.S.No. 
25/24, 25/1 pt., Ashok 
Nagar, Mambalam Taluk, 
Kodambakkam Village

      
24,07,10,000 

Arignar Anna 
Kalyana Mandapam 
(TNHB)

  2014-15 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds
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Relevant 
line item 

in 
the 

Balance 
sheet

Description of property Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether 
title deed 
holder is a 
promoter, 
director or 

relative 
of 

promoter/
director 

or 
employee 

of 
promoter/
director*

Property 
held 
since

Reason 
for not 

being held 
in name of 
company

PPE
Land at Block No. 56, T.S.No. 2 
pt., Ashok Nagar,  Mambalam 
Taluk, Kodambakkam Village

           
75,85,975 

Chennai 
Metropolitan 
Water Supply and 
Sewerage Board 
(CMWSSB)

  2014-15 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds

PPE

Land at Block No. 98, 
T.S.No. 11379/1, VOC Nagar, 
Purasaiwakkam Taluk, George 
Town Village

        
3,86,59,500 

State Express 
Transport 
Corporation (SETC)

  2011-12 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds

PPE

Land at Block No. 64, T.S.No. 
1/1 pt., Arumbakkam pumping 
station, Aminjikarai Taluk, 
Koyambedu Village

      
10,76,87,562 

Chennai 
Metropolitan 
Water Supply and 
Sewerage Board 
(CMWSSB)

  2014-15 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds

PPE

Land at Block No. 64, T.S.No. 
1/1 pt., Koyambedu Sewerage 
Treatment Plant, Aminjikarai 
Taluk, 
Koyambedu Village

      
33,41,08,665 

Chennai 
Metropolitan 
Water Supply and 
Sewerage Board 
(CMWSSB)

  2014-15 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds

PPE

Land at Block No. 64, T.S.No. 
1/1  pt., Koyambedu Metro 
water Sump, Aminjikarai Taluk, 
Koyambedu Village

      3,05,60,400 

Chennai 
Metropolitan 
Water Supply and 
Sewerage Board 
(CMWSSB)

  2014-15 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds

PPE
Land at Block No. 64, T.S.No. 
1/1, Aminjikarai Taluk, 
Koyambedu Village

    35,85,06,200 

Chennai 
Metropolitan 
Water Supply and 
Sewerage Board 
(CMWSSB)

  2014-15 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds

PPE

Land at Block No. 64, T.S.No. 1 
pt., Koyambedu Metro Water 
Sump, Aminjikarai Taluk, 
Koyambedu Village

      5,63,08,200 

Chennai 
Metropolitan 
Water Supply and 
Sewerage Board 
(CMWSSB)

  2014-15 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds

PPE Land at Block No. 19, T.S.No. 
29, Koyambedu Village     22,34,64,350 Tamil Nadu Housing 

Board (TNHB)   2014-15 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds
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Relevant 
line item 

in 
the 

Balance 
sheet

Description of property Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether 
title deed 
holder is a 
promoter, 
director or 

relative 
of 

promoter/
director 

or 
employee 

of 
promoter/
director*

Property 
held 
since

Reason 
for not 

being held 
in name of 
company

PPE
Land at Block No. 37, T.S.No. 
6 & others, Aminjikarai Taluk, 
Koyambedu Village

      
97,97,47,353 

Chennai 
Metropolitan 
Development 
Authority (CMDA)

  2014-15 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 53/1B & 
others, Maduravoyal Taluk, 
Nerkundram Village

      
24,62,26,500 

Chennai 
Metropolitan 
Development 
Authority (CMDA)

  2014-15 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds

PPE
Land at Block No. 9, T.S.No. 1, 
Aminjikarai Taluk, Koyambedu 
Village

      
38,58,24,750 

Chennai 
Metropolitan 
Development 
Authority (CMDA)

  2014-15 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds

PPE

Land at Block No. 92, T.S.No. 
11378/27, 30, 63-65, High 
Court, Purasaiwakkam Taluk, 
George Town Village

        
1,16,96,332 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2018-19 Action is being taken to 

obtain title deeds

PPE

Land at Block No. 9, T.S.No. 
459/2, May Day Park, 
Chintadripet, Arunachala 
Naicken Street, Mylapore Taluk, 
Triplicane Village

        
1,13,68,271 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2018-19 Action is being taken to 

obtain title deeds

PPE
Land at Block No. 28, T.S.No. 
463/2, Nehru Park, Egmore 
Taluk & Village

      
25,11,40,540 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2018-19 Action is being taken to 

obtain title deeds

PPE

Land at Block No. 56, 
T.S.No. 5/1, Corporation 
Park, Ashok Nagar, 100 Feet 
Road, Mambalam Taluk, 
Kodambakkam Village

        
2,42,10,992 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2018-19 Action is being taken to 

obtain title deeds

PPE

Block No. 28, T.S.No. 1269/1, 
Vacant set back land in Rippon 
Building, Purasaiwakkam Taluk, 
Vepery Village

        
7,59,60,245 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2018-19 Action is being taken to 

obtain title deeds

PPE
Land at Block No. 16, T.S.No. 
324/1, Thousand Lights, 
Triplicane Village

        
6,72,16,350 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2018-19 Action is being taken to 

obtain title deeds
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Relevant 
line item 

in 
the 

Balance 
sheet

Description of property Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether 
title deed 
holder is a 
promoter, 
director or 

relative 
of 

promoter/
director 

or 
employee 

of 
promoter/
director*

Property 
held 
since

Reason 
for not 

being held 
in name of 
company

PPE

Land at Block No. 49, T.S.No. 
5618, Vacant Corporation land, 
Mannady, Purasaiwakkam 
Taluk, VOC Nagar Village

        
1,25,71,600 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2018-19 Action is being taken to 

obtain title deeds

PPE

Land at Block No. 12, T.S.No. 1, 
Shenoy Nagar, Thiru-vi-ka Park, 
Aminjikarai Taluk & Village, 
(Patta Avenue)

        
6,24,34,644 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2019-20 Action is being taken to 

obtain title deeds

PPE

Land at Block No. 11, T.S.No. 
23, Shenoy Nagar, Thiru-vi-
ka Park, Aminjikarai Taluk & 
Village, (Patta Avenue)

           
66,30,193 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2019-20 Action is being taken to 

obtain title deeds

PPE

Land at Block No. 10, T.S.No. 
17,Shenoy Nagar, Thiru-vi-
ka Park, Aminjikarai Taluk & 
Village, (Patta Avenue)

           
81,51,792 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2019-20 Action is being taken to 

obtain title deeds

PPE
Land at S. No. 392 & 393, St. 
Thomas Mount, Guindy Taluk 
& Village

      
11,33,76,980 

Geological Survey of 
India   2014-15 Action is being taken to 

obtain title deeds

PPE
Land at Block No. 62, T.S.No. 
2/2 & 2/3, Aminjikarai Taluk, 
Koyambedu Village

           
69,42,780 

Bharat Sanchar 
Nigam Limited 
(BSNL)

  2014-15 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds

PPE
Land at Block No. 55, T.S.No. 
25/1, Mambalam Taluk, 
Kodambakkam Village

           
59,96,100 

Bharat Sanchar 
Nigam Limited 
(BSNL)

  2014-15 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds

PPE
Land at Block No. 143, T.S.No. 
6746, Chamiers Road, Guindy 
Taluk, T Nagar Village

        
8,20,10,916 

Bharat Sanchar 
Nigam Limited 
(BSNL)

  2014-15 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds

PPE
Land at Block No. 143, 
T.S.No.6747, Chamiers Road, 
Guindy Taluk, T Nagar Village

            
5,07,742 

Bharat Sanchar 
Nigam Limited 
(BSNL)

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain title deeds

PPE

Land at Block No. 27, T.S.No. 
230, CMBT 100 ft. road, 
Thirumangalam, Kendriya 
Vidyalaya, Aminjikarai Taluk, 
Koyambedu Village

           
95,63,520 

Central Public Works 
Department (CPWD)   2016-17 Finalization of area is 

under process.
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PPE

Defence Land at S.No. 3812 
pt. of Mylapore Division, 
Teynampet (FIU) (Outside 
Cantonment), Mylapore Taluk 
& Village

        
2,44,23,700 Ministry of Defence   2014-15 Area finalization is under 

process.

PPE

Defence Land at S.No. 3812 
pt. of Mylapore Division, 
Teynampet (Defence Officers 
Enclave) (Outside Cantonment), 
Mylapore Taluk & Village

        
1,14,44,248 Ministry of Defence   2014-15 Area finalization is under 

process.

PPE

Defence Land at S.No. 373 pt. 
(OTA Officers Quarters Area) 
(Inside St. Thomas Mount 
cum Pallavaram Cantonment), 
Pallavaram Taluk, St. Thomas 
Mount Village

        
6,85,25,924 Ministry of Defence   2014-15 Area finalization is under 

process.

PPE

Defence Land at S.No. 377 
(EMB HQ Air Branch) (Inside St. 
Thomas Mount cum Pallavaram 
Cantonment), Pallavaram Taluk, 
St. Thomas Mount Village

        
7,57,13,470 Ministry of Defence   2014-15 Area finalization is under 

process.

PPE

Defence Land at S.No. 170 
pt. (Inside St. Thomas Mount 
cum Pallavaram Cantonment), 
Pallavaram Taluk, St. Thomas 
Mount Village

        
8,64,59,898 Ministry of Defence   2014-15 Area finalization is under 

process.

PPE

Defence Land at S.No. 
3820 pt. of Mylapore 
Division, Teynampet (CDA 
Office/Residence) (Outside 
Cantonment), Mylapore Taluk 
& Village

        
9,90,20,658 Ministry of Defence   2014-15 Area finalization is under 

process.

PPE

Defence Land at T.S.No. 1357 
pt., Alandur (Empee Education 
Trust), Pallavaram Taluk, St. 
Thomas Mount Village

        
5,90,46,397 Ministry of Defence   2014-15 Area finalization is under 

process.
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PPE

Defence Land at T.S.No. 
1357 pt., Alandur (Sankara 
Nethralaya Eye Hospital), 
Pallavaram Taluk, St. Thomas 
Mount Village

        
1,25,51,778 Ministry of Defence   2014-15 Area finalization is under 

process.

PPE Defence Land at S.No.3812 
(DEO), Mylapore Taluk & Village

        
4,82,89,144 Ministry of Defence   2014-15 Area finalization is under 

process.

PPE
Land at Block No. 9, S.No. 12 
pt. & 13 pt., Egmore Taluk, 
Saligramam Village

        
1,77,35,464 Pandian Lodge   2014-15

The party has filed C.S. 
before Hon’ble High 
Court & it is pending as 
on date. Court deposit of 
Rs. 25,00,000/- paid.

PPE
Land at Ward-Block E-2, S.No. 
156, Alandur Taluk, St. Thomas 
Mount Village

        
8,74,13,985 

GMMCO (Hindustan 
Motors)   2014-15

As per the High Court 
Order, Rs. 8,28,40,000 
deposited in Alandur 
Court. Trial is pending 
before Alandur Court.

PPE

Land at Block No. 8, T.S.No. 
26, Corporation School Play 
Ground Saidapet, Guindy Taluk,  
Adyar Village

        
1,19,08,125 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 98, T.S.No. 
11712/1, Law College Campus, 
Purasaivakkam Taluk George 
Town Village

        
4,23,90,780 

Director of 
Dr. Ambedkar 
Government Law 
College / Director of 
Legal Studies

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 49, T.S.No. 
5616/2, 5617, Mannady police 
quarters, Purasaivakkam Taluk, 
VOC Nagar Village

      
43,85,90,640 

Deputy 
Commissioner of 
Police, Flower Bazaar

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE
Land at Block No. 35, T.S.No. 
20, MTC Bus Stand, Mambalam 
Taluk, Saidapet Village

      
16,79,24,250 

Metropolitan 
Transport 
Corporation 
(Chennai) Limited

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.
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PPE
Land at Block No. 25, T.S.No. 
6 & 7, Tamil Nadu Open 
University campus

        
3,04,84,710 

Director of Collegiate 
Education   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 2, T.S.No. 11, 
DOSP office building near LIC, 
Egmore Taluk, Nungambakkam 
Village

        
8,78,53,779 

Director of Stationery 
& Printing   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE
Land at Block No. 5, T.S.No. 
32/2, LLA Building, Mylapore 
Taluk, Triplicane Village

        
3,04,07,325 

Director of Public 
Libraries   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 9, T.S.No. 
2 pt, Health Transport 
Department, Guindy Taluk, 
Adyar Village

      
15,01,81,462 

Director of Health 
Transport   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE
Land at Block No. 28, T.S.No. 
1396/1, D.M.S. complex, 
Mylapore Taluk & Village

      
16,81,76,736 

Director of Medical & 
Rural Health Services   2014-15

G.O.Ms.No.620, Revenue 
& Disaster Management 
Department, Land 
Disposal Wing, LD7(2) 
Section dt.27.12.2022.

PPE

Land at Block No. 76, T.S.No. 
3871/1 pt, 3 pt., Poultry 
Research Station, Nandanam, 
Mylapore Taluk & Village

   
4,27,41,52,974 

Tamil Nadu 
Veterinary and 
Animal Sciences 
University 
(TANUVAS)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 25, T.S.No. 
6 pt, Govt. School, Saidapet, 
Guindy Taluk, Government 
Farm

      
23,40,60,570 

Director of School 
Education   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 26, T.S.No. 
1764/9, Washermenpet 
- Metropolitan Transport 
Corporation Bus Stand, 
Tondiarpet Taluk, 
Washermanpet Village

        
1,02,70,000 

Metropolitan 
Transport 
Corporation 
(Chennai) Limited

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.
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PPE

Land at Block No. 8, T.S.No. 
25 pt., Little Mount Vacant 
Channel land, Guindy Taluk, 
Adyar Village

        
1,31,46,570 

Public Works 
Department (PWD)   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE
Land at Block No. 8, T.S.No. 60 
pt., Little Mount, Guindy Taluk, 
Adyar Village

        
2,69,59,995 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District (Mambalam - 
Guindy Taluk)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE Land at Block No. 9, T.S.No. 2, 
Guindy Taluk, Adyar village

      
24,31,63,913 

Director of 
Medical Education 
Department

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 92, T.S.No. 
11378/13, 39, 60, 61, George 
Town, Kuralagam (Khadi Dept.), 
Purasaiwakkam Taluk, George 
Town Village

           
71,62,621 

Tamil Nadu Khadi 
& Village Industries 
Board

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 21, T.S.No. 
6, Backward Class Hostel, 
Saidapet, Guindy Taluk, 
Government Farm Village

      
12,43,50,060 

Director of Backward 
Classes Welfare 
Department

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 25, T.S.No. 
2 & 5, Corporation Zonal 
Office, Saidapet,  Guindy Taluk, 
Government Farm Village

        
9,76,54,410 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 98, T.S.No. 
11379/1, N.S.C. Bose Road 
(Opp. To Law College), 
Purasaivakkam Taluk, George 
Town Village

           
50,91,630 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 143, T.S.No. 
6745, T.N.S.C.B. Chamiers 
Station Location, Guindy Taluk, 
T. Nagar Village

        
1,48,05,882 

Tamil Nadu Slum 
Clearance Board 
(TNSCB)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.
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PPE

Land at Block No. 26, T.S.No. 
1764/1, Police Sergeant 
Quarters, Tondairpet Taluk, 
Washermenpet Village

        
2,65,20,000 

Police Department, 
Washermanpet   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 92, T.S.No. 
11378/34, Indian Bank Building 
(High Court), Purasaivakkam 
Taluk, George Town Village

           
57,42,885 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 49, T.S.No. 
5000, Mannady, Purasaivakkam 
Taluk, 
V.O.C. Nagar Village

      
21,13,32,248 

Public Works 
Department (PWD)   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 21, T.S.No. 
2 to 6, Thoddhunder Nagar, 
Saidapet, Guindy Taluk,  
Governemnt Farm Village

      
22,56,90,192 

Public Works 
Department (PWD - 
Buildings)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 29, T.S.No. 
3171/7 & 8, Government 
Estate, Mylapore Taluk, 
Triplicane Village

      
19,94,72,052 

Public Works 
Department (PWD)   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 2, T.S.No. 5, 
Agricultural Engg. (Chamiers 
Road), Guindy Taluk, 
Governemnt Farm Village

      
12,82,79,970 

Agricultural 
Department   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 75, T.S.No. 
3823, Abandoned channel, 
Teynampet, Mylapore Taluk & 
Village

           
27,12,528 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District (Mylapore)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 75, T.S.No. 
3821, Abandoned channel, 
Teynampet, Mylapore Taluk & 
Village

        
6,26,14,188 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District (Mylapore)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE
Land at Block No. 9, T.S.No. 3 
& 4, Corpn. OSR Land & Road, 
Guindy Taluk, Adyar Village

        
2,07,20,138 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC) - 
Div. 170

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.
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PPE
Land at Block No. 25, T.S.No. 5, 
ESI Hospital, Saidapet, Guindy 
Taluk, Government Farm Village

      
37,05,52,845 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC) - 
Unit IX

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 21, T.S.No. 
2, 4, 5, PWD Sump, Saidapet, 
Guindy Taluk, Government 
Farm Village

        
1,45,53,435 

Director of Technical 
Education   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE
Land at Block No. 9, T.S.No. 
2, Dr. MGR University, Guindy 
Taluk, Adyar Village

           
95,26,500 

Director of Medical 
Education   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 21, T.S.No. 
10pt, Institute of Advanced 
Study, Saidapet, Guindy Taluk, 
Government Farm Village

      
35,11,76,970 

Director of Collegiate 
Education   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE
Land at Ward H Block No. 7, 
T.S.No. 3, Alandur Taluk, St. 
Thomas Mount Village

        
4,04,33,340 

Director of Municipal 
Administration   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 55, T.S.No. 
25/1, Ashok Nagar Police 
Training College, Mambalam 
Taluk, Kodambakkam Village

      
16,31,89,110 

Ashok Nagar Police 
Training College -  
DGP, Chennai -4

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 62, 
T.S.No. 2/1 pt, Fire station at 
Koyambedu CMBT, Aminjikarai 
Taluk, Koyambedu Village

           
15,75,874 

Directorate of 
Tamilnadu Fire And 
Rescue Services 
Department

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 55, 
T.S.No. 25/1 pt, Ashok Nagar 
Fire Service Station and 
Quarters, Mambalam Taluk, 
Kodambakkam Village

        
6,85,58,457 

Directorate of 
Tamilnadu Fire And 
Rescue Services 
Department

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 19, T.S.No. 
1358, St.Thomas Mount Police 
Quarters land, Alandur Taluk & 
Village

        
7,73,14,230 

St.Thomas Mount 
Police Quarters land 
- DGP Chennai 4

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.



302

Relevant 
line item 

in 
the 

Balance 
sheet

Description of property Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether 
title deed 
holder is a 
promoter, 
director or 

relative 
of 

promoter/
director 

or 
employee 

of 
promoter/
director*

Property 
held 
since

Reason 
for not 

being held 
in name of 
company

PPE

Land at Block No. 129, T.S.No. 
13 pt, 14/1 pt , Govt. Peripheral 
Hospital near Ashok Pillar, 
Mambalam Taluk, Saligramam 
Village

        
9,85,31,967 

Director of 
Medical Education 
Department

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 12, T.S.No. 
495, 496, 497, 511, St. Thomas 
Mount Village (Cantonment), 
Alandur Taluk

   
1,23,48,40,140 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District (Alandur 
Taluk)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 4, T.S.No. 
76,77 pt, City Alandur - SIDCO 
Pumping Station (CIPET), 
Guindy Taluk, Alandur Village

        
1,35,23,601 

Tamil Nadu 
Small Industries 
Development 
Corporation (SIDCO)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 28, T.S.No. 
1269/4, Hotel Picnic (GCC), 
Purasaivakkam Taluk, Vepery 
Village

        
9,41,63,472 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 8 & 9, T.S.No. 
6 & 22, Periyakudal – (Anna 
Nagar) Corporation Park in Club 
House Road, Aminjikarai Taluk 
& Village

           
35,02,067 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC) - 
Div. 68

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 8,9, T.S.No. 
6, 22, Periyakudal – (Anna 
Nagar) Corporation Park in Club 
House Road, Aminjikarai Taluk 
& Village

           
64,47,098 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC) - 
Div. 68

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 28, T.S.No. 
2-6, 10, 11, 147, Koyambedu 
– Grama Natham- Vacant land, 
Aminjikarai Taluk, Koyambedu 
Village

      
17,59,05,590 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District (Egmore-
Nungambakkam 
Taluk)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 22, T.S.No. 
1460, St. Peter’s School (opp. 
to OTA), Alandur Taluk, St. 
Thomas Mount Village

        
3,11,32,380 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.
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PPE
Land at Block No. 22, T.S.No. 
1459, St. Thomas Mount 
Village, Alandur Taluk

           
90,85,660 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 1, T.S.No. 
69, Alandur-Govt. Poramboke 
occupied by a Temple at 
Railway Station Road, Alandur 
Taluk, St. Thomas Mount 
Village

           
19,69,231 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 8, T.S.No. 
416, Police Quarters Vacant 
land near GSI, Alandur Taluk, 
St. Thomas Mount Village

        
2,51,90,100 Police Department   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 7, T.S.No. 
43/1, Veppery - Vacant land 
opposite to Central Station, 
Purasaivakkam Taluk,   
Vepery Village

        
8,77,69,656 

Public Works 
Department (PWD - 
Buildings)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 7, T.S.No. 40, 
Vacant land opposite to Central 
Station Along Buckingham 
Canal, Purasaivakkam Taluk,   
Vepery Village

        
9,17,09,280 

Public Works 
Department (PWD - 
WRO)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE
Land at Block No. 16, T.S.No. 
234/1, Pachaiyappa’s College, 
Egmore Taluk & Village

        
9,67,46,832 

Directorate of 
Collegiate Education   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 55, 
T.S.No. 25/1 pt., Police 
Training Academy, Ashok 
Nagar, Mambalam Taluk, 
Kodambakkam Village

        
6,47,52,297 Police Department   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 12, 
T.S.No. 151/A, Kilpauk Fire 
Station(Pump House), Egmore 
Taluk & Village

        
9,63,59,328 

Directorate of 
Tamilnadu Fire And 
Rescue Services 
Department

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.
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PPE

Land at Block No. 28, T.S.No. 
463/1, Sports Development 
Authority, Egmore Taluk & 
Village

        
2,32,50,240 

Sports Development 
& Youth Welfare 
Department

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 24, 25, 
T.S.No. 385/1, 385/3, Kilpauk 
Medical College,  Egmore Taluk 
& Village

      
12,25,80,432 

Director of Medical 
Education   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 9, T.S.No. 10 
pt., Sarkar Poramboke grama 
Natham, Mambalam Taluk, 
Saligramam Village

           
20,19,692 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District (Saligramam 
Village)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 33, T.S.No. 
5/7, Pathway to Burial ground, 
Mambalam Taluk, Saligramam 
Village

      
15,22,64,880 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District (Saligramam 
Village)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 39, 
T.S.No. 1 Part (S.No.158), 
Koyambedu Town, Aminjikarai 
Taluk, Chennai - Arulmighu 
Semathamman Temple

        
1,90,26,741 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District

  2014-15

G.O.Ms.No.233, Revenue 
& Disaster Management 
Department, Land 
Disposal Wing, LD7(2) 
Section dt.15.07.2019.

PPE

Land at Block No. 39, T.S.No. 
160/4, 166/2, 167/4, Sarkar 
Poramboke 
(Canal ), Aminjikarai Taluk, 
Koyambedu Village

        
6,81,11,341 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. ward H, 
T.S.No. 59, Govt. Poramboke-
Cantonment, Alandur Taluk, St. 
Thomas Mount Village

           
11,68,485 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District (St. Thomas 
Mount Village)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Ward H , T.S.No. 124, 
Govt. Poramboke-Cantonment, 
Alandur Taluk, St. Thomas 
Mount Village

            
4,84,500 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District (St. Thomas 
Mount Village)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.



305

Relevant 
line item 

in 
the 

Balance 
sheet

Description of property Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether 
title deed 
holder is a 
promoter, 
director or 

relative 
of 

promoter/
director 

or 
employee 

of 
promoter/
director*

Property 
held 
since

Reason 
for not 

being held 
in name of 
company

PPE

Land at T.S.No. 1355, St. 
Thomas Mount Village, Sri 
Chakravarthy School, Alandur 
Taluk, St. Thomas Mount 
Village

        
1,00,62,630 

Revenue 
Department, 
Kancheepuram 
District (St. Thomas 
Mount Village)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at T.S.No. 1356, St. 
Thomas Mount Village, 
(Millennium School) Sri 
Chakravarthy

           
58,49,415 

Revenue 
Department, 
Kancheepuram 
District (St. Thomas 
Mount Village)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. Ward 
E 2, T.S.No. 156, Channel 
Poramboke (St. Tho. Mount 
Station)

           
70,43,985 

Revenue 
Department, 
Kancheepuram 
District (St. Thomas 
Mount Village)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 22, S.No. 
1459, St. Thomas Mount 
Village, Pallavaram Taluk, 
Chengalpattu

        
2,71,70,860 

Revenue 
Department, 
Kancheepuram 
District (St. Thomas 
Mount Village)

  2014-15

G.O.Ms.No.487, Revenue 
& Disaster Management 
Department, Land 
Disposal Wing, LD7(2) 
Section dt.29.07.2021.

PPE

Land at Block No. 34, T.S.No. 
1 Part, Koyambedu Town, 
Aminjikarai Taluk, Chennai - 
Cooum River

        
1,70,06,522 

Public Works 
Department (PWD - 
WRO)

  2014-15

G.O.Ms.No.446, Revenue 
& Disaster Management 
Department, Land 
Disposal Wing, LD7(2) 
Section dt.19.11.2019.

PPE

Land at Block No. 38/2, T.S.No. 
1 941, St. Thomas Mount 
Village, Pallavaram Taluk, 
Chengalpattu - Salai Pillaiyar 
Kovil

      
13,69,73,860 

Revenue 
Department, 
Kancheepuram 
District (St. Thomas 
Mount Village)

  2014-15

G.O.Ms.No.484, Revenue 
& Disaster Management 
Department, Land 
Disposal Wing, LD7(2) 
Section dt.29.07.2021.

PPE
Land at Block No. 2, T.S.No. 2 & 
3, SIDCO, Alandur City Village, 
Guindy Taluk

           
94,61,567 

Tamil Nadu 
Small Industries 
Development 
Corporation (SIDCO)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.
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PPE
Land at Block No. 22, Ward H, 
T.S.No. 1459 pt, Alandur Taluk, 
St. Thomas Mount Village

           
74,06,320 

Revenue 
Department, 
Kancheepuram 
District (St. Thomas 
Mount Village)

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE
Land at Block No. 15, T.S.No. 
232, St. George School, Egmore 
Taluk & Village

      
13,18,80,528 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 7, T.S.No. 
40/1, Government General 
Hospital Staff Quarters, 
Purasaiwakkam Taluk, Vepperi 
Village

      
20,11,79,160 

Director of Medical 
Education   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 7, T.S.No. 
40/1, Corporation Way side 
park, Purasaiwakkam Taluk, 
Vepperi Village

        
1,50,48,072 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 12, 
T.S.No. 151/3B, 3C, 3D part, 
Egmore Village, Egmore-
Nungambakkam Taluk, Chennai 
- Indian School of Medicine, 
Kilpauk

        
8,87,70,708 

Director of Medical 
Education   2014-15

G.O.Ms.No.526, Health 
and Family Welfare (E2) 
Dept. dt.23.11.2021.

PPE
Land at Block No. 7, T.S.No. 
43/2, Ramaswamy Mudaliar 
Choultry

        
7,36,50,948 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE
Land at Block No. 7, T.S.No. 
43/2, Ramaswamy Mudaliar 
Choultry

      
50,07,52,044 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE
Land at Block No. 7, T.S.No. 
43/5, Central Square, Greater 
Chennai Corporation

        
2,50,39,980 

Greatre Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.



307

Relevant 
line item 

in 
the 

Balance 
sheet

Description of property Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether 
title deed 
holder is a 
promoter, 
director or 

relative 
of 

promoter/
director 

or 
employee 

of 
promoter/
director*

Property 
held 
since

Reason 
for not 

being held 
in name of 
company

PPE
Land at Block No. 7, T.S.No. 
42, Central Square, Greater 
Chennai Corporation

        
2,95,33,420 

Greatre Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 7, R.S.No. 
45/5, Vepery Village, Fort - 
Tondiarpet Taluk, Government 
Jail Department

      
26,13,62,406 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District

  2014-15

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 43, T.S.No. 
6746 pt., Nandanam, Guindy 
Taluk,  
T.Nagar Village

        
7,80,77,611 Department of Posts   2022-23 Value of land not 

finalized.

PPE
Land at Block No. 62, T.S.No. 
2 pt., Aminjikarai Taluk, 
Koyambedu Village

        
7,75,08,000 Department of Posts   2022-23 Value of land not 

finalized.

PPE

Land at Block No. 17, T.S.No. 
28, Anna Nagar Tower, 
Aminjikarai Taluk, Koyambedu 
Village

      
15,01,15,560 Department of Posts   2022-23 Value of land not 

finalized.

PPE
Land at Ward-I, Block No. 13, 
T.S.No. 58/1, Tiruvotriyur Taluk,  
Tiruvotriyur Town

        
3,16,04,650 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2020-21 Alienation proposals to 

be sent.

PPE
Land at Block No. 72, T.S.No. 
3923 pt., 3924 pt., Agasthiyar 
Apartment, Korukkupet

        
2,11,37,379 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2018-19

Follow up action is being 
taken for getting the title 
deeds.

PPE
Land at Block No. 72, T.S.No. 
3926, Korukkupet Metro 
Station

        
2,45,86,975 

Tamil Nadu Slum 
Clearance Board 
(TNSCB)

  2018-19
Follow up action is being 
taken for getting the title 
deeds.

PPE
Land at Block No. 16, T.S.No. 
2/1 pt, 3pt, 2/1, Wimco Nagar 
Depot

   
1,26,36,61,000 

Tamil Nadu Housing 
Board (TNHB)   2017-18

Follow up action is being 
taken for getting the title 
deeds.

PPE
Land at Block No. 16, T.S.No. 
2/1 pt, 3pt, 2/1, Wimco Nagar 
Depot

           
73,73,140 

Tamil Nadu Housing 
Board (TNHB)   2018-19

Follow up action is being 
taken for getting the title 
deeds.

PPE
Land at Ward-I, Block No. 1, 
T.S.No. 38/2, Tiruvotriyur Metro 
Station

           
17,84,383 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2020-21

Follow up action is being 
taken for getting the title 
deeds.
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PPE
Land at Ward H, Block No. 
18, T.S.No. 111/1, 110/1, 
Tiruvotriyur Theradi

        
1,50,00,000 

Administrator 
General and Official 
Trustee of Tamil 
Nadu

  2020-21
Follow up action is being 
taken for getting the title 
deeds.

PPE

Land at S. Nos. 4/1, 5/3, 6, 7, 
8, 9, 10/1, 10/2, 11/1, 11/2, 
12/1, 12/2, 13/2, 14, 15, 18, 
19, 20, 21, 22, 23/1, 23/2, 26, 
27/2A, 28/1A, 28/2A, 39/1, 
40, 41, 44, 47/1A, 48, 51/1A, 
51/2A, 52/1, 54/1 & 54/3, 
Ariyamandanallur Village, 
Poonamalle Taluk

      
39,51,50,749 

Hindu Religious 
& Charitable 
Endowments 
Department (HR 
& CE) - Arulmigu 
Tirukachi Nambigal 
Kovil

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship.

PPE

Land at Block No. 46, T.S.No. 
856, Perumbur Market Metro 
Station, Melapatti Ponnappa 
Mudhalia Street

           
21,56,480 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2019-20 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 38, T.S.No. 
1831/1, Thirumayilai Metro 
Station, Royapettah High Road

        
1,55,77,920 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2019-20 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE

Land at Block No. 92, T.S.No. 
4271, 4272 pt., Green ways 
Road Metro Station, RK Mutt 
Road

      
16,41,73,760 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2019-20 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 21, T.S.No. 
356, Perumbur Metro Station, 
Jawahar Road

        
5,39,97,675 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2019-20 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 12, T.S.No. 
37, Ayanavaram Metro Station, 
Anderson Road

        
1,17,19,500 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2020-21 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 4, T.S.No. 60, 
Ayanavaram Metro Station, 
Anderson Road

            
1,26,210 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2020-21 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 1, T.S.No. 51, 
Adyar Junction Metro Station, 
Gandhi Nagar, 1st Main Road.

      
12,14,66,910 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2020-21 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship
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PPE
Land at Block No. 123, T.S.No. 
5400, Taluk/Village: Guindy/  
T-Nagar

        
2,79,54,035 

Panagal Park M.S. 
Greater Chennai 
Gorporation, 
Division-136, Unit-
30,  
Zone-10

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE Land at Block No. 6, T.S.No. 99, 
Taluk/Village: Egmore / Puliyur

        
4,86,81,000 

Power House M.S., 
Greater Chennai 
Corporation, 
Division-133, Unit-
31,  
Zone-10,

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 45, T.S.No. 
2/1, Taluk/Village: Egmore / 
Puliyur

        
2,09,14,800 

Cut & Cover Ramp 
(Meenakshi College), 
Greater Chennai 
Corporation, 
Division-134, Unit-
31, Zone-10

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE

Land at Block No. 45,  
6, T.S.No. 2/1,  
112/2, Taluk/Village: Egmore/  
Puliyur

        
1,86,06,960 

Ex-01 & 2 Power 
House to Vadapalani 
Viaduct,  
Greater Chennai 
Corporation, 
Division-134, Unit-
31, Zone-10

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE

Land at Block No. 4,  
7, T.S.No. 111/1, 
18, Taluk/Village: Aminjikarai/ 
Sencheri

           
60,07,715 

Natesan Nagar MS, 
Greater Chennai 
Corporation, 
Division-127, Zone-
10

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 17, T.S.No. 
72/2, 73, 74, Taluk/Village: 
Mambalam/ Virugambakkam

        
1,68,76,275 

Alwarthiru Nagar 
MS, 
Greater Chennai 
Corporation, 
Division-128

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship
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PPE
Land at Block No. 5, T.S.No. 
5/21, 5/27, 5/28, Taluk/Village: 
Mambalam/ Saligramam

    15,62,13,725 

Vadapalani MS, 
Greater Chennai 
Corporation, 
Division-130

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 77/12A1 
& 12A2, Taluk/Village: 
Maduravoyal/ Valasaravakkam

           
16,73,445 

Ex-7 & 8 
Valasaravakkam to 
Karambakkam,  
Greater Chennai 
Coporation, Unit-33, 
Zone-11

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 494/1A1C1 part 
and 1A2A pt., Taluk/Village: 
Sholinganallur/ Sholinganallur

        
3,90,66,285 

Sholinganallur MS,  
GCC Division-199   2022-23 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Ward-B, Block No. 6, 
T.S.No. 32/2, Taluk/Village: 
Madhavarm/ Madhavaram

           
44,95,890 

Assisi Nagar MS, 
GCC   2022-23 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 38, T.S.No. 
1833/1, Taluk/Village: 
Mylapore/ Mylapore

        
2,78,38,320 

Thirumayilai M.S. - 
G.C.C.   2022-23 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 34, T.S.No. 
1654/37, 1654/38, Taluk/
Village: Mylapore/ Mylapore

      1,13,37,264 Alwarpet MS - G.C.C.   2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 34, T.S.No. 
1654/6, 1654/41, Taluk/Village: 
Mylapore/ Mylapore

         96,64,080 Alwarpet MS - G.C.C.   2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 6, T.S.No. 99, 
Taluk/Village: Egmore/  
Puliyur

         22,35,720 GCC   2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE

Land at Block No. , T.S.No. 
449/2A, 449/1B7B, Taluk/
Village: Maduravoyal/ 
Maduravoyal

         86,09,475 
Viaduct-9 
Karambakkam to 
Alapakkam, GCC

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship
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PPE

Land at Block No. 27, 
T.S.No.1759/7, Taluk/Village: 
Purasaiwakkam/ 
Purasaiwakkam

           
32,45,625 

C-3 
Perambur Baracks 
Road MS

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE

Land at T.S.No. S.No.129/ 
3A1 PT & 129/3A2, Taluk/
Village: Maduravoyal/ 
Porur

           
55,17,350 

C-4 
Alapakkam Metro 
Station

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE

Land at T.S.No. S.No.194/1A1, 
194/8 & 194/9, Taluk/Village: 
Maduravoyal/ 
Valasaravakkam

        
1,07,90,835 

C-4, 
Karambakkam MS   2022-23 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 44, T.S.No. 
32/2, 32/3, Taluk/Village: 
Mambalam/ Saligramam

           
17,30,900 

Ex-04, Saligramam 
to Saligramam Ware 
house metro viaduct

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 209/2, Taluk/
Village: Ambattur/  
Padi

           
76,26,690 

C-5, Thirumangalam 
Junction Metro, GNT 
Salai, GCC

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 5, T.S.No. 
5/31, Taluk/Village: Mambalam/ 
Saligramam

           
27,69,440 

C-4,Ex-3 Vadapalani 
to Saligramam 
Viaduct, GCC

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE

Land at Block No./T.S.Nos. 
14/13,14,16, 44/1,2,3, 
4/1,2,3, 10/1,2, 11/1,2,3,4,5, 
12/1,2,3,4,5, 13/1,2,3,4,5, 
14/1,2,3,4,5, 15/8,9,10, 
23/3,6,7,8,9,11 & 
24/1,2, Madhavaram to 
Manjambakkam Main Road, 
Madhavaram Village & Taluk

   
7,76,92,29,720 

Milk Production & 
Dairy Development 
Department

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No./T.S.Nos. 
10/1, 11/2, 12/3, 13/1, 12/2,  
Madhavaram Village & Taluk

   
1,03,89,65,340 

Tamil Nadu 
Veterinary and 
Animal Sciences 
University 
(TANUVAS)

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship
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PPE
Land at Block No. 50, T.S.No. 
3101/26 pt., Purasaiwakkam 
Village & Taluk

        
9,74,34,120 

Director of Legal 
Studies   2021-22 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE Land at Block No. 24, T.S.No. 
1127/25, Mylapore

        
1,96,89,150 

Registrar of Co-
operative Society 
(TUCS)

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE Land at Block No. 89, T.S.No. 
4123/1, Mylapore

        
6,57,31,470 

Tamil Nadu Slum 
Clearance Board 
(TNSCB)

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Ward B, Block No. 45, 
T.S.Nos. 2 & 3, Madhavaram 
Village & Taluk

           
39,60,120 

Milk Production & 
Dairy Development 
Department

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE

Land at Block No. 92, T.S.Nos. 
4271, 4267/1 & 4267/2, 
Mylapore Part-II Village & 
Mylapore Taluk

        
5,13,80,480 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2021-22 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 12, T.S.No. 
37, Chinna Sembarambakkam 
Village, Ayanavaram Taluk

           
42,19,020 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2021-22 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 12, T.S.No. 
25, Chinna Sembarambakkam 
Village, Ayanavaram Taluk

            
5,76,960 

Metropolitan 
Transport 
Corporation 
(Chennai) Limited

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 96, T.S.No. 
4309/3, 4309/6 & 4309/7, 
Mylapore Village & Taluk

        
1,29,24,240 

Chennai 
Metropolitan 
Water Supply and 
Sewerage Board 
(CMWSSB)

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE

Land at S.No.1321/12 & 
1322/1,  
S.No.1321/12A, Poonamallee 
Village & Taluk

        
1,32,74,095 

Municipal 
Administration 
& Water Supply 
Department

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE Land at S.No.297/1A, 
Poonamallee Village & Taluk

        
2,11,28,205 

Municipal 
Administration 
& Water Supply 
Department

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship
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PPE
Land at Block No. 17, T.S.Nos. 
72/2, 73,74, Virugambakkam 
Village, Mambalam Taluk

        
1,56,64,645 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2021-22 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 37, T.S.No. 
32, , Virugambakkam Village, 
Mambalam Taluk

           
10,38,540 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2021-22 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at S.No. 11/2B, 
Nazarathpettai Village, 
Poonamallee Taluk

            
8,76,285 

Sriperumbudur 
Taluk Co-operative 
Commercial Thrift 
Society Limited

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Ware C, Block No. 22, 
T.S.No.35, Madhavaram Village 
& Taluk

           
66,14,190 

Chennai 
Metropolitan 
Development 
Authority (CMDA)

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE

Land at S.No. 11/2B, 
Mount Poonamallee Road, 
Nazarathpettai Village, 
Poonamallee Taluk

      
16,68,70,000 

Sriperumbudur Taluk 
Co-operative Credit 
Society

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at S.No. 52/2A2 & 54/2A, 
Trunk Road, Ariyamanthanallur 
Village, Poonamallee Taluk

        
4,02,76,655 

Rural Department 
& Panchayat Raj 
Department, 
Ariyamanthanallur

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at S.No. 216/17, Trunk 
Road, Kattupakkam Village, 
Poonamallee Taluk

            
8,76,285 

Rural Department 
& Panchayat Raj 
Department, 
Kattupakkam

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at S.No. 204 & 209, 
Jawaharlal Nehru Road, Padi 
Village, Ambattur Taluk

           
78,75,595 

Chennai Central 
Co-operative Bank 
Limited, Padi

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at S.Nos. 53/2A & 53/2, 
Nandambakkam Village, 
Alandur Taluk

        
1,49,31,600 

Chennai Trade 
Centre, Revenue 
Department, 
Nandambakkam

  2021-22 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at S.No. 127 & 128, 
Valasaravakkam Village, 
Maduravoyal Taluk

      
19,43,36,010 

Milk Production 
Union Limited   2021-22 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship
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PPE Land at S.No. 2779/3, 
Purasaiwakkam Village & Taluk

           
28,56,150 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2021-22 Action is being taken to 

obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 77, T.S.No. 
2/2, 3/2, 4/2, Taluk/Village: 
Aminijikarai/ Koyambedu

           
98,95,060 

Greater Chennai 
Corporation, 
Division-127, Zone-
10, Kaliamman 
Koil Street Road 
Widening 

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 55, T.S.No. X 
(old No.348 pt), Taluk/Village: 
Ayanavaram/ Konnur

        
1,75,43,495 

Villivakkam Bus 
Terminus, Greater 
Chennai Corporation, 
Division-94, Unit-21, 
Zone-8

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 1, T.S.No. 6 
& 7, Taluk/Village: Aminjikarai/ 
Villivakkam

        
1,17,91,620 

Nadhamuni EB 
Cable, 
GCC, Division-94, 
Zone-8

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 6, T.S.No. 1, 
Taluk/Village: Aminjikarai/ 
Villivakkam

           
70,85,790 

TNHB - Special 
Project Divn.I/ C5- 
Villivakkam MTH MS 
and EB Cable

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 143, T.S.No. 
9353, Taluk/Village: Guindy/  
T-Nagar

      
13,64,55,770 

TNHB, CIT Nagar 
Redevelopment 
work Divn./ C4- 
Nandanam MS

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 17, 
T.S.No. 129/2, Taluk/Village: 
Mambalam/ Virugambakkam

           
15,57,810 

GCC, Division-128, 
C4-Ex-05 
Saligramam Ware 
House Metro to 
Alwarthirunagar 
Metro

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 4, T.S.No. 
116, Taluk/Village: Aminjikarai/ 
Sencheri

           
45,94,135 

GCC, Zone-10, 
Divn.127, 
C5-Ecv-02 
Viaduct-03 Near 
Kaliyamman 
Koil Street Road 
Widening

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship
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PPE

Land at Block No. 74, T.S.No. 
3762/29, Taluk/Village: 
Mylapore/  
Mylapore

           
38,08,035 

GCC, Divn-123, 
Zone-9,  
C4-Bharathidasan 
Road MS

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE

Land at Block No. 7, T.S.No. 91 
& 96 
(12 + 12), Taluk/Village: 
Egmore/  
Puliyur

           
17,30,880 

GCC, Divn-132, 
Zone-10, C4-
Meenakshi College 
Cut and Cover and 
Ramp.

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE

Land at Block No. 6, T.S.No. 
109 & 110 
(13 + 27), Taluk/Village: 
Egmore/  
Puliyur

           
28,84,800 

GCC, Divn-133, 
Zone-10, C4-Ex-1 & 
2 power house ms to 
vadapalani ms

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE
Land at Block No. 21, T.S.No. 
20, Taluk/Village: Mambalam/ 
Virugambakkam

        
1,80,23,145 

GCC, Divn.128,  
C-5, ECV-2, 
Viaduct-03 Near 
Kaliyamman 
Koil Street Road 
Widening

  2022-23 Action is being taken to 
obtain the titleship

PPE

Land at Block No. 4, T.S.No. 
3, Madhavaram High Road, 
Sembium Village, Perambur 
Taluk

           
38,48,475 

District Collector, 
Chennai, Sembium 
Village

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 42, T.S.No. 
2, Arcot Road, Puliyur Village, 
Egmore Taluk

        
1,31,97,960 

Director of School 
Education, Puliyur   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No./T.S.No. 3/2 & 
5/2, OMR Road, Thiruvanmiyur 
Village, Velachery Taluk

        
3,44,20,100 

Public Works 
Department 
(PWD - WRO), 
Thiruvanmiyur

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No./T.S.No. 
429/7 & 648/14, 17,19,20, 
Perumbakkam to Sholinganallur 
Main Road, Perumbakkam 
Village, Tambaram Taluk

           
66,40,750 

Animal Husbandry 
Department, 
Perumbakkam

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.
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PPE

Land at Block No. 26, T.S.No. 
1283, West Cott Road, 
Triplicane (Part-II) Village, 
Mylapore Taluk

      
10,42,86,725 

Public Works 
Department (PWD - 
Buildings), Triplicane 
West Cott Road

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Ward-H, Block No. 
10, T.S.No. 97 & 98, Block No. 
36, T.S.No. 3, Medavakkam 
Main Road, Kilkattalai, 
Kovilambakkam & Pallavaram 
Town, Tambaram Taluk

        
5,38,88,580 

Animal Husbandry 
Department, 
Kancheepuram

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No. 429, 
T.S.No. 2S, Perumbakkam 
to Sholinganallur Main 
Road, Perumbakkam Village, 
Tamabaram Taluk

           
18,18,000 

Animal Husbandry 
Department, 
Perumbakkam

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No. 94, T.S.No. 
1, Rajiv Gandhi Salai - Okkiyam 
Thoraipakkam, Egattur Village, 
Thiruporur Taluk

        
2,43,51,510 

Animal Husbandry 
Department, 
Okkiyam 
Thoraipakkam 
(Egattur)

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at T.S.No. 439/3A1A1A1, 
Rajiv Gandhi Salai - Okkiyam 
Thoraipakkam, Shollinganallur 
Village & Taluk

      
12,92,59,200 

Public Works 
Department (PWD)   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 20, T.S.No. 
1017,  980/2, Kamarajar Salai, 
Mylapore Village & Taluk

        
3,43,00,600 

Public Works 
Department (PWD - 
Buildings)

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at S.No.429/2S, 
Perumbakkam to Sholinganallur 
Main Road, Perumbakkam 
Village, Tambaram Taluk

        
1,37,10,750 

Animal Husbandry 
Department   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at S.No. 75/1, Rajiv 
Gandhi Salai - Okkiyam 
Thoraipakkam Village, 
Shollinganallur Taluk

      
21,73,74,735 

Animal Husbandry 
Department   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.
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PPE

Land at S.No.429/7, 
Perumbakkam to Sholinganallur 
Main Road, Perumbakkam 
Village, Tambaram Taluk

      
33,40,57,500 

Animal Husbandry 
Department   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 20, T.S.No. 
1014, 1015, Kamarajar Salai, 
Mylapore Village & Taluk

            
7,32,025 

Public Works 
Department (PWD - 
Buildings)

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 15/3 & 14/2, 
Trunk Road, Poonamallee 
Village & Taluk

        
2,17,77,305 

Revenue 
Department, 
Tahsildar, 
Poonamallee

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 1384/3 
& 1384/7, Trunk Road, 
Poonamallee Village & Taluk

           
33,10,410 

Revenue 
Department, 
Tahsildar, 
Poonamallee

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at T.S.No. 297/2B 
(Poonamallee Village & Taluk) 
& T.S.No. 14/1, 14/2, 15/2 pt. & 
15/3 pt. (Nasarathpet Village, 
Poonamallee Taluk)

        
4,62,15,920 

Revenue 
Department, 
Tahsildar, 
Poonamallee

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at T.S.No. 595, 600, 738, 
739/1A1, 740 & 742/3, Trunk 
Road, Poonamallee Village & 
Taluk

        
3,51,81,220 

Revenue 
Department, 
Tahsildar, 
Poonamallee

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at T.S.No. 741/2, 742/3, 
743/1, 743/2A, 744/2B, 749/1, 
754, 755/1, 755/2, 755/3, 
757/1, 757/2, 758/1, 758/2, 
759/1, 760, 597/2A, Trunk 
Road, Poonamallee Village & 
Taluk

           
63,93,635 

Revenue 
Department, 
Tahsildar, 
Poonamallee

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at T.S.No. 1325/ 11, 
133/3, 133/4, 1344/11, 
1344/12, 1345/17, 1345/19, 
1345/21 and 1384/7, Trunk 
Road, Poonamallee Village & 
Taluk

           
56,14,715 

Revenue 
Department, 
Tahsildar, 
Poonamallee

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.
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PPE

Land at Block No. 38, 
T.S.No. 61, Aroct Road, 
Virugambakkam Village, 
Mambalam Taluk

        
1,92,99,535 

Revenue 
Department, 
Tahsildar, Mambalam

  2021-22

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE

Land at Block No. 28, T.S.No. 
145, Jawaharlal Nehru Road, 
Koyambedu Village, Aminjikarai 
Taluk

            
6,05,815 

Revenue 
Department, 
Tahsildar, Aminjikarai

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at S.No. 289/4, Trunk 
Road, Poonamallee Village & 
Taluk

           
20,77,120 

Registration 
Department   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at S.No. 240/1A1, 241 
& 254,   1223, 1225, 1226, 
1227/1A, 1227/1B & 1311, 
Trunk Road, Kattupakkam 
Village, Poonamallee Taluk

           
13,30,655 

Registration 
Department   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 43, T.S.No. 
782/2, Jawahar Street, 
Perambur Village & Taluk

           
46,87,800 Revenue Department   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at S.No. 28/1, 
Medavakkam Main 
Road, Ullagaram Village, 
Shollinganallur Taluk

           
43,99,320 Revenue Department   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at S.No. 475/14, & 
602/5C, Perumbakkam 
to Sholinganallur Road, 
Shollinganallur Village & Taluk

        
3,10,07,000 Revenue Department   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at S.No. 476/22 (OMR 
Road), Rajiv Gandhi Salai, 
Okkiyam Thoraipakkam, 
Shollinganallur Village & Taluk

        
5,06,64,990 Revenue Department   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at S.No. 30, Trunk 
Road, Kattupakkam Village, 
Poonamallee Taluk

        
4,58,91,370 

Animal Husbandry 
Department   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.
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PPE

Land at Block No. 143, S.No. 
6743/3, Venkatanarayana 
Road, T. Nagar Village, Guindy 
Taluk

        
2,49,54,385 

District Collector, 
Chennai, T. Nagar   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No./T.S.No. 
33/120 & 43/15, Arcot Road, 
Virugambakkam Village, 
Mambalam Taluk

        
9,74,49,670 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE
Land at Block No. 131, S.No. 
5797, Venkatanarayana Road, 
T. Nagar Village, Guindy Taluk

        
1,06,74,130 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No. 33, 
T.S.No. 109, Arcot Road, 
Virugambakkam Village, 
Mambalam Taluk

           
28,55,985 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 41, T.S.No. 
12, Arcot Road, Saligramam 
Village, Mambalam Taluk

           
52,79,245 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No. 33, T.S.No. 
102, 103, Arcot Road, 
Virugambakkam Village, 
Mambalam Taluk

           
32,88,710 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No. 34, 
T.S.No. 148,  Arcot Road, 
Virugambakkam Village, 
Mambalam Taluk

        
4,06,76,150 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 35, T.S.No. 
2, Arcot Road, Virugambakkam 
Village, Mambalam Taluk

           
83,94,865 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at S.No.221/3B1, 
3B2 & 216/17, Trunk Road, 
Kattupakkam Village, 
Poonamallee Taluk

           
29,20,950 

Directorate of Rural 
Development & 
Panchayat Raj

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No. 18, 33, 34, 
35, T.S.No. 36, 109, 148, 2, 
Arcot Road, Virugambakkam 
Village, Mambalam Taluk

        
5,27,92,450 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.
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PPE

Land at Block No. 4, 9 & 10, 
T.S.No. 178, 228, 443, 446, 
447 & 449, Medavakkam 
Main Road, St.Thomas Mount 
Village, Pallavaram Taluk

        
1,50,46,020 

District Collector, 
Chengalpattu   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Ward H, Block No. 10, 
T.S. No. 97 & 98, Medavakkam 
Main Road, Kilkattalai Village, 
Pallavaram Taluk

            
3,60,700 

District Collector, 
Chengalpattu   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at S.No.123 part, 
Medavakkam Main Road, 
Nanmangalam Village, 
Tambaram Taluk

        
1,22,18,580 

District Collector, 
Chengalpattu   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at S.No. 452/12, 13, 14, 
15, 455/22, 23, 24, 26, 456/11, 
12, 13, 14, Medavakkam Main 
Road, Medavakkam Village, 
Tambaram Taluk

        
1,60,72,235 

District Collector, 
Chengalpattu   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No .21, T.S.No. 
8, 23, Kaliamman Koil Street, 
Virugambakkam Village, 
Mambalam Taluk

        
9,42,05,010 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No. 23, T.S.No. 
21/3, Kaliamman Koil Street, 
Virugambakkam Village, 
Mambalam Taluk

           
15,14,550 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at S. No. 484/11, 484/8, 
500/2, 500/3, 500/7, 500/8, 
500/12, 500/13, 500/14, 
500/15, 500/17, 500/18, 
500/22, 500/23, 501/5, 489/15, 
489/16, 489/17, 489/18, 
489/19, 489/20, 489/21, 
489/23, 501/5, Velachery Main 
Road, Medavakkam Village, 
Tambaram Taluk

        
1,08,07,515 

District Collector, 
Chengalpattu   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.
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Relevant 
line item 

in 
the 

Balance 
sheet

Description of property Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether 
title deed 
holder is a 
promoter, 
director or 

relative 
of 

promoter/
director 

or 
employee 

of 
promoter/
director*

Property 
held 
since

Reason 
for not 

being held 
in name of 
company

PPE

Land at Block No. 9, T.S.No. 
69, 75, 77 & 20/3, Block No. 
11, T.S.No. 22, 23, 24  25 & 
57, Block No. 12, T.S.No. 6, 
10, 11,  14 & 15, Arcot Road, 
Saligramam Village, Mambalam 
Taluk

        
2,61,36,590 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No. 1, 4 & 6, 
T.S.No. 159, 104, 105, 101 & 
102, Block No. 7, T.S.No. 113, 
Block No. 19, T.S.No. 74, Block 
No. 20, T.S.No. 48, 159, Block 
No. 23, T.S.No. 21/1,  Arcot 
Road, Virugambakkam Village, 
Mambalam Taluk

      
14,58,28,325 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 27, T.S.No. 
1760, Perambur Barracks Road, 
Purasawalkam Village & Taluk

        
6,34,41,150 

Greatre Chennai 
Corporation (GCC)   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No. 15, T.S.No. 
16, 17/1, 19, 20, 21 & 22, 
Adambakkam Village, Alandur 
Taluk

        
1,48,20,660 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 74, T.S.No. 
120, Koyambedu Village, 
Aminjikarai Taluk

        
3,42,28,830 

Chennai Metroplitan 
Development 
Authority (CMDA)

  2021-22 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No. 8, T.S.No. 
419,  
St.Thomas Mount 
[Cantonment] Village, 
Pallavaram Taluk

           
24,48,765 

District Collector, 
Chengalpattu   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Survey No.40/1, 
41/2 & 55, Nandambakkam 
Village, Alandur Taluk

        
3,97,09,400 

District Collector, 
Chengalpattu   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Ward -E, Block No. 9, 
13, T.S.No. 69, 99 (Inner Ring 
Road), , Alandur 
[Adambakkam] Village & 
Alandur Taluk

           
25,63,945 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.
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Relevant 
line item 

in 
the 

Balance 
sheet

Description of property Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether 
title deed 
holder is a 
promoter, 
director or 

relative 
of 

promoter/
director 

or 
employee 

of 
promoter/
director*

Property 
held 
since

Reason 
for not 

being held 
in name of 
company

PPE

Land at Ward -E, Block No. 
16, T.S.No. 2, 22/1B, 22/2B1 
and 22/5-1 (Inner Ring Road), 
Alandur 
[Adambakkam] Village & 
Alandur Taluk

        
3,43,04,935 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No. 1, T.S.No. 3, 
Block No. 2, T.S.No. 6, Block 
No. 3, T.S.No. 83, 84, 85, 86, 
88, 132, 133, 134 & 135, 178, 
207, 228 & 1826, St.Thomas 
Mount [Cantonment] Village, 
Pallavaram Taluk

        
2,57,82,900 

District Collector, 
Chengalpattu   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No. 7, T.S.No. 
405, Block No. 8, T.S.No. 
419, 420 and 421, St.Thomas 
Mount [Cantonment] Village, 
Pallavaram Taluk

        
2,35,78,830 

District Collector, 
Chengalpattu   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 1, T.S.No. 2, 
Erukancheri Village, Perambur 
Taluk

        
1,62,61,000 

District Collector, 
Chennai   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at S.No. 141/1, 
Medavakkam Main Road, 
Nanmangalam Village, 
Tambaram Taluk

           
97,19,325 

District Collector, 
Chengalpattu   2021-22 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 15 & 16, 
T.S.No. 20 & 34, Taluk/Village: 
Alandur/ Ullagaram

        
2,11,31,160 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District, Vanuvampet 
MS.

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. H/33, T.S.No. 
5, Taluk/Village: Pallavaram/ 
Pallavaram

           
94,50,340 

Revenue 
Department, 
Chengulpet District, 
Kilkattalai MS

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at Block No. 1,4,20,21 & 
23, T.S.No. 64, 103, 152, 23 7 
110, Taluk/Village: Mambalam/ 
Virugambakkam

           
47,45,590 

Revenue 
Department, Chennai 
District, Kaliamman 
Koil Street Road 
Widening

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.
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Relevant 
line item 

in 
the 

Balance 
sheet

Description of property Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether 
title deed 
holder is a 
promoter, 
director or 

relative 
of 

promoter/
director 

or 
employee 

of 
promoter/
director*

Property 
held 
since

Reason 
for not 

being held 
in name of 
company

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 224/2 & 224/3, 
Taluk/Village: Kundrathur/ 
Iyyappanthangal

      
11,00,13,500 

Block Development 
Officer, Kundrathur 
at Padappai Rural 
Development 
Department, 
Thellagaram MS.

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 429/7, 
Taluk/Village: Tambaram/ 
Perumbakkam

        
2,95,42,500 

Regional Director of 
Animal Husbandary, 
Kancheepuram, 
Perumbakkam MS

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 6, T.S.No. 
2/1, Taluk/Village: Velachery/ 
Thiruvanmiyur

        
1,88,27,380 

Tidel Park Limited, 
Chennai-113, 
Thiruvanmiyur MS

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 63, T.S.No. 
4/1, Taluk/Village: Aminijikarai/ 
Koyambedu

        
3,02,40,515 

CMDA, Chennai-8, 
CMBT MS   2022-23 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 8, T.S.No. 
418, Taluk/Village: Pallavaram/ 
St.Thomas Mount

        
1,87,82,280 

Police Department,  
Butt Road MS   2022-23 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. , T.S.No. 
194/2, Taluk/Village: 
Maduravoyal/ Valasaravakkam

        
1,07,90,835 

Chennai Revenue 
District, 
Karambakkam MS

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 4/1A2, 
4/1A1A2, 4/1A2, Taluk/Village: 
Maduravoyal/ Porur

           
14,28,020 

Chennai Revenue 
District,  
Ex-09 Karambakkam 
Metro to Alapakkam 
Metro 

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 54, T.S.No. 
2610, Taluk/Village: Mylapore/ 
Mylapore

        
5,74,07,520 

Director General 
of Police, Kutchery 
Road MS

  2022-23

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 1325/11 
& 1384/3, Taluk/Village: 
Poonamallee/ Poonamallee

           
32,77,955 

Tahsildar,  
Ex-17, Mullaithottam 
MS to Poonamallee 
MS

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.
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Relevant 
line item 

in 
the 

Balance 
sheet

Description of property Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether 
title deed 
holder is a 
promoter, 
director or 

relative 
of 

promoter/
director 

or 
employee 

of 
promoter/
director*

Property 
held 
since

Reason 
for not 

being held 
in name of 
company

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 157, Taluk/
Village: Maduravoyal/ 
Valasaravakkam

           
35,37,595 

Chennai Revenue 
Unit, 
Alapakkam MS & 
Ex-09 Karambakkam 
Metro to Alapakkam 
Metro

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 183, 189, 
190/1, 191, Taluk/Village: 
Maduravoyal/ Valasaravakkam

        
5,30,88,600 

Chennai Revenue 
Unit,  
Ex-07 & 08 
Valasaravakkam 
Metro to 
Karambakkam Metro

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 4/1A2, 
4/1A1A2, 4/1A2, Taluk/Village: 
Maduravoyal/ Porur

           
11,35,925 

Chennai Revenue 
Unit,  
Karambakkam Metro 
to Alapakkam Metro

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 170/1, 171/1, 
Taluk/Village: Maduravoyal/ 
Porur

            
6,16,645 

Chennai Revenue 
Unit, 
Alapakkam Metro to 
Porur Junction Metro

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE

Land at T.S.No. 503/3A, 
503/4A, 503/9A, 503/10A, 
503/11A, 505/5, 505/12, 
Taluk/Village: Tambaram/ 
Medavakkam

           
43,57,105 

Chengalpet Revenue 
Unit, 
Viaduct 07 Near 
Kamarajar Gardedn 
Street (ECV-03)

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 505/8A, 
Taluk/Village: Tambaram/ 
Medavakkam

           
37,80,005 

Chengalpet Revenue 
Unit, 
Viaduct 07 Near 
Kamarajar Gardedn 
Street (ECV-03)

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 267, 
Taluk/Village: Tambaram/ 
Medavakkam

           
12,40,765 

Chengalpet Revenue 
Unit,  
Viaduct-04 Near 
Medavakkam 
 Koot Road-1

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. , T.S.No. 129, 
Taluk/Village: Maduravoyal/ 
Karambakkam

           
33,47,180 

Chennai Revenue 
Unit,  
Porur Bypass MS

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.
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Relevant 
line item 

in 
the 

Balance 
sheet

Description of property Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether 
title deed 
holder is a 
promoter, 
director or 

relative 
of 

promoter/
director 

or 
employee 

of 
promoter/
director*

Property 
held 
since

Reason 
for not 

being held 
in name of 
company

PPE

Land at T.S.No. 72/1, 194/2, 
222/9, 222/14, 222/15, 222/16, 
222/17, 223/7, 223/19, 223/6, 
Taluk/Village: Maduravoyal/ 
Valasaravakkam

        
1,63,30,515 

Chennai Revenue 
Unit, 
Karambakkam MS

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 261, 262/3, 
Taluk/Village: Tambaram/ 
Medavakkam

        
1,28,40,475 

PWD (WRO), 
Vellakkal MS   2022-23 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 113, Taluk/
Village: Poonamallee/ 
Poonamallee

        
4,05,68,750 

Tahsildar, 
Poonamallee, 
Tiruvallur Rev. Unit

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at T.S.No. 289/2, 
Taluk/Village: Kundrathur/ 
Iyyappanthangal

        
1,71,69,320 MTC, Chennai   2022-23 Alienation proposals to 

be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 1, T.S.No. 2, 
Taluk/Village: Velachery/ 
Thiruvanmiyur

      
46,44,64,000 

AE (PWD), Technical 
education section-II 
DTE Campus, 
C3-RSS Near 
Thiruvanmiyur

  2022-23 Alienation proposals to 
be sent to Government.

PPE
Land at Block No. 5, T.S.No. 
23, Taluk/Village: Mambalam/ 
Kodambakkam

           
72,84,120 

Police Department-
Vadapalani Police 
Station 
C4-Vadapalani MS

  2022-23

Requisition sent to the 
District Collector for the 
process of alienation 
proposal.

33,13,18,00,716 

* The lands included above are not held in the name of the promoter, director or relative of promoter/director 
 or employee of promoter/director.
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CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Non-Current Assets :
Note 3 - Capital Work In Progress for the year ended March 31, 2023

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Opening 
balance

Additions/ 
(Reversals) 

during the year
Total

Capitalization/ 
(reversals) 
during the 

year

Closing 
balance

Buildings & Viaduct 38,255.89 1,62,231.70 2,00,487.60 27,213.00 1,73,274.60 
Underground Stations & Tunnels (incl. Systems) 41,068.24 1,57,992.35 1,99,060.59 8,531.73 1,90,528.86 
Depot and Stabling 21,941.86 27,944.58 49,886.44 30,054.09 19,832.35 
Commercial Buildings for Property Development 2,204.19 8,280.77 10,484.96 10,036.49 448.47 
Rolling Stock 217.82 98.60 316.42 -   316.42 
Signalling & Telecommunication 0.00 95.16 95.16 95.16 -0.00 
Permanent Way 0.00 3,797.09 3,797.09 199.96 3,597.13 
Power Supply & OHE 475.91 1,383.81 1,859.72 1,804.98 54.74 
Lifts & Escalators 255.73 1,136.61 1,392.34 1,392.34 -0.00 
Automatic Fare Collection 1,335.23 1,780.54 3,115.77 3,115.77 -0.00 
General & other consultancy charges 32,231.10 25,169.71 57,400.81 1,012.86 56,387.95 
Expenses pending Capitalization 18,581.84 16,588.80 35,170.64 6,027.96 29,142.68 
Total- Capital Work-in-progress 1,56,567.82 4,06,499.72 5,63,067.54 89,484.34 4,73,583.20 

For the Financial Year 2021-22 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Opening 
balance

Additions/ 
(Reversals) 

during the year
Total

Capitalization/ 
(reversals) 
during the  

year

Closing 
balance

Buildings & Viaduct 23,174.55 28,027.04 51,201.59 12,945.70 38,255.89

Underground Stations & Tunnels (incl. Systems) 189.30 44,023.90 44,213.20 3,144.96 41,068.24

Depot and Stabling 20,057.65 6,699.67 26,757.32 4,815.46 21,941.86

Commercial Buildings for Property Development 735.32 1,468.87 2,204.19 -   2,204.19

Rolling Stock 176.66 (57.48) 119.18 (98.64) 217.82

Signalling & Telecommunication 1,258.92 4,652.34 5,911.26 5,911.26 0.00

Permanent Way 0.00 926.97 926.97 926.97 0.00

Power Supply & OHE 3,003.91 2,042.78 5,046.69 4,570.78 475.91

Lifts & Escalators 224.42 658.45 882.87 627.14 255.73

Automatic Fare Collection 1,809.34 122.13 1,931.47 596.24 1,335.23

General & other consultancy charges 18,889.04 13,828.89 32,717.93 486.83 32,231.10

Expenses pending Capitalization 23,148.76 62.18 23,210.94 4,629.10 18,581.84

Total- Capital Work-in-progress 92,667.87 1,02,455.74 1,95,123.61 38,555.80 1,56,567.82 
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 CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Non-Current Assets 
Note 5 - Intangible Assets under development for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Opening 
Balance 

 Additions/ 
Adjustments  Total 

 Capitalized 
during the 

year 
 Closing Balance 

Rolling Stock Asset Management 
Software 354.63 486.65 841.28 841.28 -   

Rolling Stock Asset Management 
Software - PY 125.98 228.65 354.63   354.63 

Other Applications 67.38 383.99 451.37 -   451.37 

Other Applications - PY 24.44 74.29 98.73 31.35 67.38 

Current Year - Total 422.01 870.64 1,292.65 841.28 451.37 

Previous Year - Total 150.42 302.94 453.36 31.35 422.01 

Note 5.1 :The company has done an impairment analysis of all its assets under development as on 31st March 2023 
and in view of the long life of the projects undertaken by the company and no indicators exist for impairment of such 
assets as on that date, no impairment loss has been considered

Intangible Assets Under Development ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

(` in Lakhs)

Intangible Assets under 
Development

Amount in CWIP for a period of  
Less than 

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years Total

(i) Projects in Progress 383.99 67.38 -   451.37 

(ii) Projects suspended temporarily -   -   -   -   -   

Current Year - Total 383.99 67.38 -   -   451.37 

Previous Year - Total 296.99 -   -   125.02 422.01 

(` in Lakhs)

Note 6 - Other Financial Assets - Non Current
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Unsecured, Considered Good      
Deposits (Refer Note No. 6.1) 1,832.88 1,485.84 1,363.47 

Court Deposit - ESI & Others 14.18 2.94 2.94 

Earmarked Long Term Deposits with Bank  
(with maturities more than 12 months) (Refer Note No. 6.2) 118.55   118.49 282.98  

Total 1,965.61 1,607.27 1,649.39 
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Note 6.1 - Deposits include deposits with Electricity Board for Rs. 1,832.28 Lakh(P.Y. Rs. 1,485.42 Lakh ). Since 
the exact term of the same is not ascertainable in view of the expected perpetual usage of related services, these 
deposits are carried at  their initial transaction value.

Note 6.2 - Earmarked long term deposits represent lien against Bank Guarantees issued by the company 
to CMDA for Rs. 117.29 Lakh (P.Y. Rs. 117.29 Lakh) and Department of Telecom (DoT) for Rs. 1.26 Lakh  
(P.Y. Rs. 1.20 Lakh). On maturity, these deposits are renewed along with interest realized.

(` in Lakhs)

Note 7 - Other Non- Current Assets
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Unsecured, Considered good      
Capital Advances      
(a) Land Advance and Court deposits for LAOP cases      

i)    Land Advance (Refer Note No. 7.1) 32,070.46   13,058.36   4,274.02  
ii)  Court Deposits for LAOP cases 12,451.83 12,451.83 2,601.83 

Secured, Considered good      
(b) Advances to Contractors      

i)   Mobilization and other Advances (Refer Note No. 7.2) 1,78,740.20 76,993.65 4,669.94 

Deposits paid for Capital Works ( Refer Note No. 7.3) 5,961.06   5,961.06   5,961.06  
Other than Capital Advances      
Income Tax - Advance Tax & TDS (Net) 1,588.12 1,588.12 1,588.12 

Wealth Tax (Net) -   -   0.13 

GST Input Tax Credit -   -   1,594.02 

Total 2,30,811.67 1,10,053.02 20,689.12 

Note 7.1 - Land Advance includes amount of  Rs. 30,411.12 Lakh ( P. Y. Rs. 10,000.00 Lakh) which represents 
the advance to Special Thasildhar towards Land acquisition for Phase-II

Note 7.2 - Mobilization and other Advances includes an amount of Rs. 1,47,048.82 Lakh(P.Y. Rs.56,757.76 
Lakh) represents Mobilization advance and P&M advance for Phase-II, Rs.31,691.38 Lakh(P.Y. Rs. 25,929.84 
Lakh) represents capital advance towards Utility shifting charges for Phase-II . Mobilization and P&M advances 
to contractors are secured by the Bank Guarantees. 

Note 7.3 - Amount of Rs. 5,961.06 Lakh ( P.Y. Rs. 5,961.06 Lakh) has been paid to Southern Railway towards 
common alignment of MRTS & CMRL and for Foot Over Bridge (FOB) at Guindy.

(` in Lakhs)

Note 8 - Inventories As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

a) Stores & Spares (Refer Note 8.1) 435.36 700.02 861.31 

b) Loose Tools 55.81 44.36 41.80 

Total 491.17 744.38 903.11 

(Refer Note No. 1.3 (G) of Significant Accounting Policies)

Note 8.1 - Stores & Spares includes Rs. 272.77 Lakh (P.Y. Rs.514.78 Lakh) towards Contactless Smart Card

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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(` in Lakhs)

Note 9 - Trade Receivables
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Trade Receivables - Property Development      
(a) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured 934.71 702.49 635.49 

(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 591.16 310.85 96.23 

(c)  Trade Receivables-Credit Impaired 32.20 73.13 32.20 

      Less: Provision for doubtful debts 
(See Note 9.1 & 9.2) (32.20)  (73.13)  (32.20) 

Total 1,525.87 1,013.34 731.72 

Trade Receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less 
than 6 
months

6 
months 
- 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More 
than 3 
years

Total

(i)  Undisputed Trade Receivables- 
Considered Good 1,005.42 175.77 261.25 -   -   1,442.45 

(ii)  Undisputed Trade Receivables- 
Credit risk -   -   -   -   -   -   

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- 
Credit impaired -   -   -   -   -   -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- 
Considered Good -   -   -   -   -   -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables- Credit 
risk -   -   -   -   -   -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables- Credit 
impaired -   -   -   83.42 32.20 115.62 

Total- Current Year 1,005.42 175.77 261.25 83.42 32.20 1,558.07 

Total - Previous Year 413.29 477.58 39.05 83.42 73.13 1,086.47 

Total- Current Year Less: Provision for Doubtful  
Debts                           

32.20 

Total - Previous Year  73.13

Total- Current Year
Total Trade Receivables             

1,525.87 

Total - Previous Year 1,013.34

Note 9.1 - Trade receivables consist of license fees receivable from customers towards letting out of space 
in stations. The company collects security deposit from the customers by way of Cash/Bank Guarantee. The 
receivable to the extent unsecured is shown seperately.  
Note 9.2 - In respect of Trade receivables, the company has a system of sending statement of accounts to the 
respective parties and seeking confirmation of balance. Wherever the same has been received and any difference 
communicated, reconciled and accepted, it has been appropriately considered in the financial statements.

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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(` in Lakhs)

Note 10 - Cash and Cash Equivalents
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Cash on Hand 15.42 7.38 38.33 

Balances with Bank      
In Current Accounts (Refer Note 10.1) 1,18,980.45 1,81,208.61 1,10,902.36 

In Deposit Accounts ( with Maturities less than 3 months) 30,000.00 96,000.00 11,000.00 

Total 1,48,995.87 2,77,215.99 1,21,940.69 

Note 10.1 - The Funds received from Government of Tamilnadu towards Equity, Subordinate Debt, PTA, Grant 
are routed through Public Deposit A/c. The PD account is operated jointly by CMRL & GoTN. Current account 
balance includes balance in Public Deposit A/c of Rs. 1,10,000.00  Lakh (P.Y. Rs. 1,66,900.00 Lakh). 

(` in Lakhs)

Note 11 - Other Bank Balances
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Balance with Banks in Deposits Accounts      

In Deposit Accounts (with Maturities more than 3 months 
but  less than 12 months) -   -   39,500.00 

Earmarked Short Term Deposits (with Maturities more than 
3 months) (Refer Note No. 11.1) 5,407.50 172.83 5.32 

Total 5,407.50 172.83 39,505.32 

Note 11.1  Earmarked short term deposits represent lien against LC issued by the company to M/s Mitsui & 
Co Ltd for Rs. 5,407.50 Lakhs ( P.Y. Rs. Nil), and Bank Guarantees issued by the company to CMDA for Rs. Nil 
( P.Y. Rs. 172.83 lakh)

(` in Lakhs)

Note 12 - Other Financial Assets - Current
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Unsecured, Considered Good      
Interest Accrued On Deposits with Bank 119.28 418.81 184.87 

Rental & other deposits (Refer Note: 12.1) 27,172.27   25,683.89   172.34  
Construction contract receivables (Net) (Refer Note: 12.2) 8,554.95   5,088.99   5,084.20  
Other Receivables/Recoverables ( Refer Note: 12.3) 19,866.29   16,000.15   5,740.63  
Doubtful      
Other Receivables/Recoverables 15.56 15.56 15.56 

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (15.56) (15.56) (15.56) 

Stamp Duty Recoverable from GOTN (Refer Note No.12.4) 210.86 208.46 1,937.20 

SGST Receivable from GoTN (Refer Note No. 12.4) 4,233.30 2,119.52 15,018.19 

Total 60,156.95 49,519.82 28,137.43 

Note: 12.1- Rental & Other Deposits include an amount of  Rs. 26,816.65 Lakh ( P.Y.  Rs. 25,371.47 Lakh) paid 
under protest to Southern Railway for the land crossing charges 

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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Note 12.2 - Constructions contract receivables(Net) includes the mobilization advance of Rs. 3,442.86 Lakh 
(P.Y Rs. 3,442.86 Lakh) of the terminated contractor M/s ITNL KMB JV which is secured by Bank Guarantees 
amounting to Rs. 3,712.18 Lakh (P.Y. Rs. 3,712.18 Lakh) , encashment of which has been deferred by the order 
of NCLAT.

Note 12.3 - Other Receivables/Recoverables include amount of Rs. 15,301.93 Lakh (P.Y Rs. 11,805.26 Lakh) 
due from CMDA and Rs. 4,188.80 Lakh ( P.Y. Rs. 4,188.80 Lakh) due from Southern Railway for the develop-
ment works undertaken by the Company as an executing agency. The Company has taken up with CMDA seek-
ing clarification on the treatment of funding, i.e., debt/grant. On receipt of the same, necessary adjustments 
shall be given in the books.

Note 12.4 - Stamp Duty & SGST are reimbursable from Government of Tamil Nadu in accordance with clause 
10.4 of the Memorandum of Understanding(MOU) between the Government of India(GoI), Government of 
Tamil Nadu(GoTN) and CMRL.

(` in Lakhs)

Note 13 - Current Tax Assets
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Income Tax - Advance Tax & TDS (Net) 1,205.67 1,022.87 940.95 

Total 1,205.67 1,022.87 940.95 

(` in Lakhs)

Note 14 - Other Current Assets
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Unsecured, considered good      
Prepaid Expenses 192.90 167.68 147.09 

GST Input Credit 1,522.65 2,105.63 601.00 

Advances to Employees 46.50 31.57 3.10 

Other Advances 154.25 936.68 70.45 

Employee Insurance recoverables 2.31 2.95 1.10 

Total 1,918.61 3,244.51 822.74 

(` in Lakhs)

Note 15 - Share Capital
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Authorized      

20,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹1000/- each  
(P.Y. - 8,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 1,000/- each) 20,00,000.00 8,00,000.00 8,00,000.00 

Authorized share capital increased to Rs. 20,00,000 Lakh 
as per the approval of AGM dated 28.09.2022      

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up      
7,26,75,600 Equity Shares of ₹ 1000/- each fully paid(P.Y. 
7,26,75,600 Equity Shares of ₹ 1,000/- each) 7,26,756.00 7,26,756.00   5,39,600.00  

Total 7,26,756.00 7,26,756.00 5,39,600.00 

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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15.1 Reconciliation of Equity shares and amounts outstanding                                            (` In Lakhs)

Particulars

As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

At the beginning of the year 7,26,75,600 7,26,756.00 5,39,60,000 5,39,600.00 

Issued during the year -   -   1,87,15,600 1,87,156.00 

At the end of the year 7,26,75,600 7,26,756.00 7,26,75,600 7,26,756.00 

15.2 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Shares

Equity Shares
The Company has one class of equity shares, having a par value of ₹ 1000/- each. Each shareholder is eligible 
for one vote per share held. The dividend if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. 

15.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company                      (No. of Shares)

Name of Shareholder
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

The President & Nominees, Government of India 3,63,37,800 3,63,37,800 2,69,80,000 

The Governor & Nominees, Government of Tamilnadu 3,63,37,800 3,63,37,800 2,69,80,000 

Total 7,26,75,600 7,26,75,600 5,39,60,000 

 (` In Lakhs)

Note 16 - Other Equity
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Reserves & Surplus      

Capital Reserve 670.64 670.64 670.64 

Retained Earnings -  Surplus / (Deficit) (3,54,267.83) (2,97,531.33) (2,85,200.66)

Share Application Money Pending Allotment 2,00,000.27 1,00,000.27 66,800.27 

Total (1,53,596.92) (1,96,860.42) (2,17,729.75)

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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 (` In Lakhs)

16.1 Movement in Other Equity
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Capital Reserve (Refer Note No. 16.1.1)      
Opening Balance 670.64 670.64 670.64 

Add:  Additions during the year   -   -   

Closing Balance 670.64 670.64 670.64 

Retained Earnings - Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement 
of Profit and Loss 

     

Opening Balance (2,97,531.33) (2,85,200.66) (97,062.88)

Add:  Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the Year (56,736.50) (12,330.67) (61,301.26)

Add: Prior period foreign exchange fluctuation on 
borrowings     (1,26,114.19)

Add: Prior period expenses towards service charges on 
properties at Cantonment Board (Refer Note No.16.1.2)     (722.33)

Closing Balance (3,54,267.83) (2,97,531.33) (2,85,200.66)

Share Application Money Pending allotment      
Opening Balance  1,00,000.27 66,800.27 66,800.27 

Add:  Transferred from Subordinate Debt -   8,186.00  
Add:  Received during the Year 1,00,000.00 2,12,170.00 -   

Less : Share Capital issued -   (1,87,156.00) -   

Closing Balance (Refer Note No. 16.1.3) 2,00,000.27 1,00,000.27 66,800.27 

Total (1,53,596.92) (1,96,860.42) (2,17,729.75)

Note 16.1.1 - Capital Reserve represents the value of lands that have been acquired from parties other than 
government without any consideration  and taken in books of accounts at guideline values on registration.

Note 16.1.2. Prior Period Restatement as per Ind AS 8

 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Total
For the Year ended Cumulative 

as at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Exchange Fluctuation on Foreign Currency 
Borrowings (Refer Note 16.1.2(a)) (56,613.95) 9,270.41 60,229.82 (1,26,114.19) 

Expenses towards service charges on 
properties at Cantonment Board Area (1,020.47) (147.19) (150.94) (722.33) 

Total (57,634.42) 9,123.22 60,078.88 (1,26,836.52) 

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
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Note 16.1.2(a): Till end of previous year ie., 31st March’2022 the Company has not accounted the impact 
of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation on external Borrowings since the same was received in INR as Pass Through 
Assistance from the Government of India. In May’2023, based on communication received from Govt. of India 
the company has made payment of interest, principal along with foreign exchange fluctuations to Govt. of India. 
As the amount pertains to previous financial years and material in nature, the company has restated its books 
of accounts including loan liability and forex fluctuations as on 31st March’2023 by opening previous year 
finacials i.e., 1st April’2021 & 31st March’2022 in line with Ind AS 8 requirement.  Through this restatement, 
the company has complied with Ind AS 21 requirement.

(` in Lakhs)

16.1.3 Details of Advance Share Application Money
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

    - From Government of India -   -   -   

    - From Government of Tamil Nadu 2,00,000.27 1,00,000.27 66,800.27 

Total 2,00,000.27 1,00,000.27 66,800.27 

A)   Chennai Metro Rail Limited is a Special Purpose Vehicle formed as Joint Venture between the Government 
of India and Government of Tamil Nadu and both Governments hold 50% each shares in the equity capital. 
The equity contribution is being released in phases and in order to maintain equal shareholding, the excess 
releases are held as Share Application Money. Equity Shares of ₹ 1000 each at par shall be issued to the 
shareholders having all rights similar to the existing shares in such a manner that the proportion of equity 
holding of the shareholders is equal. 

B)   The approval for Phase-II project from CCEA is awaited. In this regard, the excess money received from 
GoTN towards equity is shown as share application money pending allotment.

C)   No. of Shares to be Issued - 2,00,00,027 Shares (P.Y. 1,00,00,027 Shares) of ₹ 1000/- each.

(` in Lakhs)

Note 17 - Long Term Borrowings
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Unsecured      

Term Loans from Other Parties      

From Government of India against Bi-lateral/Multilateral 
agencies (Refer Note No. 17.1) 10,40,229.94 9,85,418.46 10,74,401.56 

Sub-Ordinate Debt from Government of India 42,949.63 42,077.97 37,176.85 

Sub-Ordinate Debt from Government of Tamil Nadu 
(Refer Note No. 17.2) 3,28,763.37   3,03,523.87   2,85,390.36  

Total 14,11,942.94 13,31,020.30 13,96,968.77 

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
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CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 17.1(f) Ind AS 23: As per the stipulation of the clause 6A, the difference in interest between the foreign 
currency loan and the functional currency loan, in which the company operates, needs to be considered as 
borrowing cost duly adjusted from the forex fluctuations and taken to the capitalisation with the qualifying 
asset.

The key factor for arriving at the Interest amount adjusted from forex fluctuation as per IND AS 23 is the availability 
of comparable loan in the functional currency i.e., Indian Rupee, with the interest rates. The multilateral and bilateral 
loans are extended to Government companies/PSUs, duly backed up by sovereign guarantee or given as Pass 
Through Assistance (PTA) for execution of public utility services.  However, there is no comparable loan product 
of this kind of longer tenor foreign currency loans with lower interest rates are available in Indian financial system.  

In view of the above, the entire foreign currency fluctuation is accounted in the P&L a/c or Reserves. Impact 
of this is ` 7,834.60 Lakhs(Gain) in FY.22-23, ` 60,229.82 Lakh(Gain) in FY 21-22 and ` 1,26,114.19 
Lakh(Loss) is adjusted in the opening reserves of 01-04-2021.

Note 17.1(g)- Phase-II Project

Government of Tamil Nadu (GoTN) has accorded approval for implementation of three Metro Rail corridors 
for a length of 118.9 Km under Phase II of the Chennai Metro Rail Project. GoTN recommended the same 
to Government of India for Central Government funding and loan assistance from Bilateral /Multilateral 
agencies. Funding for a portion of Chennai Metro Phase II (i.e. 52.01 Km, i.e. Madhavaram – Sholinganallur 
of Corridor 3 and Madhavaram – CMBT of Corridor 5) has been tied up with JICA for JPY 357,476 million 
of which through tranche 1 an amount of  JPY 75,519 million loan and through tranche 2 an amount of  JPY 
73,000 million loan have been effectuated. In addition, Funding to the tune of USD 795.42 million has been 
tied up with AIIB of which through tranche1 an amount of USD 356.67 million loan has been effectuated 
and funding to the tune of USD 780 million has been tied up with ADB of which through tranche1 an 
amount of USD 350 million loan has been effectuated. Loan agreement with NDB signed on 14th July’23 for 
USD 346.72 million.

In this regard, on 17-08-2021, the Public Investment Board meeting was conducted under the Chairmanship 
of Finance Secretary (Dept. of Expenditure, GoI). The proposal has been recommended by PIB to CCEA. The 
approval of CCEA is awaited
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(` In Lakhs)

Note 23 - Other Financial Liabilities - Current
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Bi-lateral/Multilateral Agencies Borrowings Repayable - 
Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note No. 23.1) 1,40,978.11 1,01,699.59 62,628.41 

Interest/Commitment Charges on Borrowings (Refer 
Note No.23.1)

     

Accrued and due 85,391.45 68,098.57 55,169.90 

Accrued but not due 3,094.78 1,869.05 1,662.24 

Pass Through Assistance against Bi-lateral/Multilateral 
Agencies Loan (Refer Note No. 23.2) 1,52,177.96 1,54,102.56 1,14,420.46 

Deposits      
Earnest Money Deposits 254.98 136.98 284.97 

Security Deposits 828.74 621.55 567.43 

Other Retention/ Recoveries      
i) Retention towards Potential Liquidated Damages and 
Penalties (Refer Note No. 23.3) 5,238.35 4,727.37 5,972.36 

ii) Construction Contracts Payables(Net)(Including 
terminated Contracts) 19,405.18 20,814.44 20,833.27 

Retention Money Payable (Refer Note No. 23.4) 4,791.91 6,046.60 7,738.95 

Payable for Capital Purchases(Refer Note 23.5) 1,40,201.69   1,08,185.35   12,103.17  
Revenue received in advance 2,662.83 2,024.44 1,722.28 

Total 5,55,025.98 4,68,326.50 2,83,103.44 

Note 23.1  Commitment charges & Interest accrued on borrowings represent the amount payable on Bilateral/
Multilateral agencies loan provided for as per the terms of the agreement. The commitment charges & interest 
are directly paid by Government of India (GoI) to respective Bilateral/Multilateral agencies on the due dates. 
During the year, the company has not made any payment towards principal, commitment charges & interest to 
Government of India (GoI).

Note 23.2 The total pass through assistance sanctioned for Phase I Extension Project is Rs.2,14,100 Lakhs and 
for Phase II is Rs. 33,59,400 Lakhs. For Phase II, an amount of Rs. 100,000 Lakhs(P.Y Rs. 50,000 Lakhs) has been 
remitted by GoTN as  “Pass Through Assistance” against Bilateral/Multilateral agencies loan during the Current 
Financial Year. Details of Pass Through Assistance is provided in Note No.17.1

Note 23.3 Liquidated damages and penalties would be determined at the time of settlement of final  bill or 
award of arbitration proceedings with the arbitration tribunal & the judicial authorities.

Note 23.4 Retention money represents amount held as security till the completion of defect liability period 
of various project related contracts.  Such retention moneys are released upon completion of work and at the 
request of the contractor against submission of Bank Guarantee of an equivalent amount. Accordingly, retention 
money is carried at its original transaction value.

Note 23.5 Payable for Capital Purchases includes Rs.1,04,250.20 Lakh( P.Y. Rs. 1,01,124.27 Lakh) towards land 
purchased from government department/agencies

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
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(` in Lakhs)

Note 24 - Other Current Liabilities
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Duties & Taxes 4,836.69 1,465.75 1,012.38 

Deposits received for Other Works  
( Refer Note 24.1) 38,825.79   15,637.38   -    

Provision for expenses ( Refer Note 24.2) 58,041.09   41,288.12   39,412.75  
Employee Benefits payable 514.56 502.77 359.84 

Other Payables (Refer Note 24.3) 282.71   6.35   40.85  
Total 1,02,500.84 58,900.37 40,825.82 

Note 24.1 The Company has received Rs. 38,825.79 Lakh( P.Y. Rs. 15,637.38 Lakh) towards Construction of 
Multi level Grade Separator as an executing agency from Highways Department.

Note 24.2 Provision for expenses includes Rs. 16,328.73 Lakh ( P.Y. Rs. 16,124.23 Lakhs) for Phase-I,  
Rs. 6,405.22 Lakh(P.Y. Rs. 6,191.10 Lakh) for Phase-I Extension and Rs. 29,786.50 Lakh  
( P.Y. Rs. 16,757.49 Lakh) for Phase-II respectively. 

Note 24.3 Other Payables represents the Tender Fees/Earnest Money deposits.

(` in Lakhs)

Note 25 - Current Provisions
As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 01-Apr-21

Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note No. 39) 428.55 262.04   198.23  
Total 428.55 262.04 198.23 

(` in Lakhs)

Note 26-Revenue from Operations 
 For the year ended  For the year ended  

(Restated) 

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Sale of Service    
From Traffic Operations    

Fare Box 19,805.22 8,533.81 

Parking Fees 1,634.52 890.29 

Other Operating Revenue    
From Business Development    

Lease/Other Income 5,786.45 3,498.07 

Total 27,226.19 12,922.17
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(` in Lakhs)

Note 27-Other Income 
 For the year ended  For the year ended  

(Restated) 

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Interest Income    
- On Deposits with Bank 2,928.12 2,266.00 

- On Electricity Deposit 90.54 58.41 

- On Others 2.44 3.26 

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation(Net) ( Refer Note No. 31.1) -   130.72 

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation(Net) on Borrowings 
(Refer Note:27.1) 7,834.60   60,229.82  

Government Grants (Refer Note No. 21.1) 8,585.10 4,985.87 

Income from unwinding of Security deposits 69.96 62.09 

Sale of Tender Documents 52.12 46.57 

Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (Refer Note : 27.2) 1,752.37   288.68  
Miscellaneous Income 114.89 321.53 

Total 21,430.14 68,392.95 

Note 27.1: Foreign Exchange Fluctuation accounted as per Ind AS 21 on Borrowings from Bi-lateral/Multilateral 
agencies for the first time. Refer Note No.16.1.2 .

Note 27.2: Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment includes the profit on exchange of Land as per Land to land 
policy

TOTAL INCOME 48,656.33 81,315.12 

(` in Lakhs)

Note 28-Operating Expenses 
 For the year ended  For the year ended  

(Restated) 

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Traction & Other Electricity Charges 11,289.15 7,048.43 

Solar Energy Charges 326.28 328.62 

Outsourcing Expenses 10,541.29 8,014.41 

Other Operating Expenses 3,864.08 1,736.44 

Revenue Sharing Expenses (Refer Note 28.1) 135.06   90.03  
Total 26,155.86 17,217.93 

Note 28.1: Revenue sharing expenses is towards the share of commerical revenue generated from commercial 
facilities created at Airport Metro Station with Airport authority of India based on MoU signed with AAI.

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
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(` in Lakhs)

Note 29-Employee Benefit Expenses 
 For the year ended  For the year ended  

(Restated) 

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Salaries & Wages 6,807.34 5,337.99 

Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 680.69 533.31 

Staff Welfare Expenses 421.51 248.46 

Less: Transferred to Capitalization ( Refer Note No.29.1) (3,436.58) (1,747.01)

Total 4,472.96 4,372.75 

Note 29.1:  The Proportionate salary of employees whose time is attributable to Phase-II project has been taken to 
the project capitalization. 

(` in Lakhs)

Note 30-Finance Cost 
 For the year ended  For the year ended  

(Restated) 

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Interest on Bi-lateral/Multi-lateral borrowings 16,111.07 13,135.48 

Less: Transferred to Capitalization (2,179.32) (415.93)

Interest on Bi-lateral/Multi-lateral borrowings- Net 
(Refer Note 30.1) 13,931.75   12,719.55  

Interest on Sub-Ordinate Debt 3,775.96 5,605.26 

Other Interest & Bank Charges 
(Refer Note 2.4 on Borrowing Cost Capitalization) 175.66   98.42  

Total 17,883.37 18,423.23 

Note 30.1: It includes an amount of Rs. 912.88 Lakhs(P.Y. Rs. Nil) being the differential interest between CAAA 
statement and the books of accounts as of 31-03-2023

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
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(` in Lakhs)

Note 31-Other Expenses 
 For the year ended  For the year ended  

(Restated) 

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

 Advertisement 241.77 104.16 

 Books & Periodicals 2.52 1.88 

 COVID19 Lock-Down Reimbursement 8.41 59.42 

 Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Net) (Refer Note No. 31.1) 205.64 -   

 Inauguration Expenses 48.50 9.51 

 Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charges 487.26 497.94 

 Meeting & Miscellaneous Expenses 42.16 66.14 

 Postage & Courier Expenses 2.19 2.14 

 Printing & Stationery 78.56 42.49 

 Provision for Doubtful Receivables -   40.93 

 Rates & Taxes (Refer Note No. 31.2) 2,166.76 1,509.10 

 Training, Conference & Seminar/Sponsorship Expenses  114.60  22.20 

 Repairs & Maintenance 696.15 592.49 

 Payments to Auditors (Refer Note No. 31.3) 10.41 9.30 

 Waiver on Trade Receivables  (Refer Note No: 31.4) 34.29   17.12 

 Telephone Charges 88.36 82.78 

 Travelling, Conveyance & Vehicle Hire Charges 97.99 35.05 

Total 4,325.57 3,092.65 

Note No. 31.1 - Exchange fluctuation relates to the realized and unrealized forex loss on the payments made/liability 
held in foreign currency.

Note No. 31.2 - Rates & Taxes include ITC Reversal as per Rule 42 of the Central Goods and Services Tax (CGST) 
Rules, 2017 of ` 1,968.04 Lakh (P. Y. ` 1,354.25 Lakh) and service charges on CMRL properties situated at the 
Cantonment Board Area for `147.19 Lakh (P.Y. `150.94 Lakh)

Note No. 31.4 - Waiver on Trade Receivables represents the amounts waived off by dispute resolution committee 
which is formed to solve the disputes with Business development customers.
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Note 31.3-Payments to Auditors 
 For the year ended  For the year 

 ended (Restated) 

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Audit Fees 9.00 6.50 

Other expenses including reimbursements 1.41 2.80 

Total 10.41 9.30 

TOTAL EXPENSES (OTHER THAN DEPRECIATION) 52,837.76 43,106.56 

(` in Lakhs)

Note 32-Depreciation & Amortisation 
 For the year ended  For the year ended 

(Restated) 

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

 Depreciation - Net of Adjustments / Reversals (Refer Note No. 2)               51,837.15                    49,883.02 

 Amortisation (Refer Note No. 4)                    728.60 643.89 

Total                52,565.75 50,526.91 

Less: Amortisation of Railway land permissions capitalised during 
the year                       (73.90) (9.66) 

Depreciation & Amortisation charged to Statement of Profit & 
Loss A/c                52,491.85                  50,517.25 

TOTAL EXPENSES             1,05,329.60 93,623.81 

(` in Lakhs)

Note 33 - Earnings Per Share 
 For the year ended  For the year ended  

(Restated) 

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Earnings    
-  Profit after Tax As per Statement of P&L (Rs. In Lakhs) (56,673.28) (12,308.69)

Shares    
-  Number of Shares issued & paid-up at the Beginning of the Year 7,26,75,600 5,39,60,000 

-  Number of Shares issued during the year                              -   1,87,15,600 

-  Number of Equivalent Shares in respect of Share Application 
Money Pending Allotment as at the beginning of the year 1,00,00,027 66,80,027 

-  Number of Equivalent Shares in respect of Share Application 
Money received during the year 1,00,00,000 2,20,35,600 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 
year for Basic EPS 7,26,75,600 5,45,75,307 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year for Diluted EPS 8,64,61,929 6,57,50,989 

Earnings per Share    
Equity Shares of par value Rs. 1,000/- each    
 - Basic (Rs.) (77.98) (22.55)

 - Diluted (Rs.) (65.55) (18.72) 

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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34. 	 Capital Management

Chennai Metro Rail Limited is a Joint venture of Government of Tamil Nadu (GoTN) and 

Government of India (GoI) incorporated as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) for the purpose 
of construction of Metro Rail Network in the City of Chennai. The primary objective of the 
Company is to provide a safe, fast, reliable, accessible, convenient, comfortable, efficient, and 
affordable public transport service. 

The ownership of the Company and financing of the project is as per a tripartite Memorandum 
of Understanding dated 15th February 2011(the MoU) entered among GoI, GoTN and CMRL. 
As per the MoU, CMRL will be jointly promoted by GoI and GoTN with equal equity holding. 
There is a separate MoU, on the same lines, for Phase-I Extension of the project signed on 02nd 
September 2017. Phase-II project of the company is under implementation for which CCEA 
approval is awaited.

The capital structure of the company comprises equity share capital and debts. The financing 
of the project is done through a mix of equity, interest free sub-ordinate debt, and senior term 
debt from Bilateral/Multilateral agencies (JICA/ADB/AIIB/NDB). 

The Company’s capital consists of equity capital and other equity attributable to shareholders 
of the Company. As stated above, the shares of the company are held in equal proportion by 
the Government of India and Government of Tamil Nadu. The Company being a Government 
Company, the requisite levels of equity and debt, which has to be maintained, is determined 
based on the approval accorded in the Annual General Meeting (AGM), that is broadly 
determined based on the project finance requirements and other sources of long-term finance.

Note 34.1 - The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at 
amortized cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values 
since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly 
different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.
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(` In Lakhs)

Note No. 34A - Category-wise classification of Financial Instruments
As at As at

31-03-2023 31-03-2022

Finanical Assets measured at Amortized cost    
Non-Current    
Deposits (Refer Note No. 6.1) 1,832.88 1,485.84 

Court Deposit - ESI & others 14.18 2.94 

Earmarked Long Term Deposits with Bank 118.55 118.49 

Current    
Trade Receivables 1,525.87 1,013.34 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,48,995.87 2,77,215.99 

Other Bank balances 5,407.50 172.83 

Interest Accrued On Deposits with Bank 119.28 418.81 

Rental & other deposits 27,172.27 25,683.89 

Construction contract receivables (Net) 8,554.95 5,088.99 

Other Receivables/Recoverables 19,866.29 16,000.15 

Stamp Duty Recoverable from GOTN (Refer Note No. 12.4) 210.86 208.46 

SGST Receivable from GoTN (Refer Note No. 12.4) 4,233.30 2,119.52 

Total 2,18,051.80 3,29,529.25 

Finanical Liabilities measured at Amortized cost    
Non-Current    
Borrowings from JICA - Senior Term debt 10,40,229.94 9,85,418.46 

Sub-Ordinate Debt from Government of India 42,949.63 42,077.97 

Sub-Ordinate Debt from Government of Tamil Nadu 3,28,763.37 3,03,523.87 

Security Deposits 1,043.85 1,294.05 

Retention Money Payable 4,370.31 879.55 

Other Payables (Net) (Refer Note No 18.1) 198.09 198.09 

Current    
Trade Payables 2,147.58 1,322.47 

Bi-lateral/Multilateral Agencies Borrowings Repayable - Current matur-
ities of long-term debt (Refer Note No. 23.1) 1,40,978.11 1,01,699.59 

Interest/Commitment Charges on Borrowings (Refer Note No. 23.1) 88,486.22 69,967.61 

Pass Through Assistance against Bi-lateral/Multilateral Agencies Loan 
(Refer Note No. 23.2) 1,52,177.96 1,54,102.56 

Deposits 1,083.72 758.53 

Other Retention/ Recoveries 24,643.53 25,541.81 

Retention Money Payable  
(Refer Note No. 23.4) 4,791.91 6,046.60 

Payable for Capital Purchases 1,40,201.69 1,08,185.35 

Revenue received in advance 2,662.83 2,024.44 

Total 19,74,728.74 18,03,040.95 

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
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Note 34B - Financial Risk Management - Objectives & Policies

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other 
payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise mainly of cash and cash equivalents, other 
balances with banks, trade receivables and other receivables/recoverable.

The Company is exposed to Market risk, Credit risk and Liquidity risk. The Board of Directors 
(Board) oversee the management of these financial risks through the functional directors. The 
key managerial personnel of the company lay down the broad structure for managing risks 
and the framework for risk management. The framework seeks to identify, assess, and mitigate 
financial risks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

The following disclosures summarize the Company’s exposure to financial risks:

(1) 	 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises mainly two types of 
risks: interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes 
borrowings, trade payables, trade receivables, other receivables/ payables, etc.

(2) 	 Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting 
in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as trade 
receivables, other balances with banks, and other receivables. Since there is no concept of 
credit in case of traffic revenue, there is negligible or no credit risk as far as this stream of 
revenue is concerned.

With respect to the receivables in case of business development contracts, the Company 
has adopted a policy of only dealing with counterparties that have sufficiently high credit 
rating. Wherever possible, the payment terms are structured in the company’s favor and the 
amounts are mostly required to be paid in advance. Also, all contracts have a security deposit 
clause requiring an amount to be deposited with the company or a guarantee of equivalent 
amount to be given which further reduces the credit risk. The Company’s exposures are 
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst 
the counterparties. Credit risk arising from investment in balances with banks is limited and 
there is no collateral held against these because the counterparties are recognized financial 
institutions with high credit ratings viz., banks.

(3) 	 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet 
commitments associated with financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or 
another financial asset. The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework 
for managing its short term, medium term and long-term funding and liquidity management 
requirements. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of 
the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity risk by 
maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. As per the MoU, the project cost for 
the metro project is funded by a mix of equity, government subordinate debt and senior term 
debt from Bilateral/Multilateral agencies and the financing of cash losses by GoTN.
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35.	 Contingent liabilities: 

a.	 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

i.	 Legal related matters

Sl.
No. Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022

1.a Legal Cases – Writ - Count 73 Cases 111 Cases

1.b Legal Cases – Writ – Value ` 24,445.05 Lakhs ` 54,653.33 Lakhs
2.a LAOP Cases – Count 62 Cases 62 Cases
2.b LAOP Cases – Value `1,24,086 Lakhs `1,17,023 Lakhs
3 Adjudication - Compensation for 

other claims and damages `39,308.34 Lakhs `39,308.34 Lakhs

4. Arbitration Cases (Excluding Interest)

7 cases 
`2,11,463 Lakhs 
(Counter Claims - 
`2,53,379 Lakhs)

7 cases 
`2,11,463 Lakhs 
(Counter Claims - 
`2,60,803 Lakhs)

5.
Arbitration Claims have been settled 
in favor of claimant & pending 
before High Court**

`66,220.49Lakhs `60,954.76 Lakhs

In respect of contracts terminated, the balance work has been awarded to new contractors. Arbitration 
proceedings have been initiated and all additional cost to be incurred, on the award of the balance 
works to new contractors, is being claimed from the erstwhile contractors whose contracts have 
been terminated. As at 31-03-2023, an amount of ` 48,447 Lakhs (P.Y. – `48,447 Lakhs) has been 
claimed in respect of 3 terminated contracts (P.Y –3 contracts) in respect of which counter claims by 
the company have been made amounting to `32,753 Lakhs (P.Y. – `32,753 Lakhs).

In respect of ongoing contracts, arbitration proceedings have been initiated in respect of 4 contracts 
(P.Y. – 5 contracts) and ` 1,63,016 Lakhs (P.Y. – ` 1,63,016 Lakhs) has been claimed and counter 
claims by the company have been made amounting to ` 2,20,626 Lakhs (P.Y. – `2,28,050 Lakhs). 
The net amount, if any, will be accounted for on final determination of arbitration proceedings.
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**The following arbitration claims have been settled in favor of the claimant and pending before    
High Court - 	

Name of the 
Party Package Date of 

award

Balance Award 
Amount Including 

interest up to 
31-03-2023

Remarks

Consolidated 
Construction 
Consortium Ltd

EAS-06 25/01/2020
`7,963.77Lakhs  
PY (`7,406.55 

Lakhs)

Appeal under Section 34 
filed before High Court. After 
Few hearings, due to IBC 
proceedings NCLT ordered 
Moratorium. NCLT ordered 
liquidation of CCCL and 
appointed liquidator. Case 
Posted on 18.07.23 for final 
hearing

Transtonnel 
Stroy -Afcons 
JV (TTA JV)

UAA 01 – 
Claim No. 

4
07/03/2017

`6,769.38 Lakhs 
PY (` 6,281.39 

Lakhs)

S.34 Application filed before 
Madras High Court and stay 
granted subject to payment of 
50% of Award amount to the 
Claimant, upon submission of 
BG. Accordingly BG submitted 
and payment made. Pending 
for final hearing.

Transtonnel 
Stroy -Afcons 
JV (TTA JV)

UAA 05 – 
Claim No. 

4
07/03/2017

`5,054.17 Lakhs 
PY (` 4,689.83 

Lakhs)

S.34 Application filed before 
Madras High Court and stay 
granted subject to payment of 
50% of Award amount to the 
Claimant, upon submission of 
BG. Accordingly BG submitted 
and payment made. Pending 
for final hearing.

Transtonnel 
Stroy -Afcons 
JV (TTA JV)

UAA 05 – 
Claim No. 

6
28/04/2017 `293.03 Lakhs 

PY (` 273.33 Lakhs)

S.34 Application filed before 
Madras High Court and stay 
granted subject to payment of 
75% of Award amount to the 
Claimant, upon submission of 
BG. Accordingly BG submitted 
and payment made. Case to 
be listed for final hearing.
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Name of the 
Party Package Date of 

award

Balance Award 
Amount Including 

interest up to 
31-03-2023

Remarks

Transtonnel 
Stroy -Afcons 
JV (TTA JV)

UAA 01 – 
Claim No. 

6
03/06/2017 ` 561.51 Lakhs 

PY (` 522.47 Lakhs)

S.34 Application filed before 
Madras High Court and stay 
granted subject to payment of 
75% of Award amount to the 
Claimant, upon submission of 
BG. Accordingly BG submitted 
and payment made Pending 
for final hearing.

Gammon 
India Ltd - 
Mosmetrostroy 
JV

UAA-02 & 
UAA-03 11/11/2021

`44,593.08 Lakhs 
PY (` 40,795.63 

Lakhs)

Section 34 appeal filed before 
Madras High Court. GIL-
MMS JV also filed Section 34 
before Madras High Court. 
Section 9 filed for extending 
BGs validity.

Transtonnel 
Stroy -Afcons 
JV (TTA JV)

UAA-05 
– Claim 
No-7

Rs.378.05 Lakhs 
PY( ` 378.05 

Lakhs)*

S.34 Application filed & 
admitted by Madras High 
Court.

Transtonnel 
Stroy -Afcons 
JV (TTA JV)

UAA-01 
– Claim 
No-7

`607.50 Lakhs  
PY(` 607.50 

Lakhs)*

S.34 Application filed & 
admitted by Madras High 
Court. 

*Arbitration concluded and listed before High Court. The above amount is the claim value, and the 
award is kept in abeyance awaiting the orders of the Honourable High Court, Madras.

Govt. of India has introduced Vivad Se Viswas Scheme -II on 29.05.2023 for settlement of Contractual 
Disputes on which award has been passed by arbitrator or pronouncement by High Court and 
pending in other judicial forum for final decision in the matter. As per the guidelines issued in this 
regard unless the Board of Directors of the company decides otherwise it is automatically enrolled 
in the scheme. The start date for enrolment by contractors for the scheme is 15th July’2023 and end 
date is 31.10.2023. The Company is evaluating the scheme for further decision in this regard. On 
finalization the financial outflow / inflow will be evaluated and appropriate accounting impact will 
be considered in the books.  

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023



355

ii.	 Statutory Related Matters

Sl. 
No. Particulars – Direct taxes 31-03-2023 31-03-2022

1.        Demand from ESIC department `Nil `11.77 Lakhs

2.        Demand of Tax deducted @ source under 
Chapter XVII - F.Y.  2007-08

` 0.07 Lakhs ` 0.07 Lakhs

3.        Demand of Tax deducted @ source under 
Chapter XVII - F.Y. 2009-10

` 0.19 Lakhs ` 0.19 Lakhs

4.        Demand of Tax deducted @ source under 
Chapter XVII - F.Y. 2010-11

` 0.07 Lakhs ` 0.07 Lakhs

5.        Demand of Tax deducted @ source under 
Chapter XVII - F.Y. 2011-12

`0.02 Lakhs ` 0.02 Lakhs

6.        Demand from Income Tax Department AY 
2021-22-#

` 48,262.25 Lakhs    ` NIL

7.        Demand from Income Tax Department AY 
2020-21-#

`3,37,111.24 Lakhs    ` NIL

  8. Demand from Income Tax Department AY 
2018-19

` NIL ` 26.38 Lakhs

# These are the demands from IT department considering the Contingent liabilities, declared in the 
tax audit report, as taxable income. The Company has given written reply to the department.

Sl. 
No. Particulars – Indirect taxes 31-03-2023 31-03-2022

1. Order No. 23/2019 from Commissioner GST 
& Central excise* (Excluding Interest) ` 4,162.50 Lakhs ` 4,162.50 Lakhs

2.

Order 07/2020 & 08/2020 received from 
Commissioner of GST against the SCN 
10/2017 mentioned above (Including Interest 
& Penalty)

` 620.40 Lakhs ` 583.81 Lakhs

3. (b) Order in Appeal 168/2021by Joint 
Commissioner against the SCN 57/2019 `5.0 Lakhs `5.0 Lakhs

4.
Order no:01/2021 received from Joint 
Commissioner of GST against the SCN 
03/2020

` 1363.77 Lakhs ` 1363.77 Lakhs 

5. Notice from Labour cess department ` 3,068.00 Lakhs ` 3,068.00 Lakhs

6. Show Cause Notice No. 53/2023-GST (AC) `43.68 Lakhs -
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iii.	 Other Claims not acknowledged

•	 Southern Railway has claimed, for Phase-I, an amount of ` 69,690.24 lakhs  
(P.Y. `68,221.25 lakhs) towards the specific permissions for the use of land. The Company 
has acknowledged the claim only to the extent of ` 63,076.42 Lakh (P.Y. ` 63,104.42 
Lakh) and the same has been paid. Balance of ` 6,613.82 Lakh has been considered as 
Contingent liability.

•	 CMRL has disputed claims from TANGEDCO amounting to `1519.66 lakhs  
(P.Y 2798.65 lakhs). For the Financial Year (FY) 22_23, this relates to electricity tax and for 
the FY 21_22, these are against tariff difference & excess maximum demand consumption 
charges. CMRL has taken up the issue with TANGECO for early resolution.

b.	 Letters of Guarantees

As at the Balance sheet date the company has not provided any guarantees on behalf of 
third parties. 

c.	 Letters of Credit

             	 As at the Balance Sheet date, there are no commitments towards Letters of Credit on 
behalf of third parties.

36.	 Capital & Other Commitments

Estimated amount, net of advances paid, of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital 
Account and not provided for (excluding any escalation as provided in the terms of the 
contracts) `19,01,065.43 Lakhs (P.Y. – ` 18,58,942.20 Lakhs).

37.	 Segment Reporting

As defined in Ind-AS 108, the operating segments used to present segment information are 
identified based on internal reports used by the company’s management to allocate resources 
to the segments and assess their performance. The company has only one operating segment 
i.e., Income from traffic operations. This includes income from train tickets, rental income 
space along rails. The same is being reviewed periodically. 

38.	 Information on Related Party transactions as required by Ind-AS 24 – ‘Related Party 
disclosures’ for the year ended 31st March, 2022

The Company is a Government Company within the meaning of Section 2(45) of the 
Companies Act 2013 (Section 617 of the Companies Act, 1956). Details of the related parties 
are disclosed below:
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a)	 Details of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Directors

Sl. No. Name of the Director Designation From To

1. Shri Manoj Joshi, IAS Chairman/Nominee 
Director of GoI

29-12-2021 Till Date

2. Shri Jaideep Director / Nominee 
Director of GoI

09-08-2019 Till Date

3. Shri Radhakrishna 
Reddy

Director / Nominee 
Director of GoI

27-08-2019 Till Date

4. Shri Sunil Mathur Director / Nominee 
Director of GoI

15-03-2018 Till Date

5. Shri Bhupender Singh 
Bodh

Director / Nominee 
Director of GoI

18-12-2020 Till Date

6. Shri M.A.Siddique, IAS Managing Director/ 
Nominee Director of GoTN

12-06-2022 Till Date

7. Shri Pradeep Yadav, 
IAS

Director / Nominee 
Director of GoTN

16-03-2020 Till Date

8. Shri N Muruganandam, 
IAS

Director/ Nominee Director 
of GoTN

06-11-2021 Till Date

9. Shri Gagandeep Singh 
Bedi, IAS

Director/ Nominee Director 
of GoTN

09-05-2021 Till Date

10. Shri Hitesh Kumar S 
Makwana, IAS

Director/ Nominee Director 
of GoTN

25-11-2021 02-12-2022

11. Selvi Apoorva, IAS Director/ Nominee Director 
of GoTN

02-12-2022 Till Date

12. Dr. Prasanna Kumar 
Acharya

Whole – Time Director 01-06-2022 Till Date

13. Shri T Archunan Whole – Time Director 02-06-2021 Till Date

14. Shri Rajesh Chaturvedi Whole – Time Director 15-10-2020 Till Date

15. Smt Sujatha Jayaraj Whole-Time Director 17-05-2016 16-05-2022

16. Smt Andal P Company Secretary 05-09-2014 Till Date

b)	 Details of related party transactions during the year

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Remuneration to KMP Rs.243.86 Lakhs Rs. 228.38 Lakhs
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Details of Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel/ Directors – 

•	 Shri M.A.Siddique, Managing Director – `41.40 Lakhs ( P.Y. – ` NIL)

•	 Shri Pradeep Yadav, Managing Director – ` 10.62 Lakhs (P. Y.– ` 47.25 Lakhs)

•	 Shri. Dr. Prasanna Kumar Acharya, Director – ` 43.14 Lakhs (P.Y. – ` NIL)

•	 Smt Sujatha Jayaraj, Director – ` 7.33 Lakhs (P. Y. - ` 55.76 Lakhs)

•	 Shri T Archunan, Director – ` 60.41 Lakhs (P.Y. – 45.09 Lakhs)

•	 Shri Rajeev Narayan Dwivedi, Director – ` NIL (P. Y. - ` 9.17 Lakhs)

•	 Shri Rajesh Chaturvedi, Director – ` 60.53 Lakhs (P. Y. – 53.15 Lakhs)	

•	 Smt P Andal, Company Secretary – ` 20.44 Lakhs (P. Y. - ` 17.96 lakhs)

39.	 Employee benefits

a.	 Defined Contribution Plans

Provident Fund: The Company has made equal contribution towards Voluntary EPF scheme. 
The expense is recognized on an accrual basis.

Pension: The Company’s pension Scheme is linked with voluntary provident fund Scheme. 
All employees of Company under EPF scheme are also covered under EPS scheme. Under 
this scheme, no contribution is collected from employees and out of 12% of employer 
contribution under PF scheme 8.33% is covered under EP Scheme and ` 118.49 Lakhs 
(P. Y. – ̀  93.84 Lakhs) is created as liability towards Pension contribution payable to deputation 
employees.

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Contribution to Provident Fund ` 386.12 Lakhs ` 297.76 Lakhs

Employee benefits due to Deputationists are paid to their respective organizations / Employer 
from where they have been deputed based on the direction given by their organizations. In 
respect of deputation employees, contribution towards provident fund, pension and leave 
salary contribution are made as per the directions provided by respective departments. In case 
of gratuity, for eligible employees they are paid / provided by the respective organizations 
from where they have been deputed.

b.	 Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity (Funded)

The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees, which requires 
contributions to be made to a separately administered trust. It is governed by the Payment 
of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, an employee who has completed five years of service 
is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length 
of service and salary at retirement age. 
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The Company has on roll 352 regular employees,185 contract employees, 40 employees 
under retired category of 31st Mar’23. Gratuity Plan for regular employees are managed by 
Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company makes contributions to CMRL Gratuity 
Trust exclusively to cover the employees on contract, who aren’t covered by the above plan 
managed by LIC. The balance in CMRL Gratuity Trust as at 31st Mar’23 is ` 14.97 Lakhs.

Each year, the Board of Trustees and the Company review the level of funding in the gratuity 
plan. Such a review includes the asset-liability matching strategy and assessment of the 
investment risk. The Company decides its contribution based on the results of this annual 
review. The gratuity liability, to the employees on regular scale and on contract/retired 
category, are provided for on the basis of actuarial Valuation. The aforesaid defined benefit 
plan typically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate 
risk, longevity risk and salary risk, as detailed below:

Investment Risk
The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated using a 
discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end 
of the reporting period on government bonds. 

Interest Risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; 
however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the 
plan’s investments.

Longevity Risk

The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference 
to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and 
after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan 
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary Risk
The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference 
to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in salary of 
the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of defined 
obligation were carried out as at 31st March, 2023 by Actuarial Valuer. The present value of 
the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost were measured using the 
projected unit credit method. The details as per the said valuation report is attached.

c.	 Other Long-Term Employee Benefits - Leave Travel Concession (unfunded)

Employees and their family members are eligible, once during a period of 2 calendar years, 
for Leave Travel Concession to travel to their hometown by the shortest / direct route.  Also, 
they are eligible for travel to any place in India once in a block of 4 calendar years.  The mode 
of transport entitled to employees is based on their category.  If LTC other than home town 
is not availed, the employee is entitled to avail LTC for home town 3 times in a block of 4 
calendar years.

Concession not availed in a particular block of 4 years can be carried forward and availed 
in the first year of the succeeding block.  An employee whose family is living away from 
headquarters may avail of the concession for himself alone once in every year for visiting his 
home town. The details as per the said valuation report is attached.
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d.	 Other Long Term Employee Benefits - Leave Encashment, Half-pay leave

Company allows entitlement of half Pay leave to all eligible employees at the rate of 20 days 
for every year of service and the unutilized portion can be carried forward without any upper 
limit.

An employee availing half pay leave is entitled to receive salary equal to the half of basic 
+ DA components of salary. However, other allowances are paid in full. The maximum half 
pay leave that can be availed at a time is 24 months. Half pay Leave can be encashed by the 
employees subject to Leave Rules. The details as per the said valuation report is attached.

e.	 Other Long-Term Employee Benefits - Leave Encashment (unfunded)

Leave Encashment: As per HR policy of the company, each eligible employee is credited with 
30 days of earned leave and 20 days of half pay leave each year. In case of earned leave, only 
50% of leave balance in leave account can be encashed once in a calendar year. The liability 
on this account is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation. The details as per the said 
valuation report is attached.

40.	 In line with practices already being followed by the company, certain accounting policies 
have been re-worded for the purpose of better disclosure and these do not have any impact 
on the financial statements.

41.	 In assessing the recoverability of receivables, the Company has considered internal and 
external information up to the date of approval of financial statements. Based on the current 
indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying 
amount of these assets. Despite the fact that confirmation of balances has been sought for, 
only a few parties (suppliers of goods and services and operating lessees) have furnished the 
same which have been appropriately considered in the accounts.

In the absence of any claims to the contrary from any other party, any adjustment to the 
carrying amounts is not expected / estimated to be material. The company has accounted / 
effected payments based on assessments carried out internally. Further, any adjustment to 
the carrying amounts of the assets / liabilities is not expected to be material.

42.	 The following are analytical ratios for the year ended 31st March 2023 and  
31st March 2022.

Particulars Numerator Denominator
31st 

March 
2023

31st 
March 
2022

Variance Remarks

Current 
Ratio

 Current 
Assets Current Liabilities                              

0.33 
                         
0.63 -47.62%

Cash and Cash 
equivalents have dropped 
by more than  
` 1,00,000 Lakh

Debt- Equity 
Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s 

Equity
                             
4.88 

                         
4.33 12.70%  

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023



361

Particulars Numerator Denominator
31st 

March 
2023

31st 
March 
2022

Variance Remarks

Debt Service 
Coverage 
Ratio

Earnings 
avaiable for 
debt service

Debt service                              
0.11 

                         
1.33 -91.73%

Ind AS 21 impact of forex 
fluctuation on borrowings 
has been accounted 
for the first time in the 
financials. Forex gain for 
FY 21-22 is 60,229.82 
Lakh and for FY 22-23 is  
` 7,834.60 Lakh

Return on 
Equity(ROE)

Net Profit 
after taxes

Average 
shareholder’s 
Equity

                                  
-   

                             
-   0.00%  

Trade 
Receivables 
Turnover 
Ratio

Revenue 
from 
Operations

Average Trade 
Receivable

                             
4.56 

                         
4.01 13.72%

Trade 
Payable 
Turnover 
Ratio

Purchase 
of services 
and other 
expenses

Average Trade 
Payable

                             
16.24 

                         
10.15 60.00%

Average payables 
maintained at minimum 
levels; as a result the ratio 
becomes better.

Net Capital 
Turnover 
Ratio

Revenue 
from 
Operations

Working Capital                             
-0.06 

                       
-0.07 -14.29%  

Net Profit 
Ratio Net Profit Revenue                             

-1.16 
                       

-0.15 673.33%

Ind AS 21 impact of forex 
fluctuation on borrowings 
has been accounted 
for the first time in the 
financials. Forex gain for 
FY 21-22 is 60,229.82 
Lakh and for FY 22-23 is  
` 7,834.60 Lakh

Return on 
Capital 
Employed 
(ROCE)

Earnings 
before 
Interest and 
Taxes

Capital Employed -0.01 -   -638.13%

Ind AS 21 impact of forex 
fluctuation on borrowings 
has been accounted 
for the first time in the 
financials. Forex gain for  
FY 21-22 is 60,229.82 
Lakh and for FY 22-23 is 
` 7,834.60 Lakh
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43.	 As per clause 12.16 of the MoU dated 15.02.2011 of Phase-I and clause 12.20 of the MoU 
dated 02.09.2017 of Phase-I Extension, GoTN has to finance cash losses if any, during the 
operational Phase from its own resources in case the same cannot be provided by CMRL. 
The Company has incurred cumulative cash losses up to 31.03.2023 `1,44,712.96 lakh and 
submitted claims until 2022 for `69,619.74 Lakh. Pending confirmation from GoTN on the 
nature of financing, no accounting entry has been passed in books.

44.	 Previous year figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary to make them 
comparable with current year’s figures and the amounts are rounded off to the nearest lakhs 
of rupees.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
PKKG Balasubramaniam & Associates  
Chartered Accountants  

R H S Ramakrishnan M. A. Siddique, IAS T. Archunan
Partner      Managing Director Director
M. No:  021651 (DIN: 07955771) (DIN: 07610556)
FRN:  0001547S
 
  Dr. Prasanna Kumar Acharya

Director - Finance & Chief 
Financial officer

(DIN: 09625170)

 
P. Andal 

Company Secretary 
(M.No. A28465)

Place: Chennai  
Date: 02-08-2023    
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